¥

FOUR CORNERS
CHARTER SCHOOL
N

Board of Directors’ Meeting

Thursday, June 20, 2024
12:00 PM




Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
Thursday, June 20, 2024, at 2:00 pm

Hilton Orlando Lake Buena Vista
Tangerine Room

1900 E Buena Vista Dr.

Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830

Board Meeting Agenda
Call to Order
Roll Call

VL.

Public Comments

Administrative
e Approval of April 9, 2024, FCCS Board Meeting Minutes
e FY25 Board Meeting Dates

CSUSA Reports
e State Superintendent Update
e Spring Survey Results

Financials

e Four Corners Charter School Inc.
e FY 2023-24 Financial Statements as of 3/31/2024
o FY 2023-24 Budget Amendment 2
e FY 2023-24 Audit and Program Cost Report Engagement Letters for
FCCS and FCCS, Inc.

e Four Corners Charter School Operating
e Q3 FY24 Finance Review
e FY24 Budget Amendment 3

Old Business
e Facilities Update
e Emergency Responder Radio System Update

New Business

e Mental Health Plan

e Youth Mental Health Training

e Master Safety and Security Policy
e (CSUSA Reading Plan

e Parent Handbook

Adjournment



<« Next Meeting: TBD »




BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Name of Foundation:
Board Meeting:
School(s):

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

Tuesday — April 9, 2024
Four Corners Charter School

The minutes of Sunshine Law meetings need not be verbatim transcripts of the meeting. These minutes are a brief summary of

the events of the meeting.

Date:

Start

End

Next Meeting:

Next time:

Prepared by:

April 9, 2024

2:02 pm

2:38 pm

June 4, 2024

2:00 pm

R.Weaver/L. Peake

Meeting Location:

Osceola School District — 817 Bill Beck Blvd., Kissimmee, FL 34744

Attended by:

Board Members:
Heather Kahoun, Chair
Julius Melendez, Director
James Miller, Director

Teresa Castillo, Director
Absent: None

Mollie Cunningham, Director

Other Attendees:

Deputy Director, Jodi Evans
Jason Imeidopf, Principal
Angela Barner, Director of Finance, Osceola School District
Adam Maali, Senior Financial Analyst, CSUSA
Chris Kober, Facilities Director, CSUSA

Rita Weaver, Sr. Director of Board Governance, CSUSA

Leah Peake, Board Governance Manger, CSUSA

CALL TO ORDER

e Pursuant to public notice, the meeting commenced at 2:02 pm with a Call to Order by Chair Heather
Kahoun. Roll call was taken, and quorum established.

l. PUBLIC COMMENTS

e Chair Kahoun called for public comments. There were no public comments.

1. ADMINISTRATIVE
Approval of Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes

e The board reviewed the meeting minutes from February 6, 2024, for Four Corners Charter

School, Inc.

MOTION: Motion was made by James Miller and seconded by Julius Melendez to approve the February
6, 2024, board meeting minutes for Four Corners Charter School, Inc. as presented. Motion was
approved unanimously. (5-0, 0 absent)

1. CSUSA Reports

State Director Report

e Deputy Director, Jodi Evans and Principal Imeidopf provided the board an update on Full Time
Enrollment Counts, Recommitment Update, and the upcoming testing for Four Corners
Charter School.

V. FINANCIALS

Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Financial Update

February FY24 Financial Report

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.




Meeting Minutes cont’d

April 9, 2024
Page 2

e The board reviewed the Four Corners Charter School, Inc. February FY24 Financial Report as
presented by Angela Barner.

MOTION: Motion as made by Mollie Cuningham and seconded by Teresa Castillo to approve the
February FY24 Financial Report for Four Corners Charter School, Inc., as presented. Motion was
approved unanimously. (5-0, 0 absent)

FY24 Budget Amendment 1
e The board reviewed the FY24 Budget Amendment 1 for Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
presented by Angela Barner.

MOTION: Motion was made Mollie Cuningham and seconded by James Miller to approve the FY24
Budget Amendment 1, as presented. Motion was approved unanimously. (5-0, 0 absent)

FY25 Preliminary Budget
e The board reviewed the FY25 Preliminary Budget for Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
presented by Angela Barner.

MOTION: Motion was made Julius Melendez and seconded by Teresa Castillo to approve the FY25
Preliminary Budget, as presented. Motion was approved unanimously. (5-0, 0 absent)

Management Company Request for Funding

e The board reviewed four options for the Management Company Request for funding from
Four Corners Charter School, Inc. presented by Angela Barner.

e The board was presented 5 options:

e Option 1: Fund $1,108,150.54

e Option 2: Fund $0.00

e Option 3: Fund $283,000 projected ending fund balance

e Option 4: Fund $315,000 grants receivable

e Option 5: Fund $598,000 (sum of Option 3 & 4)

MOTION: Motion was made by Teresa Castillo to adopt Option 5 and approve the funding for the
Management Company the motion was seconded by Julius Melendez. Motion was approved
unanimously. (5-0, 0 absent)

Mrs. Weaver advised that this item would be brought back to the June meeting for the additional funding
request.

V. OLD BUSINESS
Facilities Update

e Facilities Director, Chris Kober presented the board with the facilities update for Four
Corners Charter School.

VL. NEW BUSINESS

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.



Meeting Minutes cont’d

April 9, 2024
Page 3

Emergency Responder Radio System

e Facilities Director, Chris Kober presented the board with findings from the Emergency
Responder Radio System Test Results for Four Corners Charter School. The test results
indicated a failure in the system. Mr. Kober requested the ability to put out a Request
for Proposal to fix the needed areas and improve coverage.

MOTION: Motion was made by James Miller and seconded by Julius Melendez to approve the bid
process for an Emergency Responder Radio System for Four Corners Charter School. Motion was
approved unanimously. 5-0, 0 absent)

FY25 School Calendar
e The board reviewed the FY25 School Calendar for Four Corners Charter School

MOTION: Motion was made by Teresa Castillo and seconded by Julius Melendez to approve the FY25
School Calendar for Four Corners Charter School. Motion was approved unanimously. 5-0, 0 absent)
VIL. ADJOURNMENT

Hearing no objections, Chair Heather Kahoun, adjourned the April 9, 2024, Four Corners Charter
School, Inc. Board Meeting at 2:38 p.m.

Signature

Date:

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.



J-
FOUR CORNERS
CHARTER SCHOOL
N—

2024-2025 Meeting Calendar

Meetings for Four Corners Charter School begin at 2:00pm (subject to change)

July 2024 — No Meeting
August 6, 2024
September 2024 — No Meeting
October 8, 2024
November 2024 — No Meeting
December 2024 — No Meeting
January 2025 - No Meeting
February 11, 2025
March 2025 - No Meeting
April 8, 2025
May 2025 — No Meeting

June 3, 2025

All meetings are open to the public. Please contact the parent facilitator or the school’s
location for details on how to participate.

Meeting dates, times, and locations are subject to change. Changed dates will appear in red above.

Meetings start time and exact location are TBD and will be announced and public noticed as each
meeting date approaches.







SA9AING UOTIORJSTIBS IOP[OYa LIS

1USpMIS pue Jyel§ Juaied
tzoec-Ccoe sutids vSNsSH

TOOHDS YALIVHDI_ TN
= SYANYOD ¥NOA %




~
VSnsod
ot
dnoa3 1op[oyae1s Yora SS0Idk 9% 06 dA0qe 3 0} PII1IAdxd

SI UOIORJSTIBS [B10], ‘S[B0S 10BIIU0D I9)IeY) INO UO PIseyq .

uonoeJsnes e1o0], sjussardar
9ISk 1eUMAWIOS, puk 2313k ‘ 9913k A[3UO0I]S, JO UOIRUIqUIO)) .

I3V [e10], Suntoday

WINI}oads IAIIRSIU 9] UO JSUd]UI }SOW
9} SUI(Q _II.ISeSIP A[SUOI]S, J}IM JUIWIAIZESIP JO S[QAIT &

winjoads aAnIsod a1} uo asuajul
1SOW 9] SUId(q ISk A[SUOILS, YIIM JUSWDAISE JO S[PAIT &

3[edS 1UI0J 9

SHNSY 9Y ], sunaadiojuy
19 9[edS AdAINS




~
vSnso
-t

tcoc-Ccoc suridg

SHNS9Y AdAINS VSNSD
AR - g



~
vSnso
-t

'$sa20.4d s1y3 ul 21pd121340d j00YIS AiDIUBWII|3 Y1
wodif spuapnjs fo a|dwips an11pIu3sa1dal b 3iNsUa 01 3ppib ;7 aY) Woif sJuapuodsal Ajuo syuasaidal siy| ,

Avjiqer@y ybiy A3ij1qeley ybiH A31j1qer|9y 83eivpopy
3e1s uspnis juaJed
:sey @3ed uoiyediniyied Aenans buiads $zZ0z-S202 M4BlWyduaq paysi|gelss uo paseg
%00T %6T %0 %EE %28 %6€E @18y uonjedidilied
22 08 8t 0L 82 82 Juno) [e3o]
97 ST 6T c7 cZ TT unon wmmcoammw_ |BUOIIONJIISU|-UON
%00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %T6 9)ey uoijedidijied
09 LE 6 £t LS LS juno) [ejol
T/ 65 IS 2L 09 25 UNo) sesuodsay |euoI3aNJ3su| 33835
%/8 %L6 %88 %6.L %LL %/8 83ey uoiedidiied
18T 18T 9T 99T TLT T/T Juno) [ejo
8ST ST StT TET 2€T 67T Juno) sesuodsay  *k SJUBPNMIS ||y JUBPMIS
%82 %0S % %0S %Ly %29 ®)ey uonjedidilied
988 €18 6LL 859 999 999 juno) [e3o}
o2 8TV 6EE TEE 9TE TTY uno) sesuodsey jusded  judJded
bulads l1ed bulads l1ed bulids l1ed
¥202-€202 €202-2202 2202-1202

11]1Ge1 |9y S1NSSy 8 81ey uoijedidilied

Asewwing uoiyedidnied Asains bulids $202-£202




~
vSnso
-t

To0YIS
Je 9yes Sur[ady Jo uondadraad a1ay) pue AeLo] ‘Yuauwddesuy Juapnis ul uorejsies ut sdoap Juedrusis
arIe 219y} ‘Quop st uostreduwrod Suridg-03-3urids e uaym drduwrexa 10, $s9001d juswaAoIdwl SNONUIIUOD
S JOOUDS 93 JO 1red se passaIppe 9 P[NOYS Jey} WIDUO0D JO SBAIR dUWIOS [[1IS 1€ I} ‘SOGRIdAR 9]€]S pue
YI0MISU 9} dAO(R ST SJUapN]S 9} WOIJ UOIJORISIIeS Ul S93eIUa019d [[BISAO0 9} YSNOY}[e :UOLIBJSTIES JUdpnls .

;judurdAoxduy J0J seaay

"]00Y9s S1y] 1o buryLom afps 192 T pue Jooyos swy3 1p bury.iom
fiddpy wp | :syuaualels aY3 03 9suodsal I3[} UL UOIIOBJSTIeS JO S[9AI] YSIY AISA 93 AQ PaledIpul Sk siojellsIurupe
9} pue [00YdS Y] Jo uorldadtad a[qeroAe] A19A aARY OS[e JJels SO Yl :A1dJes [00YIS X AJ[eL0] JJeis .

"PUSLIJ B 0] 31 PUSWIUIODAI P[NOM pUR [00YDs 91} Jo pnoxd axe £3y3 ‘[ooyds siy} ye Addey
pue 9Jes arIe SJUaPNiSs 1Y} [99) A[SUTW[YMIDA0 sjudled SOD YL, "SOSRISAR 91e]ls pue YIomlau 3] Suroedino
1S9USIY 91} pajel oJe Juduwdgesuy pue A[RA0T ‘A1dJes [00YdS "S9LI039]1ed dwos ul Suridg a9y} 0} [[e] 1Se|

WOIJ SYUSWAOIJUWIL 99S 0] YIOMISU 9] UI S[OOYIS M3J JO dUO SI STY} “IBIA JO SUIL] SIY] JB SOUI[I9P 39S 0] pUaI] 9y}
a11dsap pue [ooyos 3y} Jo uondaoiad s[qeIoAe] AI9A € 9ARY 0} 9SNUIIUO0D SAI[IWe] §OD 9] :uondejsnes judaed .

:SHMSY AdAang dog,

A103891e)) AQ SINSY [00Y2S




sauby A|Bucuis e | sauby 10| @] sbeusny ssuby A|Buoaas yiomisN — | sbedsny sa.by |B10] ylomian — :puaba auly g 8o41)

jou op | ® | 3aubesig

Buiuds g4 Bunds
We-E2 v-EC EZZC

i

Lo

buiads |4 buldsg
Ve-£E2 ¥vd-Ed EZZZ

K18)es |j00YdS

A|Buouis m | saubesig =

Buids 14 Buladsg
FeEc viEe £l

_m

!
|

©0®

buads g4 Bulidsg
Fe-gC viEd EZ-2<Z

A1jeAon

| @246e51Q 3RYMBWOS

Buds |14 bBunds
Fe-€2 Vi€ EcZ-2Z

buids ||e4 buwidg
¥e-€2 VvZ-g2 £Z-22

Bupiep
uolIs|D8( |e207

| 32ubYy JeUMBWOS

Buiuds g4 Bunids
FeE2 vl &E2-2¢

i

buiads |4 bBuldsg
Fe-g2 v2Ed £2-2¢

SIS 8418
diysuazijiy |eqo|o

S1|nNsay ASAJNS JudJied

PZ-E¢ Ve-EZ Eé-dl

bulids  |je4 bBulads
t2-€d v2-Ed €d-dd

sal3unjioddp
|lenb3

Aiobaje) Aq souewoiad |B21403SIH

AMOLIY
| 924by = | 38.by Ajbuc.]ls = ;puaba Jey) Jeg
Buids )e4 bBunds|bBuuds B4 Bundsg

veeEcd WlEd E&dl

!
_

!
_

bulds  ||e4 Bulidg
v2-€2 VZ-Ed E£2-d¢

jJuswabebuy




o2.by A|Buocuis @ | osuby |10 @] sbeusny 2a4by A|Buouls yuomisN — | ebeusay esuby |10 aomisN — :puabat aul] g 92410

jouop | = | @aubesig A|jBuouas m | saubesig

Bunids

Bupds  |je4

FEd vt Ec-dd

Buiads 14 Bunids
¥e-g¢ Wit ELZl

A18)eS |00YIS

Bulids
ve-ed vied EZdL

lIe4 bBuudsg

Buiuds g4 Bunidsg
ve&e viEd £2dZ

Ayehor

| @24BeSIg 3RPYMBWOS

buds B4 DBuwds
veEe trdegd &g

Buuds g4 Buwds
¥e-Ed tiEé Ee-¢é

Bunep
uoIs|28Q |2207

Buidsg
v-ed viEC Elde

| @24By 1RyMBLIOS

le4  Bunds

Buiuds g4 Bulidg
Ve&e weEd £l

S[IMS 84178
diysuaziyid [eqo|o

= | oouby = | @auby A
|

buudg g4 bBunds
Feed PeEe E£g-éc

Buuds g4 Bunids
t2-e¢ ¥e-Ee Ed-éd

sa13unyioddg
jenb3g

MO U

buouis = :pusba jiey) seg

Buuds  ||e4 bBundsg
ve-ed viEd Ed-dd

Buiudg |14 Bunidg
ve-&e veEd &Z-dd

juowabebuy

S} NSy ASAJNS Jjels

Aiobaie) Agq @duew.oliad |ed1403SIH




2.6y A|Buouis e | asuby |e10)| e sbessny sauby £|6uoils yiomiay — | sbedany ssuby |230 | yiomlaN — :pusba aull g 91241)

j0u op | ® | @a4besig A|Buouls

Buludg Buiidsg

I1ed

S S e S s

buds g4 bBulids
EsEZMiid=rr B

A19ies |ooyds

m | 9aubes|q

Buds  ||e4 Buuds
el Weed £ZE2

Buiads |4 bBuidsg
¥E-EZ Weed =ZEd

Aljehon

= | 3a.besiq 1eymawos

buds |4 bunds
|t e e S S A

uds  |e4  DBunds
Va2 ieEd S ve 22

Buie
uoIsIDaQ |BI0T

| 2246y 3RYMBWOS

Buudg ||e4 bBuLdsg
Yo-eZ: Yok EddE

!
!

Buiads g4 bBuuds
Y-ed: ¥dEe el

SIS 841778
diysuszniyi) [eqo|o

| 92.By m | smuby A]

buudsg |4 bHBunds
¥Z-E€ ¥2-Ed E£Z-2¢

Buuds g4 bBunds
Ve Vveétd £2-2¢

s2131unjJoddQ
jenbg

S1|Ns9y ASAJNS Juapnls

Aiobare) Ag @ouew.ojiad |BI1403SIH

AMOU

Buo.as = :pusba Jey) Jeg

buudsg ||e4 bBundsg
F2-EZ TZ-EE E2-2Z

&1
i
4]

buds g4 bunds
Pe-ed ¥e-ed Ed-ded

Juswabebug







IV. Four Corners Charter School Inc.
FY2023-24 Financial Statements
as of 3/31/2024



Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc.

Governmental Balance Sheet
March 31, 2024

Account
Number

OF1

GENERAL DEBT SERVICE CAPITAL PROJECTS [ SPECIAL REVENUE

OF2

Fund Types

OF4

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 5,448,465.97 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,901,170.97
Investments 1160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Taxes Receivable 1120 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Receivable 1130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest Receivable 1170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Reinsurer 1180 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Receivable 1210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Funds 1140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Agencies 1220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Items 1230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Assets 5,448,465.97 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,901,170.97
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Salaries, Benefits and Payroll Taxes Payable 2110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Payable 2120 135,572.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 135,572.17
Judgments Payable 2130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable-Retained 2150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Matured Interest Payable 2190 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sales Tax Payable 2260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Estimated Liability Self Insurance 2270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accrued Interest Payable 2210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Payable 2220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Agencies 2230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Funds 2160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Revenue 2410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Liabilities 135,572.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 135,572.17
FUND BALANCES

Total Fund Balances 2700 5,312,893.80 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,765,598.80

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5,448,465.97 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,901,170.97




GENERAL FUND

Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc. Budget Amounts Percentage
Revenue & Expenditures - Budget And Actual Account Original Current Actual of Current
March 31, 2024 Number Budget

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Federal Through State 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

State Sources 3300 7,215,505.82 7,462,354.00 6,070,536.65 81.35%

Local Sources 3400 20,000.00 20,000.00 41,720.57 208.60%

Total Revenues 7,235,505.82 7,482,354.00 6,112,257.22 81.69%

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 5,344,380.95 5,527,626.90 4,140,722.27 74.91%
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Board 7100 7,000.00 7,000.00 6,811.25 97.30%
General Administration 7200 1,175,583.87 1,215,494.10 837,663.35 68.92%
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1,055,651.00 1,081,515.00 809,917.67 74.89%
Fiscal Services 7500 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Maintenance of Plant 8100 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Tech Services 8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service 9200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Total Expenditures 7,752,615.82 8,001,636.00 5,795,114.54 72.42%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (517,110.00) (519,282.00) 317,142.68 -61.07%

Long-term Debt Proceeds & Sales of Capital Assets 3700 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 510,110.00 512,282.00 0.00

Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 510,110.00 512,282.00 0.00

SPECIAL ITEMS

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

FUND BALANCE

Net Change in Fund Balance (7,000.00) (7,000.00) 317,142.68

Fund Balance, July 01, 2023 2800 4,995,751.12 4,995,751.12 4,995,751.12

Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Balance, June 30, 2024 2700 4,988,751.12 4,988,751.12 5,312,893.80




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc. OF3 Budget Amounts Percentage
Revenue & Expenditures - Budget And Actual Account Original Current Actual of Current
March 31, 2024 Number Budget

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Federal Through State 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

State Sources 3300 510,110.00 512,282.00 394,255.00 76.96%

Local Sources 3400 0.00 0.00 58,450.00 0.00%
Total Revenues 510,110.00 512,282.00 452,705.00 88.37%

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Instruction 5000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Board 7100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
General Administration 7200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Tech Services 8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service 9200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Total Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 510,110.00 512,282.00 452,705.00 88.37%

Long-term Debt Proceeds & Sales of Capital Assets 3700 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers Out 9700 (510,110.00) (512,282.00) 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (510,110.00) (512,282.00) 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Net Change in Fund Balance 0.00 0.00 452,705.00

Fund Balance, July 01, 2023 2800 0.00 0.00 0.00

Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Balance, June 30, 2024 2700 0.00 0.00 452,705.00




Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc.

Governmental Balance Sheet
March 31, 2024

Account
Number

OF1

GENERAL DEBT SERVICE CAPITAL PROJECTS [ SPECIAL REVENUE

OF2

Fund Types

OF4

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 5,448,465.97 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,901,170.97
Investments 1160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Taxes Receivable 1120 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Receivable 1130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest Receivable 1170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Reinsurer 1180 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Receivable 1210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Funds 1140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Agencies 1220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Items 1230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Assets 5,448,465.97 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,901,170.97
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Salaries, Benefits and Payroll Taxes Payable 2110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Payable 2120 135,572.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 135,572.17
Judgments Payable 2130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable-Retained 2150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Matured Interest Payable 2190 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sales Tax Payable 2260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Estimated Liability Self Insurance 2270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accrued Interest Payable 2210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Payable 2220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Agencies 2230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Funds 2160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Revenue 2410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Liabilities 135,572.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 135,572.17
FUND BALANCES

Total Fund Balances 2700 5,312,893.80 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,765,598.80

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5,448,465.97 0.00 452,705.00 0.00 5,901,170.97




OSCEOLA COUNTY COMPONENT UNIT

General Fund

Four Corners Charter School, Inc. OF1 Budget Amounts
. . 2023-24 2023-24
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget Amendment 2 Function Amendment 1 Amendement 2 Difference
UFTE 1022.04 1034.37 12.33 %o
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 0.00
Federal Through State & Local 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Sources 3300 8,234,527.00 8,325,233.00 90,706.00
Local Sources 3400 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00
Total Revenues 8,284,527.00 8,375,233.00 90,706.00
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 6,276,560.95 6,951,149.70 674,588.75 10.75%
Student & Instructional Support Services 6000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administration Fees:
District Holdback Fee 7201 96,947.00 96,887.00 (60.00) -0.06%
Charter Holder 7202 0.00
Management Company 7203 1,235,179.05 1,249,356.30 14,177.25 1.15%
Other 7204 0.00
School Administration 7300 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1,081,515.00 1,081,515.00 0.00 0.00%
Fiscal Services 7500 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00
Total Expenditures 8,867,202.00 9,555,908.00 688,706.00 11.83%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (582,675.00) (1,180,675.00) (598,000.00) 12.93%
Loans Incurred 3720 0.00
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770 0.00
Transfers In 3600 605,675.00 605,675.00 0.00 0.00%
Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 605,675.00 605,675.00 0.00 0.00%
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 23,000.00 (575,000.00) (598,000.00)| -2600.00%
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2800 4,995,751.12 4,995,751.12 0.00 0.00%
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00
Fund Balance - End of Year 2700 5,018,751.12 4,420,751.12 (598,000.00) -11.92%
Per Student 8,056.95 8,048.60 (8.35)
Fund Balance:
Debt Service 1,038,683.75 23%
Maintenance Reserve 589,442.15 13%
Unassigned 2,792,625.22 63%
Total Fund Balance 4,420,751.12 100%

Notes:
Unassigned fund balance as a percentage of revenues:

31.10%




OSCEOLA COUNTY COMPONENT UNIT

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

Capital Projects
OF3 Budget Amounts

. . 2023-24 2023-24
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget Amendment 2 Function Amendment 1 Amendement 2 Difference
UFTE 1022.04 1034.37 12.33 %
Federal Direct 3100 0.00
Federal Through State & Local 3200 0.00
State Sources 3300 605,675.00 605,675.00 0.00 0.00%
Local Sources 3400 0.00
Total Revenues 605,675.00 605,675.00 0.00 0.00%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 0.00
Student & Instructional Support Services 6000 0.00
Board 7100 0.00
Administration Fees:
District Holdback Fee 7201 0.00
Charter Holder 7202 0.00
Management Company 7203 0.00
Other 7204 0.00
School Administration 7300 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 0.00
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00
Food Services 7600 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00
Total Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 605,675.00 605,675.00 0.00 0.00%
Loans Incurred 3720 0.00
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770 0.00
Transfers In 3600 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 (605,675.00) (605,675.00) 0.00 0.00%
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (605,675.00) (605,675.00) 0.00 0.00%
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2800 0.00 0.00 0.00
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891
Fund Balance - End of Year 2700 0.00 0.00 0.00




OSCEOLA COUNTY COMPONENT UNIT

General Fund

Four Corners Charter School, Inc. OF1 Budget Amounts
. . 2023-24 2023-24
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget Amendment 2 Function Amendment 1 Amendement 2 Difference
UFTE 1022.04 1034.37 12.33 %
Federal Direct 3100 0.00
Federal Through State & Local 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Sources 3300 8,234,527.00 8,325,233.00 90,706.00 1.10%
Local Sources 3400 50,000.00 55,000.00 5,000.00 10.00%
Total Revenues 8,284,527.00 8,380,233.00 95,706.00 1.16%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 6,276,560.95 7,009,599.70 733,038.75 11.68%
Student & Instructional Support Services 6000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administration Fees:
District Holdback Fee 7201 96,947.00 96,887.00 (60.00) -0.06%
Charter Holder 7202 0.00
Management Company 7203 1,235,179.05 1,249,356.30 14,177.25 1.15%
Other 7204 0.00
School Administration 7300 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1,081,515.00 1,081,515.00 0.00 0.00%
Fiscal Services 7500 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00
Total Expenditures 8,867,202.00 9,614,358.00 747,156.00 12.76%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (582,675.00) (1,234,125.00) (651,450.00) 13.92%
Loans Incurred 3720 0.00
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770 0.00
Transfers In 3600 605,675.00 664,125.00 58,450.00 9.65%
Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 605,675.00 664,125.00 58,450.00 9.65%
SPECIAL ITEMS
0.00
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 23,000.00 (570,000.00) (593,000.00)| -2578.26%
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2800 4,995,751.12 4,995,751.12 0.00 0.00%
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00
Fund Balance - End of Year 2700 5,018,751.12 4,425,751.12 (593,000.00) -11.82%
Per Student 8,056.95 8,048.60 (8.35)
Fund Balance:
Debt Service 1,038,683.75 23%
Maintenance Reserve 589,442.15 13%
Unassigned 2,797,625.22 63%
Total Fund Balance 4,425,751.12 100%

Notes:
Unassigned fund balance as a percentage of revenues:

30.93%




OSCEOLA COUNTY COMPONENT UNIT

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

Capital Projects
OF3 Budget Amounts

Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget Amendment 2 Function Amze(l)12d31;12e‘:1 ‘1 Angiz:ﬂ (2 Difference
UFTE 1022.04 1034.37 12.33 %
Federal Direct 3100 0.00
Federal Through State & Local 3200 0.00
State Sources 3300 605,675.00 605,675.00 0.00 0.00%
Local Sources 3400 58,450.00 58,450.00
Total Revenues 605,675.00 664,125.00 58,450.00 9.65%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 0.00
Student & Instructional Support Services 6000 0.00
Board 7100 0.00
Administration Fees:
District Holdback Fee 7201 0.00
Charter Holder 7202 0.00
Management Company 7203 0.00
Other 7204 0.00
School Administration 7300 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 0.00
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00
Food Services 7600 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00
Total Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 605,675.00 664,125.00 58,450.00 9.65%
Loans Incurred 3720 0.00
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770 0.00
Transfers In 3600 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 (605,675.00) (664,125.00) 58,450.00 -9.65%
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (605,675.00) (664,125.00) 58,450.00 -9.65%
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2800 0.00 0.00 0.00
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891
Fund Balance - End of Year 2700 0.00 0.00 0.00




IV. Four Corners Charter School Inc.
FY 2023-24 Audit and Program Cost
Report Engagement Letters for FCCS and
FCCS, Inc.



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Cori G. Cameron
Bob P. Marchewka
Ric Perez

Renee C. Varga
Richard F. Hayes
Frank J. Guida
John J. Rody, Jr.
Shawn M. Marshall

Winter Park, FL 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Suite 100

Phone: 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

N. Palm Beach, FL 33408

631 US Highway One
Suite 405
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Suite 201

Phone: 305-445-7956

American Institute of
Certified Public
Accountants

Florida Institute of

Certified Public
Accountants

April 9, 2024

Ms. Angela Barner

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

817 Bill Beck Blvd. Building 2000

Kissimmee, Florida 34744

Dear Ms. Barner:

Enclosed are the engagement letters for the 2024 audit and the 2024 AFR and cost
report compilations for Four Corners Charter School, Inc. Please have an authorized
representative sign the letter and return a copy to our office.

We want to continue to maintain our discounted fee schedule. You can help in this
process by doing the following:

e Provide all the items requested on the attached client assistance list on the first
day of scheduled field work.

¢ Provide the year-end financials and trial balance one week prior to fieldwork.

e Provide the requested documents in electronic format (i.e., Word, Excel, PDF)
We will email you to schedule the audit.
We appreciate your business and look forward to working with you.
Please call our office at 407-644-5811 with any questions.

Sincerely,
() K ol

Joe Krusick

Enclosures



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Cori G. Cameron
Bob P. Marchewka
Ric Perez

Renee C. Varga
Richard F. Hayes
Frank J. Guida
John J. Rody, Jr.
Shawn M. Marshall

Winter Park, FLL 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Suite 100

Phone: 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

N. Palm Beach, FL 33408
631 US Highway One
Suite 405

Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Suite 201

Phone: 305-445-7956

American Institute of
Certified Public
Accountants

Florida Institute of

Certified Public
Accountants

NATZ A

PAs AND ADVISORS
4.V A A L A

August 9, 2024

To the Board of Directors

Four Corners Charter School
817 Bill Beck Blvd. Building 2000
Kissimmee, FL 34744

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for Four Corners
Charter School (the “School”) for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Audit Scope and Objectives

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information, including the disclosures, which collectively comprise the
basic financial statements, of the School as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. Accounting
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain
required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis
(MD&A), to supplement the School’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the School’s RSI in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient appropriate
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by
GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2. Budgetary Comparison Information
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that
accompanies the School’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary
information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS,
and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report
combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements:

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards
2. Schedule of findings and questioned costs

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions about whether your financial statements are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP, and report on the fairness of



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 2

Audit Scope and Objectives (continued)

the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. The objectives also include reporting on:

e Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

e Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance
with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a direct and
material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the
provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s)
in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such
opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination
of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures
to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting
waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some material
misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed
in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial
misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material
errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform
the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility
as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not
engaged as auditors.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts and
direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of
the engagement.



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 3

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit (continued)
We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:

According to GAAS, significant risks include management override of controls, and GAAS presumes that revenue
recognition is a significant risk. Accordingly, we have considered these as significant risks. In addition, related party
transactions were identified as a significant risk.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.
Audit Procedures—Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of internal control,
sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of
certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters
that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than
would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report
on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness of
the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with
compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than
would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report
on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated
under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we will perform tests of the School’'s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and
agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion
on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to
Government Auditing Standards.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards applicable
to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in
the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the School’s major programs. For federal programs that are included in the Compliance Supplement, our
compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement
identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the School’s
compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to
the Uniform Guidance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for (1) designing,
implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls
over federal awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and
objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government
programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and
financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems
designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also
responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 4

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit (continued)

financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for compliance with applicable laws and
regulations (including federal statutes), rules, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award
agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor
has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information.

You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, all
financial records, and related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information
(including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers); and for the evaluation of whether there are
any conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to
continue as a going concern for the 12 months after the financial statements date or shortly thereafter (for example,
within an additional three months if currently known). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements,
such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions,
and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information
as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance; (3) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit; and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from
you about the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance
with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us
in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate,
to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or
others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. You are also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to

remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report.
Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor
noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action
when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up
and take corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a
separate corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review at the
start of fieldwork.

You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the compliance
requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash
assistance received, and COVID-19 related concepts, such as lost revenues, if applicable) in conformity with the
Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document
that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree
to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that
includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that
(1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is
stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have
disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged to
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). You agree to include our report on
the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the
supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 5

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit (continued)

supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the
written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance
with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in
accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior
period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit
Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or
studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and format for providing
that information.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, which includes journal entries, account reconciliations, line-
item groupings, and lease calculations, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes of the School in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the Uniform Guidance
based on information provided by you. Additionally, we will prepare and compile, from the information you provide, the
AFR/ Program Cost Report of the School, as of June 30, 2024. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under
Governmental Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are
limited to the financial statements, which includes journal entries, account reconciliations, line-item groupings, and lease
calculations, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes services previously defined. We, in our sole
professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed
as assuming management responsibilities.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statements, which includes journal entries,
account reconciliations, line-item groupings, and lease calculations, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and
related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them.
Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management,
with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept
responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and
will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that
summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings,
auditor’s reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.
We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting
package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s reports or nine months
after the end of the audit period.

We will provide copies of our reports to the School; however, management is responsible for distribution of the reports
and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential information,
copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 6

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other (continued)

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC (Moss Krusick) and
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the Cognizant or Grantor Agency
or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for
purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify
you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of
Moss Krusick personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein
to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date
or for any additional period requested by the Cognizant or Grantor Agency. If we are aware that a federal awarding
agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Joe Krusick and Ed Moss are the engagement partners and are responsible for supervising the engagement and signing
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. We expect to begin our audit in August 2024 and to issue our
reports no later than September 30, 2024.

Our fee for these services will not exceed $19,000 (audit — $15,500, single audit — $5,000). The fee for the School
includes $500 for the AFR/ Program Cost Report. Our fee is net of an in-kind donation of $2,000. If required and if
requested, we will also prepare the School’'s Form 990 for a fee of $2,000, Our invoices for these fees will be rendered
each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment,
our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not
completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-
pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel
and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If significant
additional time is necessary, we will keep you informed of any problems we encounter and our fees will be adjusted
accordingly.

Fees for additional services (i.e., assistance with adoption of new accounting or auditing standards) would be billed at
our discounted hourly rates and may be subject to a change order.

We have committed staff to scheduled fieldwork dates. If there are delays in receiving items on the client assistance list
(i.e., at least 85% of the items, including the trial balance, are not received at the start of fieldwork), we reserve the right
to reschedule fieldwork, which may impact deadlines. An additional fee of 20% will also apply.

You have requested that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any subsequent
review reports received during the contract period. Accordingly, our 2021 peer review report accompanies this letter.

The School agrees not to make any employment solicitation, oral or written, to any Moss Krusick employee without the
express consent of Ed Moss, Managing Partner. In the event such permission is granted and direct employment is
contracted by the School, Moss Krusick will be entitled to an employment fee of 100% of the employee’s current salary
with Moss Krusick, payable immediately upon employment of the Moss Krusick employee.

Reporting

We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the Board of Directors
of the School. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the
results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions,
add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary,
withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we
may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal
control over compliance will state that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 7

Reporting (continued)

the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the School and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant
terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement
as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Board of Directors of Four Corners Charter School.

Management signature:

Title:

Governance signature:

Title:




HOLLAND & REILLY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
601 NORTH FERN CREEK
SUITE 200
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32803-4839

(407) 894-6803
fax (407) 896-3044

DAVID S. HOLLAND, CPA AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
THOMAS F. REILLY, CPA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

May 24, 2021

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control

To the Partners of Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC,
and the Peer Review Committee of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Moss,
Krusick & Associates, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended July 31, 2020. Our peer review
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a
System Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The
summary also includes an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported
in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to
determine a peer review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide
the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable
professional standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions
to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with
professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality
control, if any.

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the
firm’s compliance therewith based on our review.



Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing
Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act, and an audit of an employee
benefit plan.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by
the firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Moss,
Krusick & Associates, LLC in effect for the year ended July 31, 2020, has been suitably designed
and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a
rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC has received a
peer review rating of pass.

Mgtk $ G

Holland & Reilly



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL
CLIENT ASSISTANCE LIST
06/30/2024

Electronic or PDF copies are encouraged and can be sent prior to fieldwork.

COMPLIANCE

Board

All Board Minutes through the date the audit is complete

Sample posting of the board meeting announcement

Names of all board members for the current year and fingerprint results
Proof of required governance training for all board members

Employees
Updated employee roster for current year
Sample letter to parents notifying them that their child's teacher is out of field

Students
Updated student roster for current year highlighting ESE and ESOL students

If Lottery is held

Listing of the lottery results

Sample of 2 accepted student applications
Sample of 2 rejected student applications

Operations
Certificates of insurance for:
Commercial general liability
Automobile liability insurance if applicable
School workers' compensation/employers' liability insurance
School leaders' errors & omissions liability
Highlight any changes in coverage from prior year
Annual inspections for:
Fire Marshal
Health Department
Sample of 2 incident reports
Certificate of Occupancy
2023-2024 School Calendar
2023-2024 Student and Employee Handbooks
Sample current advertisement for the school

Copies of all signed agreements executed (including management agreements, charter agreements,

leases, loans, contracts, etc.)
Transportation Agreement and Food Service Agreement
Accounting Policies including processes for cash disbursements, cash receipts, payroll, and bank

TESTING

Trial Balance/Budget

Final trial balance (in Excel)

Board Approved Original and Final Budget (in Excel)

Control Testing

Access to all general journal entries along with evidence of support and proper authorization
Listing of all cash disbursements with supporting documentation through June 30, 2024
Listing of all VOID checks with defaced check

Listing of current check signers (July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024)

Cash

Bank reconciliation at June 30, 2024 for all accounts
Bank statement as of June 30, 2024 for all accounts
July 2024 bank activity

DATE
NEEDED

DATE
RECEIVED

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

Page 1 of 2



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL
CLIENT ASSISTANCE LIST
06/30/2024

Accounts Receivable

A/R aged invoice report as of June 30, 2024

Reconciliation to agree the A/R aged invoice report to the trial balance
Listing of all cash receipts after June 30, 2024 to the end of field work

Intercompany/Related Party Activity

Worksheet that breaks out the due to management company by balance due for management fees, working
capital, and operating expenses and contributions showing additions, payments, contributions and any

forgiveness of debt, if applicable

Prepaid Expenses
Detailed worksheet of prepaid expenses that agrees to the trial balance

Property, Plant & Equipment

Listing of capital additions and deletions not expensed

Access to all support for the capital additions

Access to G/L detail for all Repairs and Maintenance accounts

Accounts Payable

Aged payables at June 30, 2024

Reconciliation to agree the A/P report to the trial balance

Listing of all cash disbursements after June 30, 2024 to the end of field work

Accrued Expenses

Detailed accrued salary and benefit entry for year end
Explanation of the process used for the accrual

Listing of payroll schedule (dates of and within each pay period)
Listing of all bonuses paid out and dates of these payments
Access to payroll reports from July 1, 2023 to date of field work

Equity
Reconciliation of equity accounts to the prior year financial statements

Revenue and Expenses

Management fee calculation worksheet based on requirements of management agreement
Copy of any rental agreements (building, office equipment, portable, etc.)

Access to all credit card statements with all supporting receipts

Listing of all reimbursements with all supporting receipts

Copy of all attorneys contact information for confirmations

Commitments, Contingencies & Other
Copy of insurance claims that have exceeded coverage
Listing of any related parties

Program Costs Reports

Compilation of information by teacher and number of students (we will provide template to be completed)

General Items

Copy of any new contracts entered in the CY

Copy of any amendments to charter, operating or any other agreements
Subsequent TB, General Ledger, and Internal Financials

Complete the enclosed fraud questionnaire

DATE
NEEDED

DATE
RECEIVED

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

8/5/2024

Page 2 of 2



Form 990 Questionnaire

PLEASE PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FOR YOUR 2024 TAX FORM 990:

1. Did the organization engage in any activity not reported on a previously filed Form 990/990 EZ? If yes,
describe the activity?

2.  Were any changes made to the organizing or governing documents or any of the policies or procedures?

3. For contributions of $5,000 or more, please provide the names, addresses and amount contributed
of the donors. If more room is needed, please attach additional page with all required information.
AMOUNT
DONOR NAME ADDRESS CONTRIBUTED

4. How many W-2’s were issued for the organization?
5. How many 1099’s were issued for the organization?
6. Approximately how many individuals volunteered with the organization?

7. Has the organization been notified of any changes to previous returns by any taxing authority? If yes,
please provide copies all correspondence.

8. Please provide a list of the organization’s board of directors, including name, title and average hours
worked per week.

9. Please provide a copy of W-2(s) for any officers that were paid by the organization.

10. Did the organization receive any in-kind contributions? If so, please provide detail.



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL
Fraud Questionnaire
June 30, 2024

PLEASE ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS CONCERNING FRAUD AND ABUSE AFFECTING
THE ORGANIZATION:

1. Do you have knowledge of any actual fraud or suspected fraud affecting the organization, including
knowledge of any noncompliance with laws and regulations, of any illegal payments or acts, or of
financial abuse by management?

2. What are the specific fraud risks within the organization, including any account balances or
transaction classes that may be susceptible to fraud?

3. What programs and controls has the organization implemented to address identified fraud risks or
otherwise help prevent, deter, and detect fraud and abuse, and how are those programs and controls
are monitored?

4. How do you communicate to employees the importance of ethical behavior and appropriate business
practices?

5. Do you have any recommendations for improvements in financial and accounting processes and
controls?

Signature / Title Printed Name

Date



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Cori G. Cameron
Bob P. Marchewka
Ric Perez

Renee C. Varga
Richard F. Hayes
Frank J. Guida
John J. Rody, Jr.
Shawn M. Marshall

Winter Park, FLL 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Suite 100

Phone: 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

N. Palm Beach, FL 33408
631 US Highway One
Suite 405

Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Suite 201

Phone: 305-445-7956

American Institute of
Certified Public
Accountants

Florida Institute of

Certified Public
Accountants

NATZ A

PAs AND ADVISORS
4.V A A L A

April 9, 2024

To the Board of Directors
Four Corners Charter School
817 Bill Beck Blvd., Bldg 2000
Kissimmee, FL 34744

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and understanding of the services we are to provide
Four Corners Charter School (a non-profit corporation) for the year ended June 30, 2024.

You have requested that we prepare the financial statements of Four Corners Charter School,
which comprise the annual financial report and related cost report for the year ended June 30,
2024 and perform a compilation engagement with respect to those financial statements.

We will assist your bookkeeper in adjusting the books of accounts with the objective that he will
be able to prepare a working trial balance from which financial statements can be prepared. Your
bookkeeper will provide us with a detailed trial balance and any supporting schedules we require.

Our Responsibilities
The objective of our engagement is to—

1) prepare financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the School District of
Osceola County, which differs from generally accepted accounting principles, based on
information provided by you and

2) apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of financial
statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material
modifications that should be made to the financial statements in order for them to be in
accordance with the requirements of the School District of Osceola County.

We will conduct our compilation engagement in accordance with the Statements on Standards
for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS) promulgated by the Accounting and Review
Services Committee of the AICPA and comply with applicable professional standards, including
the AICPA’s Code of Professional Conduct, and its ethical principles of integrity, objectivity,
professional competence, and due care, when performing the bookkeeping services, preparing
the financial statements, and performing the compilation engagement.

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you
will provide to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing
an opinion or a conclusion. Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide
any assurance on the financial statements.

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any financial statement
misstatements, including those caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing
within the entity or noncompliance with laws and regulations.

We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or
take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities since
performing those procedures or taking such action would impair our independence.



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 2

Your Responsibilities

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand that our
role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the School District of Osceola
County and assist you in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
the School District of Osceola County. You have the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to
our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARS:

1) The selection of the basis of accounting as the financial reporting framework to be applied in the
preparation of the financial statements.

2) The preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the
School District of Osceola County.

3) The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

4) The prevention and detection of fraud.
5) To ensure that the School complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

6) The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information,
including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement.

7) To provide us with—

e access to all information of which you are aware is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters.

e additional information that we may request from you for the purpose of the compilation engagement.

e unrestricted access to persons within the School of whom we determine it necessary to make
inquiries.

You are also responsible for all management decisions and responsibilities and for designating an individual
with suitable skill, knowledge, and experience to oversee our assisting in annual financial statement
preparation, which includes journal entries, preparing account reconciliations, line-item groupings, and
assisting in preparation of the AFR and cost report. You are responsible for evaluating the adequacy and
results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for such services.

Our Report

As part of our engagement, we will issue a report that will state that we did not audit or review the financial
statements and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on
them. There may be circumstances in which the report differs from the expected form and content. If, for any
reason, we are unable to complete the compilation of your financial statements, we will not issue a report on
such statements as a result of this engagement.

You agree to include our accountant’s compilation report in any document containing financial statements
that indicates that we have performed a compilation engagement on such financial statements and, prior to
the inclusion of the report, to ask our permission to do so.

Other Relevant Information

Joe Krusick is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
report or authorizing another individual to sign it.

We will assign seasoned professionals to your engagement, and recognizing the demand for talented
qualified personnel, it is understood that should you choose to hire any Moss Krusick personnel during an
engagement, or up to twelve months after completion of an engagement, you agree to compensate Moss
Krusick an amount equal to the individual’s annual compensation for the previous twelve-month period.



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 3

The fee for these services will be $500. The fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and
the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during work performed. If significant
additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur
additional costs. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are
payable on presentation.

You agree to hold us harmless and to release, indemnify, and defend us from any liability or costs, including
attorney’s fees, resulting from management’s knowing misrepresentations to us.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call 407-644-5811.
If you acknowledge and agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the
enclosed copy and return it to us.

Sincerely,

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

Acknowledged:
Four Corners Charter School

Name/Title

Date



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Cori G. Cameron
Bob P. Marchewka
Ric Perez

Renee C. Varga
Richard F. Hayes
Frank J. Guida
John J. Rody, Jr.
Shawn M. Marshall

Winter Park, FL 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Suite 100

Phone: 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

N. Palm Beach, FL 33408
631 US Highway One
Suite 405

Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Suite 201

Phone: 305-445-7956

American Institute of
Certified Public
Accountants

Florida Institute of

Certified Public
Accountants

April 9, 2024

Ms. Angela Barner

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

817 Bill Beck Blvd. Building 2000

Kissimmee, Florida 34744

Dear Ms. Barner:

Enclosed is the engagement letter for the 2024 audit of the financial statements of Four
Corners Charter School, Inc. Please have an authorized representative sign the letter
and return a copy to our office.

We want to continue to maintain our discounted fee schedule. You can help in this
process by doing the following:

e Provide all the items requested on the attached client assistance list on the first
day of scheduled field work.

e Provide the year-end financials and trial balance one week prior to fieldwork.

o Provide the requested documents in electronic format (i.e., Word, Excel, PDF).
We will email you to schedule the audit.
We appreciate your business and look forward to working with you.
Please call our office at 407-644-5811 with any questions.

Sincerely,
() K ol

Joe Krusick

Enclosures



Partners

W. Ed Moss, Jr.
Joe M. Krusick
Cori G. Cameron
Bob P. Marchewka
Ric Perez

Renee C. Varga
Richard F. Hayes
Frank J. Guida
John J. Rody, Jr.
Shawn M. Marshall

Winter Park, FLL 32789
501 S. New York Ave.
Suite 100

Phone: 407-644-5811
www.mosskrusick.com

N. Palm Beach, FL 33408

631 US Highway One
Suite 405
Phone: 561-848-9300

Miami Lakes, FL 33016
7900 NW 155th Street
Suite 201

Phone: 305-445-7956

American Institute of
Certified Public
Accountants

Florida Institute of
Certified Public
Accountants

NATZ A

PAs AND ADVISORS
4.V A A L A

April 9, 2024

To the Board of Directors

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
817 Bill Beck Blvd. Building 2000
Kissimmee, FL 34744

Dear Members of the Board:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Four Corners
Charter School, Inc. (the “Corporation”) for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Audit Scope and Objectives

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise
the basic financial statements of the Corporation as of and for the year ended June 30,
2024. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s
discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the Corporation’s basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will
apply certain limited procedures to the Corporation’s RSI in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is
required by GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be
audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis
2) Budgetary Comparison Information

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion about whether your financial statements
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP; and report on the
fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions,
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable
user made based on the financial statements.

The objectives also include reporting on internal control over financial reporting and
compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 2

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and the standards for financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include
tests of your accounting records of the Corporation and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us
to express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4)
violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by
management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and
abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures to
detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of
detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed
in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of
any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention.
We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations
that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period
covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with
selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request written representations from your
attorneys as part of the engagement.

We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:

According to GAAS, significant risks include management override of controls, and GAAS presumes that
revenue recognition is a significant risk. Accordingly, we have considered these as significant risks. In addition,
related party transactions were identified as a significant risk.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.
Audit Procedures—Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of internal
control, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. Tests of controls may be
performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting
errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements
resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an
opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 3

issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide
assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Accordingly, we
will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA
professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Corporation’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for
designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and
objectives are met; following laws and regulations: and ensuring that management and financial information is
reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to
achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also
responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related
information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information
from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers); and for the evaluation of whether there are any conditions
or events, considered in aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as
a going concern for the 12 months after the financial statements date or shortly thereafter (for example, within
an additional three months if currently known). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party
relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine
it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written
representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud,
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management,
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees,
former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring
that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 4

taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts or grant agreements, that we report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to
report on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates
that we have reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial
statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed,
the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings
and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives
discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us
corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits,
attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing
management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned
corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, which includes journal entries, account
reconciliations, line-item groupings, lease calculations, and related notes of the Corporation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on the information provided
by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the
services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial
statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to
perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes
and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that
you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have
accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the
adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

We will provide copies of our reports to the Corporation; however, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC (“Moss
Krusick”) and constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit
documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to a
state or local agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S.
Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to
carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Moss Krusick personnel. Furthermore, upon request,



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 5

we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other
governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report
release date or for any additional period requested by the regulators. If we are aware that a federal awarding
agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for
guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Joe Krusick is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. We expect to begin our audit in August 2024 and to
issue our reports no later than October 20, 2024.

Our audit fee for these services for 2024 will be $8,000. Our fee is net of an in-kind donation of $2,000. If
required and if requested, we will also prepare the Corporation’s Form 990 for a fee of $2,000.

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.
If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been
completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the
date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional
time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional
costs.

We have committed staff to scheduled fieldwork dates. If there are delays in receiving items on the client
assistance list (i.e., at least 85% of the items, including the trial balance, are not received at the start of
fieldwork), we reserve the right to reschedule fieldwork, which may impact deadlines. An additional fee of 20%
will also apply.

Fees for additional services (i.e., assistance with adoption of new accounting standards, single audit for
CARES Act, ESSER, or other funding, etc.) would be billed at our discounted rates and may be subject to a
change order.

You have requested that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any
subsequent reports received during the contract period. Accordingly, our 2021 peer review report
accompanies this letter.

Our audit engagement ends on delivery of our audit report. Any follow-up services that might be required will
be a separate, new engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a
new, specific engagement letter for that service.

The Corporation agrees not to make any employment solicitation, oral or written, to any Moss Krusick
employee without the express consent of Ed Moss, Managing Partner. In the event such permission is
granted and direct employment is contracted by the Corporation, Moss Krusick will be entitled to an
employment fee of 100% of the employee’s current salary with Moss Krusick, payable immediately upon
employment of the Moss Krusick’s employee.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Corporation’s financial statements. Our
report will be addressed to those charged with governance of the Corporation. Circumstances may arise in
which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending
on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate
section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor's report, or if necessary,
withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this
engagement.



To the Board of Directors
April 9, 2024
Page 6

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will state
(1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance,
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control
on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The report will
also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the
Corporation is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we
will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Corporation and believe this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you
agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it
to us.

Very truly yours,
Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

Signature:

Title:




HOLLAND & REILLY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
601 NORTH FERN CREEK
SUITE 200
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32803-4839

(407) 894-6803
fax (407) 896-3044

DAVID S. HOLLAND, CPA AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
THOMAS F. REILLY, CPA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

May 24, 2021

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control

To the Partners of Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC,
and the Peer Review Committee of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Moss,
Krusick & Associates, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended July 31, 2020. Our peer review
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a
System Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The
summary also includes an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported
in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to
determine a peer review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide
the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable
professional standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions
to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with
professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality
control, if any.

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the
firm’s compliance therewith based on our review.



Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing
Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act, and an audit of an employee
benefit plan.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by
the firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Moss,
Krusick & Associates, LLC in effect for the year ended July 31, 2020, has been suitably designed
and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a
rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC has received a
peer review rating of pass.

Mgtk $ G

Holland & Reilly



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
CLIENT ASSISTANCE LIST
JUNE 30, 2024

Electronic or PDF copies are encouraged and can be sent prior to fieldwork.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

1

2

Copies of bank reconciliations and bank statements for all cash accounts maintained as of June 30, 2024.

Copies of July 31, 2024 bank statements for all cash accounts maintained.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS

3

4

5

6

Aged Accounts Receivable report as of June 30, 2024 and support for deposits received after June 30, 2024 (deposit slip,
description of what receipt is for, etc.).

Cash receipts journal from July 1, 2024 through date of fieldwork.
Provide analysis of prepaid management fees for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Provide roll forward of fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 2024.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

7 Aged Accounts Payable report or other detail of accounts payable as of June 30, 2024, if any. Access to cancelled checks and

8

invoices paid after June 30, 2024 to the date of fieldwork.

Cash disbursement journal from July 1, 2024 through date of fieldwork.

REVENUE

9

10

Final FEFP Invoice for the year ended June 30, 2024

Revenue and Expenditure reconciliaiton

EXPENSES

11 Provide the cash disbursements journal for July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 and access to all supporting documentation including

invoices paid and cancelled checks.

OTHER

12

13

14

15

16

Copies of original approved budget and final approved budget for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Copies of all minutes of Board of Directors meetings held since July 1, 2023 and a list of Board of Directors members including
names, titles, addresses, and average number of hours worked for the Corporation per week.

Complete the enclosed fraud questionnaire — Angela and two Board members should each independently complete separate
questionnaires.

Provide us with an analysis of all legal expenses for the year ended June 30, 2024 including payee, description or nature of
service provided, amount, etc.

Prepare letter(s) to attorney(s) requesting lawyer(s) to provide legal representations for the year ended June 30, 2024. We will
provide a template of the letter.

DATE
NEEDED

DATE
RECEIVED

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

8/19/2024

Page 1 of 1



FOUR CORNERS CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
Fraud Questionnaire
June 30, 2024

PLEASE ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS CONCERNING FRAUD AND ABUSE AFFECTING
THE ORGANIZATION:

1. Do you have knowledge of any actual fraud or suspected fraud affecting the organization, including
knowledge of any noncompliance with laws and regulations, of any illegal payments or acts, or of
financial abuse by management?

2. What are the specific fraud risks within the organization, including any account balances or
transaction classes that may be susceptible to fraud?

3. What programs and controls has the organization implemented to address identified fraud risks or
otherwise help prevent, deter, and detect fraud and abuse, and how are those programs and controls
are monitored?

4. How do you communicate to employees the importance of ethical behavior and appropriate business
practices?

5. Do you have any recommendations for improvements in financial and accounting processes and
controls?

Signature / Title Printed Name

Date



Form 990 Questionnaire

PLEASE PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FOR YOUR 2024 TAX FORM 990:

1. Did the organization engage in any activity not reported on a previously filed Form 990/990 EZ? If yes,
describe the activity?

2.  Were any changes made to the organizing or governing documents or any of the policies or procedures?

3. For contributions of $5,000 or more, please provide the names, addresses and amount contributed
of the donors. If more room is needed, please attach additional page with all required information.
AMOUNT
DONOR NAME ADDRESS CONTRIBUTED

4. How many W-2’s were issued for the organization?
5. How many 1099’s were issued for the organization?
6. Approximately how many individuals volunteered with the organization?

7. Has the organization been notified of any changes to previous returns by any taxing authority? If yes,
please provide copies all correspondence.

8. Please provide a list of the organization’s board of directors, including name, title and average hours
worked per week.

9. Please provide a copy of W-2(s) for any officers that were paid by the organization.

10. Did the organization receive any in-kind contributions? If so, please provide detail.



Ma1AYY dueuL] FTX €O -
SuneradQ [00Ydg 13)1BYD) SIUIOD) INOT “A]



%8 vz
%0 -
%0 -
%0 S¢

%l 8

P B BB

r4%:5:14%
2v'0LL
92Z°10S
1108
120°)

H NH BB

9L 0SL
VI 4171
922°10S
2508
G0}

BN NN

%SS-
%0
%0
%0
%l

(880‘¥91) $
- $
- $
(13 $
8

(880°%91)

(88¥°262) $
12v°0LL $
922°40S $
L10°‘8 $
120}

(282°829)

(9251 9v)
12v°0LL
92Z°10S

z50°8
GE0°L

(p2£261)

N B BB

aouejeg pung paubisseun

spun4 paniasay

aouejeg pun4 aAnejnwng Bujuuibag
juspnig Jad ey

jusawijjoiugy

aouejeg pund ui abuey 1aN

y2eiLL

- vee'LL

%b- (Lo1‘88g) $
%9- (

%92~ (9e8'vLL)
%1~ (

%S¢~ (

%Y Log'ee
%0 -

%0 9es
%8¢~ (1L92'02)
%Y 109'Z€E
%61 ziv's
%2e- (¥SS°2LL)
%2~ (¥81'08)

%V GZE'66€ $
- 05¥'802

%86 88L}1

%9 69€'26

Lsz'e
(L10'g)

%6¢€
%€~

(822'cL)
952001

%~
%l

abuey? 9, abueyn ¢

Z 19bpng papuswly 0} 9dUBHEA

(288°L61)

(288°L61)

L96‘vLL0L $

L1622
LLL'SYY
16V'€82°C
1102SC
44172
7
L€6°€99
682'GL
6G1°0€L
129'81L
9¥8'GES
89/ LY.Ly

vio‘cesol $

0
000°Ck
8/8v8Y'L

9€e'8
089°0L}

€56°L19
lze'6ee's $

Z 18bpng
papuswy

(z99°081)

290°€0LLL  $

gze'ere
755095
G0L'G0EC
GEG'LYE
LI6'YLL
(74
LOY'€S9
050°96
8565269
661Gl
00%°€59
256°128'Y

66€'ce6'0L  $

0S¥'802
88.°€C
Ly2'L1S)

98¥'LL
699°G91

619509
¥80°0€E'8 $

€ 19bpng
papuawy

%6-

%CE-
%S¢C-
%"
%S
%"
%0
%0
%6}~
%L~
%01~
%0¢-
%~

%L

%LCL
%ccl

%6€
%L~

%€
%~

abueyy ¢,

(880°¢91)

(208‘829) $

(8ve'se)
(965'08)
(Y22'2€)
0z¥'ol
(282'01)
¥61)
€8l LL)
G85°/€)
£62°1)
06€°L2)

(
(
(
(
(
(920°26€)

6LL'VLS $

9S¥°L0}
026°9SY

891°C
(8¥2'21)

zeL'T)
(808°‘0%)

abueyn ¢
zi8bpng

PapuswWly QLA O} 9oUBHEA
¥20Z/1.€/S Papu3 poliad 8y} Jo4

|ooyog Jajeys si1auliod Ino4-§H04
pajepijosuo) - Joday sisAjeuy asueliep

(282°829)

618°G89°2L $

€¥6'601
VAZA: 1A
G6E'80L'L
88€'G0T
912'06S
VL
75888y
€¥9'65
G0E'€SS
906°C}
¥80'76€
192'¥82'¢

Tes'LS0°L  $

0
000°6
6Y6'v.E

L6¥'S
YrS9eL

8LEVEY
041°260°9 $

2 1ebpng
papuawy QLA

(r2£261)

929'v9c’s

L6Z'GyL
£78'86€
69L°9vL'L
896761
€0G°19G
1L
8¥0'68Y
9280
068065
66171
ViV LY
€7€'189°¢C

1§2°TL8°L
0

9sv'0LL
698'1£8

899°L
96.°8LL

ObL'Liy
19€'950°9

Sjenjdv dlA

dx3 1910 AdY JO (}21y9Q)/SS9IXT

sasuadx3 |ejol

99|AI8S Ajunwwo)
jue|d JO @oUBUBJUIB
jue|d jo uonesado
S99IAJ8S uolepodsuel] |idnd
S90IAIBS [BJUSD
S92IAIBS POO4
S90IAIBS |e9S!
uolnisinboe pue sajjjioe4
uopessiuiwpy [00Yyos
pJeog
$99IA18S Hoddng uoionJjsu|
uofjonusu|
sasuadxgy

SanuaAdy |ejol

BNUBASY Sjuels) |eo0T
BNUBASY Sjuels) alels
BNUBASY Sjuels) |esapa

S921N0S 9NUAAJY |e1dadg
BW0odU| }saJlau|
sanuanay weibold Jayi0

S921N0G dNUAAIY J3Y10
AepnQ [enden
dd434

$921Nn0g 3jels

SONUBADY

vsn)

STOOHDS HHLAVHD

> 4

[




%e-
%0
%¥6
%0

(¥8108)

098
avl
(098)
(900°1)
(£69'71)

%18-
%ce-
%0

%8

%S -
%¥ee-
%S.16-
%19
%6~
%811~

£26°LL
(00£2)
(196'81)
(zee12)
£00°CL
(€L€'€9)
(£09°0€)
(009)
108'62
(22£'s9)
(9z6'c€)
81¥'G9
255
£90'6Z
£ee'9

%8
%CEe-
%91~
%L€
%0
%6€
%0

%V GZE'66€ $
- 05¥'802

%86 88}l

%9 69€'26

1gz'e
(952'%)
(ss2)

%6€
%€-
%085~

(82'2))
(161°2)
L6201

%C-
%
%l

abuey) 9, abuey) ¢

Z jobpng papusuly 0} 99UBLIEA

89L LYLY
0020l
GL6
916662
(g16)
vzl
06€°29
256
8€€'GS )
aa:]”
0S8'G
€€z
v.1v'6lL
9€9'G09
Z¥9'0¢2

ZyL 98e
129'€LL
186'vLC
LrL'6LL
00L°192
6YEv9
G60°2GL°)

vLo‘cesolL

0
000°Ck
8/8'v8Y'L

9€z'8
2LL0LL
805

€G6°L19
80S'8) 1
618°0LL°8

2 1¥ebpng
papusawy

756'128'Y
0020}
G5
111662
(g9)
AT
18028
256
9lLy'eyl
6vL12
L18've
Y9512
zLY'9
600659
621G
005
GEE'95E
¥56'822
£16'8¥Z
ezl'ell
81509/
982'6¢
292°0S2°)

$ 66£226°0L $

05802
88.°€C
Lv2'LIG°)

98Y'LL
9lv's9l
€6¢

G/9'509
LLE9LL
$ L9l'ciz'g $

€ 196png papusuwy

%eL- (920°26€) 192'v82'
%0 = 0020}
%1551 (099'G52) 98%'91
= (098) (g16)
%18~ (900°1) ove'L
%81~ (ec6°6) ZL6'eS
%0 = 256
%91~ (6€S2)) 65€°08
%G b= (00£2) 618l
%YLE- (ost'zt) Gee's
%0 = €62
%62 808°L 00€‘9
%8- (0g8°2€) €20'8Y
S (886°Lt) =
= (003) =
%t~ (¥9z°1L1) Gzl'e9z
%9€- (010°99) 9¢/'/S1
%6~ (81z'9l) 6.1'€8l
%6¥ 60€°09 816'czl
%0 chb'l Y0€°LLG
%8 122'G 697'6C
%L~ (656°9) 996'0LE°L
%L 6LL'VLS $ 2eS'l50°L
= = 0
%1211 9G+'101L 0006
%22 026'951 6V6'7.€
%6€ 891°C L6¥'G
%E L= (g65°21) 8El'9gl
%88~ (eg1) 90%
%E zeL'T) 8.E'vEY
%L~ (09¢) 186'62
%1~ (8¥¥'0p) Z81°290'9
abuey) 9, abuey) ¢ z196png
Z19bpng papuswy LA
papuswy LA O} @dueLiep

¥202/1€/€ papul] polad ayj o4
Jooyss Jayeyd si18ulo) In04-S9H04
pajepijosuo) — jioday sisAjeuy asuelep

$

€ve‘189°c
00Z°0L

9€12Le
(g9)
AT
G¥8'c9
256
86826
6v112
v.L2'GL
£ee
£67'Y
£G8'G8Y
886'LY
005
68€'V.2
avl'cle
16€'661
609°'c9
198'G/G
8617
GZ6'LLE'L

LG2'TLS L

0
9GY'0LL
698°L€8

8G9°L
£vS'8Ll
€6¢

0LV Lty
129°62
¥€.4'920°9

sjenjdv dlA

$

uononssu| |ejol
weibold Jayoes | peaT epuolq
alemyos - Jajndwo)
alemplieH - siendwo)
(deguopN) azemyos 18)ndwod)
(deguop) asempieH J8indwo)
uoponsul - d3dS pajoenuo)
sjeuaje|y Bunsa

S9SUSJIT [eUOIONIISU|
slayoes] a|gewnsuon
SjuUapNIS 9|qEWNSUOD
SY)0o0gIXa ]

S99 [BUOISSB)0Id JaYIO
sjjouag @ saxe|

Buuoyny

snuog

puadng

saply/uoddng Jayi0
slayoea] anisqans Ajleq
|euonon.su| - sapiy

sqnS jusuewlad

uoneonp3 [e1ads/3s3
slayoea |

uonoanssu|

sasuadxg

SanuaAay [ejol

BaNUBASY Sjuels) [BO0T
anuaAay sjuels) ajels
BNUBADY SjUBIS) |BIOpaS
$82IN0G SNUAAY |el1dadg

awWoou| }salsu|

anNuUBABY 8Jedlaly pue aiojeg
8NUBARY 80IAIBS P00
S92IN0G aNUBAJY 13410

anuanay AepnQ |eyden
uonenodsuel] Juspnig
Juepn)s / uoneyde) sjels
$824N0G 9)e)S
SONUBAIY

vs)

STOOHODS d4LAVHD

(& 4

‘l




%0
%6
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0

%82-
%0

%9
%0

%v
%€
%~
%€~
%¥e

%€
%9¢-
%19~
%L
%0
%Cl

%61
%98~
%0¢€

%2e-
%y
%00}
%0
%0
%0
%0
%~
%¥vee-
%l
%01~
%8v¢-
%0

%l V-
%28~
%9-

abuey 9%

9¢€S
9€g

(1L9202)

(62£'8)
(882'%1)
90v'2

109°2¢
€89
(est)
(9€9°1)
000'
(€9)
¥e2'9
(¥66°2)
(628'S)
SS9
(8.)
z8¢e'LE

(AL A
(719°1)
980°G

(rss‘LLL)
9zv'l
oLl

(ge8)
(000‘s1)
(r11)
(€19°2¢)
(090°6)
(0)
(682'52)
(9€9's2)
(Z10'Y)

abuey) ¢

Z 1obpng papuswly 0} 9dUBLIE/\

L£6°€59
269°S
Lz6'cle
L1€'GY
920°S.L
zlT'Y8
6v9'621

682°6.
09€'ee

€25°6€
90¥'C

651°0€L
000°C
059°€
120l
6€9'9)

9G.'v8L
zvo'Le
909°6
26591
8G5°SL
9ve'0Le

129'8L
128°)
0089}

9v8'SeS
vv.'8e
oLl

G€9

2 1¥ebpng
papusawy

10¥‘€S9
9GL'G
1ze'ele
L1E'GY
920°GLL
2.2'Y8
6v9°6C)

05096

09€‘ee

6.€°8

88.vL

LLLLE

90¥'C $

855°269
LLE°L
¥08°€
L0L'vL
6€9°CL
€9
2e5'8LL
GE0'6E
9EV'Gl
LELOY
GEO'ESL
¥98°8€Z

661°S1
y8Y°€
LLLL

001°€59
8le‘Le

G€9

102
8v9'e
35
8¥0°LS
669°'LC
¥€6°LYL

€ 196png papuswy

%0

%1~ (¥61)
%0 (0)
%0 0
%0 0
%0 (0)
%0 =
%61~ (€81°11)
%02 G09°'€
= (882'71)
%0 =
%0 =
%L~ (g85°2€)
%0 =
%L~ (ov)
%¥e- (£22°2)
%22 h- (286'8)
= (€9)
%04~ (eLv'sl)
%1€~ (2g5°01)
%19~ (628'9)
%92 226
%0 (82v)
%1~ (8e22)
%01~ (€62°1)
%60}~ (e62'1)
%0 =
%0¢2- (06€°22)
%S 9z¥'L
%0 =
%0 =
%0 =
%0 =
%1 652
%61~ (ooo‘cl)
%0 =
%0€- (829'¢2)
%8¥z-  (090°6)
%62- (egt'9)
%02~ (090°6)
%18~ (z18'el)
%8- (z10'y)
abuey) 9, abuey) ¢
Z19bpng
papuswy LA O3} @dueLiep

¥202/1€/€ papul polad 3y} o4

Jooyss Jayeyd si1aulo) In04-SH04

ys8‘ssy
L29°C
Lyy'09L
€€0'VE
0.Z°LEL
¥02'€9
L€2°16

£19°65
vLLLL

€25'6€
90¥'C

G0E‘€SS
LLEL
€8T
G80‘8
€8€°L

€19°G51L
867'8C
909°6
966°GE
G80'VLL
068'681}

90621
6L L
vLLLL

¥80°v6€
vv'eT

G€9
102
8¥9°c
1€
8028
669°9

2 1¥ebpng
papuswy QLA

pajepijosuo) — jioday sisAjeuy asueliep

8v0°68Y
¥98°C
Lyy'09L
€€0'VE
02°LE}
¥02'€9
1€2°16

9280
0]3% 7"

88. 1L
€2G'6€
90¥'C

068°065
L1E°L
T/8°C
29801
G9€9L
€9
920°LLL
GE0'6E
9eY'Gl
¥2L'92
€9G°vLL
829°C6)

661Lv1
¥8¥°C
LLLL

viv'LLy
810°L¢

G€9

102
8v9'c
353
6v6°LC
66961
212601
61.°€0)
GLLzL
G1.'82
218'%S
G8.°0€
¥9L°LS

sjenjdv dlA

S92IAIaS |e2SI [e}o]
s994 Ueo B sabiey yueg
pEaYISAQ |eiduds) Jajua) poddng
juswabeue|y Jopus\uswaindold
Auadold |enjoa)jjeju| [euoneanpg
498 Bununoday pue asueulq
juswabeue|y |suuosiod

S92IAIBS |edsl4

Inboe pue sapijioe |ejol
asuadx3 aseaT ¥ Juay juswdinbg
Buip|ing uey} Jayjo syuswarosdw|
(deguonN) Bp|g ueyy 1ayjo rosdw|
3844
(deguoN) 3844
uonisinboe pue sanijioe4

uolnjelsiuiwpy |ooyds |ejol
Buikdo) % Bunuug
suopduosgng B seng
sal|ddng 8010
[oAel |
saa bunsa] Bniqg
s)jouag @ saxe|
snuog
puadng
AUNOH - aARelSIUIWPY
psueleg - sAjessIuIWpY
diysiepea |[ooyos
uonelsiuiwpy jooyds
pleoq |ejo)l
|osuno) juapuadapul - s8a- [eba]
}pny - se2IA18g BuuNoody
pieog

s991A198 Joddng uononasuj |ejo
paue|es - asinN
asuadx3 wuoylun uapnis
sa||ddng |eaipay
19YJO - 9suadx3 ssauisng
|onel]
s994 Bugnsuon
S90IAISS U}|ESH |BJUS|\ PaIoBIUOD
juswdojana( Heis apIsino
$994 92IM9G Jaindwo)
sjyjauag @ sexe]
puadig
poddns 1]
poddng Jayj0
SJ9UOEDd] 90IN0SaY
9ouUEpIND

s991M198 Joddng uononasuj

vs)

STOOHODS d4LAVHD

(& 4

‘l




%\~
Y%l
%6~
%0
%0
%0
%
%8
%
%€
%0
%091 1
%0
%"
%S~
%.2-
%9L
%l

%S€-
%S€-

%¥
%0
%62
%0
%S

%0
%0

abuey 9%

(809°12)
(289)
(62¢'9)

(9z8't)
801L°C
(168'%)
¥8¥'L
8v8
085
(059)
(g62°1)
(688'8)
(¥z6's)
£68'C
18

(85¥°68)
(85+%'68)

10g‘cs
(E¥)
161

9¥S'ee

abuey) ¢

Z jobpng papusuly 0} 99UBLIEA

L6¥'€82'C
08L'8
9.L°C2L
000°9¥
Le
gie'e
v€S°L6
€85°92
199°6ee
€6.°8S
€9€°280°}
0S
6LSeee
€92'S9
9G2°9/1
L29°12
008°€
615°29

110'CSe
£10°2Se

454171
Liz'ool
189
00s°CL
718ve9

(73
VL

2 1¥ebpng
papusawy

S01°60€‘Z
1€1°8
GOL'6L
000°9¥%
e
alz'e
19£°€6
9/¥'ve
256'0€2
60€°/G
GLG'180°}
(0gs)
691 V€S
16599
GY1'G8L
G6S'/T
106
8/9'99

GES'IPE
GES'LYE $

LL6VLL
75900}
061
00S°CL
892°109

L
VL

€ 196png papuswy

%2
%L~
%9~
%91~
%SLL-
%8¢
%l
%8
%c-
%€
%0
%091 1
%0
%/.8-
%L
%¥ -
%9L
%

%S
%S

%2
%
%V L=
%0

%0
%0

abuey) 9,

popuslly QLA OF 9dUBHEA

(p2L°L8)
(G¥¥)
(g29'c)
(210°21)
(9g1)
009
(9v0°1)
2951
(802'2)
152°)
0
085
(059)
(29¢°22)
GS0°0L
(895°2)
£68°C
2]

0zv'olL
ocy'ol

(282°01)
192°L

(8v)

(00s°21)

abuey) ¢
Z19bpng

¥202/1€/€ papul polad 3y} o4

Jooyss Jayeyd si1aulo) In04-SH04

G6€80.°L
v¥S'9
6,09
€9€'ce
8L
009°L
¥0L0L
vv6'6l
Glz'oLL
820'GY
992°018
0S
869°817¢C
8.¥'LE
v0Z'€VL
6€9'8)
008‘€
GOL'SS

88€'502
88€'502

912085
vSe'vL
2se

LLL'9LY

(73
VL

2 1¥ebpng
papuswy QLA

pajepijosuo) — jioday sisAjeuy asueliep

$

691°9vLL
6869
Y0¥ ¥9
08€'6€
vz
000°}
0SL'LL
z8e'sl
£26'TLL
LLLSY
99/°018
(0gs)
8VE'61C
G¥8'8G
8yL'eel
102°12
106
¥92'vS

896761
896161

€05°195
£6v°CL
00%
00S°CL
LLL'9Ly

WL
VL

sjenjdv dlA

jue|d jo uonesadQ |ejol
sasuadx3 snoaue||9osI|\
Anoag pejoesjuo)
salddng Buiues|) @ aoueuajuley
se9 |einjeN
joJjuo) 1s8d
lesods|q 91sep
19Mag 3 JBJe A
Ayouoe|3
Joulau| g auoyds|a |
asuadx3 juay
s}iwlad g SasusoI
S92IAIBG [BIPOISND PBJOBIHUOD
Buisiepy g Bunexepn
aoueunsu| Ayjiqer @ Auadolq
sjyouag g sexe|
puadng
AlnoH - suoneladQ jue|d
jue|d jo uonesado

S991A138 uoneyodsues] jidnd |ejol
uoneyodsuel ] |iIdnd pajoeiuo)
S991A198 uonepodsues] idnd

S9JIAIBS [BJjU) [B}O
$894 Jolisia
buiddiys pue abejsod
JuBWINIOSY Jers
JaployJapey o} 994
S9JIAIAS |eNjuUd)

S991AI9G pOOH |B}O |
sjyeusg @ sexe|
S92IAI9G P00

vs)

STOOHODS d4LAVHD

(& 4

‘(




%8 ezl $ zi6'sgl $ o9cL‘osl $ %SS- (880v91) $ (s8v'L62) $ (95°19%) $ @ouejeg pung paubisseun
%0 = $ lzv'ols $ lzv'ols $ %0 = $ Lzv'olL $ lzv'ols $ spung paniasay
%0 = $ 9zzZ‘L0S $ 9zZ‘L0S $ %0 = $ 9zZ‘108 $ 9zZ‘L0S $ @ouejeg pung aAae|nwng Buluuibag
%0 (13 $ Llo'‘s $ 250'8 $ %0 [-13 $ L10'8 $ 250'8 $ jJuspnig Jad 8jey
%L 8 120°) Se0°L %1 8 L20°} Ge0°'L juswijosuz

(288°161) (299°081) (880°¥91) (282°829) (r2£262) aouejeg pung ui abuey) joN

(sasn) s@a4nog Buioueul4 18Yy30
= vZz'LL (288°1L61) (z99°‘081) = (880°¢91) (282°929) (v1£262) dX3 19A0 A3Y JO (Ho§aQ)/SSa9XT

%V~ (Lo1'g8e) $ 196vL20L $ 290°€OLLL $ %6- (208'829) $ 618°G89°L $ 929'v9¢’s $ sosuadx3 |ejoL

221AI98 1920

%9~ (609°c1) LiL'6ee 9ze'eve %e¢E- (8ve‘se) £v6'601 162'sylL 991AI9g Ajlunwiwo) ejo L

%00} 0z 0z = %001 0z 0z = 80IAISG POO BSNoy-U|
%8~ (ze9'2) €81°'101 918'801 %EEL- (¥9¢'62) €00'y 8Ge'ee SjusAg AJIAROY JBIndLIND-BlXT
%L- (622) GS0°0) ¥8L°0L %6~ (9v2) €08 810°'6 80IM8G Ajunwiwio) - spyeusg % sexe|
%t~ (892'G) 6S¥'8L L lzl'eT) %S~ (892'G) 119'26 588201 SIBOIBYY - mo_zwm Ajunwwo)

92IA198 AJlunwiwo)

%92~ (9g8‘vLL) LLL'ShY ¥55°095 %S¢~ (965°08) LvZ'8LE £v8'86¢ jue|d Jo aduBUBJUIB [€}OL

%0 = £ £ %0 = e £ve sesuadx3 snoaue|easi|y
%0€- (800°1) goe'e €LE'Y %0€- (800°1) G9g'e €lE'Y yuswdinb3 Wy
%92- (8zg‘cl ) 601y 8€6'G5S %S¢- (885°'62) 629'VLE 122'76€ Buipiing Wy

jue|d Jo adurUBUIR|

abuey) 9, abuey ¢ z196png 5 abuey) 9, abuey) ¢ z196png
aopn 9puUd s|en}o
popuoury £ $20PNE papusury — SR G [enjoy LA

Z jobpng papusuly 0} 99UBLIEA

PapuslWy QLA O} 99UBHEA
VS —

¥Z0Z/L€/E PapUT poliad 8y 104 STOOHDS YALAVHD
|ooYyog Jaey ) SIdUI0) IN04-SI D4 (

pajepijosuo) — jioday sisAjeuy asueliep ’




ssaursng PO "A



407.830.6500

’7\ 109-B Concord Drive n
@ DY N A F I R E Casselberry, FL 32707 bY N ANET x:f:fwsonitoring

DynaFire.com

Emergency Radio Communication Enhancement System (BDA) Proposal Document (05-31-24)

Project: Four Corners Charter School, 9100 Teachers Lane, Davenport, Florida 33897
To: Red Apples Services

Atten: Mr. Christopher Kober, Regional Manager of Facilities Support

(609) 774-0617 Cell

CKober@RedAppleServices.com

Quote #: 17:04:56

Scope: First Responders Public Safety Emergency Responder Communications Enhancement System (BDA)
DynaFire will install all devices and circuits per all applicable codes. This proposal and any resulting Contract/PO shall be
subject to DynaFire’s General Terms and Conditions will be based on a mutually agreeable contract.

Scope Clarifications:

1.
2.

owv kAW

10.

11.

This proposal is based on DynaFire providing and installing a UL listed ERCES (BDA) system.

This proposal is based on system requirements to meet minimum applicable codes, note that DynaFire will not
be held responsible if the AHJ requires any work that is “above and beyond” minimum code requirements.

This proposal is based on no new additions to the physical building(s) or area(s) that have not been disclosed.
This proposal includes iBwave heatmap design documents for use of installation and permitting.

A NEMA 4 enclosure will be provided at the head-end for the signal booster.

Adequate conditioned space will be need to be allocated to DynaFire for mounting of the BDA Head-end unit(s),
as required by the local AHJ.

This proposal does not include interconnections with the fire alarm system unless the system is provided and
installed by DynaFire.

This proposal is based on the radio signal strength survey test report dated March 26, 2024 performed by
DynaFire.

This proposal is based on DynaFire furnishing and installing Smart Guard metal clad AC cable in the indoor areas
of the project as allowed by the Osceola County AHJ.

This proposal is based on DynaFire providing and installing new network fiber-optic cable using the existing
underground conduits between each building. No new underground conduits or raceways are included.

This proposal is based on all work being performed during normal business hours, 6:30am to 3:30pm, Monday
through Friday. No overtime or off hours work has been included unless specifically defined elsewhere.

Pricing (Turnkey):

Base Price: $130,000.00

Customer’s Responsibilities:

1.
2.
3.

To provide a complete conduit raceway with pull-string as required.

To provide and install all required 18” x 18” x 8” junction boxes for all indoor antennas, splitters and couplers.

To provide a 2-hour rated conditioned room for the BDA head-end unit(s) and a 2-hour rated raceway for all riser
cable as required. Also provide a 2-hour rated conditioned room or rooms for all BDA network remote unit(s) as
required.

To provide a 2-hour rated raceway for all “in-building” fiber-optic network communication cable as required, if
applicable.

To provide a complete conduit underground raceway with pull-string as required for fiber-optic network cable, if
applicable.

To provide all applicable core penetrations where required including all required fire stopping and sealing.

To provide roof penetrations as required in order to bring the donor antenna and/or related coaxial cable outside.

Casselberry | Largo | Jacksonville | Pompano | Melbourne
EF20000528 | FL PE26483 | NICET IV 99907 | FP16481600012009 | FPC15-000057



8. To provide and terminate all dedicated 120 VAC power circuits for the BDA head-end unit(s) as required. Also
provide and terminate all power circuits for all fiber-optic network remote unit(s) as required if applicable.

9. To provide electronic CAD files for the creation of engineered shop-drawings.

10. To provide a common ground for all surge protection equipment.

11. To provide all applicable lightning protection for the exterior donor antenna as required.

12. All work performed “by others” to be done in accordance with applicable building, electrical and fire codes.

13. If a lift is required, customer to supply or a separate quote will be provided if desired.

14. To provide copy of Building Permit(s), Recorded NOC(s) and current Schedule(s).

DynaFire will provide the following:

Engineered Shop Drawings Taxes

Product Data Submittals Labor for Installation

Permitting Fees (See Note Below) Functional Pre-Test

Equipment/Wire/Materials Fire Inspector Test

<|=<|z|=<|=<
<|=<|=<|=<|=<

Panel Backboxes End User Training

* DynafFire will prepare and submit a permit package to the local AHJ as required.
Thank you for allowing DynaFire to offer our products and services.

Sincerely,
DynaFire

Prepared By: Thomas Perry, NICET #85188
Email: Thomas.Perry@DynaFire.com
Cell: (813) 295-9607

Signature: Date:

Print Name:

"Protecting lives and property through leading technologies and quality service while creating valuable relationships"
- DynaFire Mission Statement

Casselberry | Largo | Jacksonville | Pompano | Melbourne
EF20000528 | FL PE26483 | NICET IV 99907 | FP16481600012009 | FPC15-000057



ssautsng MaN ‘TA



CSUSA 2024-2025 Mental Health Plan Narrative'

Planned Outcomes

Identify two specific and measurable goals that will be accomplished within the 2024-2025
school year.

(1) At least 70% of students referred for Tier 2 or Tier 3 mental health services will engage in
counseling during the 2024-2025 school year.

(2) At least 80% of students administered the Invo Outcome Scales (I0S) at intake, will display an
increase in skill acquisition or decrease in observed symptoms on a minimum of three domains
measured at discharge or end of academic year per student and/or parent report.

Charter Program Implementation Tier 1: Evidence Based Program (EBP)

Attitude is Altitude

Describe the key EBP components:

A comprehensive learning experience that includes a K-12 curriculum where students learn and
repeatedly practice skills for learning and life, known as Noble Techniques, that help them shift to
be confident, proactive, respectful, compassionate students who develop healthy relationships
and make responsible decisions. This experience is built upon an intentional implementation
approach.

EBP Implementation:

Attitude is Altitude will be implemented by teachers in designated grade levels through classroom
lessons. The curriculum is.aligned to research based on skills for learning and life, with an
emphasis on self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationship skills and
responsibledecision-making.

EBP Implementation:

Supports will help students develop their skills for learning and life and will help them succeed in
the classroom and beyond. Skills for learning and life will be how children and adults learn to
understand and manage emotions, set goals, show empathy for others, establish positive
relationships and make responsible decisions. This will result in stronger academic outcomes,
improved behaviors and student attendance, increased graduation rates, long-term and global
impact, and improve lifetime outcomes.

Charter Program Implementation Tier 2: Evidence Based Program (EBP)

Invo’s Integrated Multidisciplinary Program to Address Childhood Trauma (IMPACT) — Targeted
Small Group Interventions

Describe the key EBP components:

IMPACT provides front-line support for schools in driving outcomes for high-risk students by
addressing the underlying causes of challenging, disruptive, and sometimes dangerous
behaviors. Leveraging a unique team-based approach, the program integrates experienced

"The state has not yet released the 24-25 MHAAP application requirements, template or funding guidelines. This draft
will be amended accordingly, and will include school specific counselor:student ratios and planned funds and
expenditures, once these details are available.



Mental Health and Behavioral Health teams into the natural school environment to dramatically
increase student’s social and emotional skills while teaching and fostering replacement
behaviors. Interventions are delivered by licensed mental health professionals who receive
support from a board-certified behavior analyst. Behavior support and therapeutic interventions
are provided while encouraging academic support and progress. Interventions are provided to
targeted students in small groups, with a focus on skill acquisition, stress reduction, increased
self-awareness, and enhanced personal empowerment.

EBP Implementation (Box 1):

Interventions align closely with cognitive-behavioral therapy (CBT) techniques and applied
behavior analysis with the explicit goal of reducing mental health symptoms, improving
functioning in a variety of domains, encouraging youth and their parents to understand the nature
of mental health and/or substance related disorders.and how to use newly learned skills to
maintain position functioning and recovery. In CBT, youth are taught about the link between
thoughts and emotions, and how they may affect subsequent behavior. By replacing maladaptive
thoughts with healthy thoughts, youth can make better decisions and use effective coping

skills. CBT also makes use of established behavior principles such as positive reinforcement to
reward adaptive behavior and extinguish unhealthy behaviors. Trauma-focused CBT s a
subspecialty within CBT that allows providers to focus closely on Adverse Childhood Experiences
(ACEs). This therapy addresses affective/emotional, cognitive/thinking-based and behavioral
problems by incorporating discussions about the specifics of the trauma, teaching effective
parenting skills to caregivers, and capitalizing on the healing therapeutic alliance between
therapist and student. Tier 2 services will be provided via targeted small group interventions.
EBP Implementation(Box 2):

Implementation and treatment will allow students to make progress in areas of skill acquisition,
stress reduction, increased self-awareness, and enhanced personal empowerment.

Charter Program Implementation Tier 3: Evidence Based Program (EBP)

Invo’s Integrated Multidisciplinary Program to Address Childhood Trauma (IMPACT) - Intensive
Individualized Interventions

Describe the key EBP components:

IMPACT provides front-line support for schools in driving outcomes for high-risk students by
addressing the underlying causes of challenging, disruptive, and sometimes dangerous
behaviors. Leveraging a unique team-based approach, the program integrates experienced
Mental Health and Behavioral Health teams into the natural school environment to dramatically
increase student’s social and emotional skills while teaching and fostering replacement
behaviors. Interventions are delivered by licensed mental health professionals who receive
regular support from a board-certified behavior analyst. Behavior support and therapeutic
interventions are provided while encouraging academic support and progress. Interventions draw
on each youth’s strengths and may incorporate family with the goal of establishing healthy
behaviors that will serve the youth throughout his/her lifetime.

EBP Implementation:

Interventions align closely with cognitive-behavioral therapy (CBT) techniques and applied
behavior analysis with the explicit goal of reducing mental health symptoms, improving
functioning in a variety of domains, encouraging youth and their parents to understand the nature



of mental health and/or substance related disorders and how to use newly learned skills to
maintain position functioning and recovery. In CBT, youth are taught about the link between
thoughts and emotions, and how they may affect subsequent behavior. By replacing maladaptive
thoughts with healthy thoughts, youth can make better decisions and use effective coping

skills. CBT also makes use of established behavior principles such as positive reinforcement to
reward adaptive behavior and extinguish unhealthy behaviors. Trauma-focused CBT is a
subspecialty within CBT that allows providers to focus closely on Adverse Childhood Experiences
(ACEs). This therapy addresses affective/emotional, cognitive/thinking-based and behavioral
problems by incorporating discussions about the specifics of the trauma, teaching effective
parenting skills to caregivers, and capitalizing on the healing therapeutic alliance between
therapist and student. Tier 3 services will be provided via individual therapy and/or family
therapy.

EBP Implementation:

Implementation and treatment will allow students to make progress in relevant domains
assessed by the Invo Outcome Scale (I0S), which is administered at intake and discharge. The
IOS measures the following domains: Anxiety Symptoms, Anger Symptoms, Attitude Towards
School, Coping Skills Acquisition, Crisis Response/Sense of Safety, Depressive Symptoms,
Feelings of Connectedness/Belonging, Improvement of Behavior, Self-Esteem, and
Socialization/Peer Relations.

Direct employment policy, roles and responsibilities

The school will secure licensed mental health providers who will work on site for at least a total
number of hours commensurate to a minimum of 90%.of the school’s MHAA. Additional funding
opportunities will be sought to allow for increased financial resources to allow for expanded
provider service schedules and a reduction in staff-to-student ratios.

Through mental health team meetings, the school will identify students who are at the greatest
need of intervention. We will use an MTSS modelto allocate resources based on student

need. Students identified as.needing Tier 3 interventions will have the greatest number of
touchpoints; followed by those identifies as needing Tier 2 supports. The team will meet regularly
to review student progress.

Providers/partners will work collaboratively with the school mental health team to ensure that
services are aligned and coordinated to meet the needs of the students on the caseload. Services
will be initiated timely, in accordance with state statute.

Community Contracts/Interagency Agreements

Invo-Progressus Therapy: Qualified mental health provider (LMHC, LMFT, LCSW, RMHCI, RMFTI,
RCSWI) - Assessment, therapy, collaboration

Invo-Progressus Therapy: Board Certified Behavior Analyst - Consultation/Collaboration



d107I31ieydsisuiodinoj@uysnesy
J10°1314eY35I3Ul02IN0} D) SPIEMPas
$107133JBYd513Ul031N0J@IU04NA]
910°1911BYDS12U100IN0} @) S8.19p3

910°1314e4d2519U102IN0 @) BUI|OWZNIDT
510°1314842543U1031N0} @) PIOJMEIDW
J10°1811BY2S12UI031N 0} @) EAOPIOI]

310°1314ey2513U102IN0 @ ZanbzZeaAUO|0S

310°1511BYDSI3UI02IN0}®)U0|03]

§10°1311e3515U1021N 0§ @) S9E10q0ZE|[0I3

240°1911el2SI3UI02IN0L@ SASP|IY2]
510°19MEBYISIBUI0IIN0L @) SOUB||21SeD)
510°481ieYdSIaUI0dIN0O m) ASUIRID

g107I314eydsIauI02INo)® suINgy

310°12)4eyds13u10dIN0} @ BIDNQS
JJ0"J9lieydsiaulodinos@ennqgq
44071314BYISI3UI02IN0 @ UMOIGD ]

§10°19}4B(2543U1004N0} D ¥IB|qD
d107191BYdSIaUI02IN0} @ Jaulagq

§1071911eYDSI2UI03IN0} @130 pAed

dJ0"J91leydsiaulodinol@zayduese|elee
mt_o._wtmcumgmc._onr:o*@.am_‘ﬂu
510°13118Y2513U1021N04 @ OUINBY AN
£10°1914eY2SI2UI02IN0} @) OlISA|ES

$S1ppY |lew3

I3yoea] apelio IsT
d3ydea] INTLS
i3yoes] apeuo pug
Jayoea] apeun pig
J3ydea] apeuo yig
198euely eualale)d
J031BUIPI00D 31N1ISqNS / 1sluoiidanay
J3ydea) apeus pug
Jayoea] 34

Jayoea] apelio pig
i3Yyoea] apesn pig
Joyuoy sndwer
Joyuo sndwe)
Jaddn - jedpuny
1oddng [euonanaisul 1Y)
Jayoea] apeis Yy
Jaydea] apeus pig
J3yoea] apelio pig
G- Isluondaday
Jayoea] apels pug
layoea) uayesdiapub)
layoea) uapesiapup
13yoea] apeio yig
Jaydea] apels Yy
Jayoeaj apein pug
Jayodeaj uy

Jayoea apels pug
J01BUIPJ00D) 32140
Jayoea] apelo Uiy
J9yoea] uanesiapuny
juswpedaq 1053
Jayoea] apelo pag
uonisod

epualig
uisiy
alueydals
esuy
elyiuAd
slnr
EETETIETS)
STET
adior
alj1ed
lyeJes
ue|ng
Jou3
ydasor
slauesd
m_uMw._._mu
wm_m>mz
stwmm_._
w_cm;_.n_wum
euueug
VY]
BISUY)
Uuay
12uer
BURsUY)
(410g) uuy
1p0d
22039y
eJjpuoly
“loJed)
zjepuEM
eAjueys
awep 1s414

pooid

uysne4
spaemp3]
uodng
saJlaQg

uIMmo) elIaA|o2Q
BUI|ON-ZN1D)
piojmes)
eAOpIO)

910D
zanbzejop uojo)
uojo)

sadiog oze|j0)
SISPIIYD
soue||aised)
Aauie)
[lPqdwe)
suing

elpng

e|png

umo.g
Aempeug-piAg
uounjae|g
uowyoe|g
3ejg

J9uleg

Jeddy -|jo9
1o|opAyY
Zayauegs e|eAy
ensny

zado ouinby
OLIDAlY

awep iseq

S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A

S3A
S3aA
S3A

S3IA

S3A
S3A
S3A

S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A

paynIa)
Yi|edH |eludinl



9107131482513 U402IN0 D) S3[qOL
w03 sad1AIasa|ddepal @ sowelo

§10°1914BYDSISUI0dIN0)m)OpaAanbL

J10°191JeYIS18UI0IN0} M) Za43dd
d10°131ieyd513uI02IN0)@ Ydeldiopuady
516 Isueydsiauiodinoy@asuad]

510°1311BY3SI3UI02IN0} D) AYSMOS|OW
£10°1311BYD2SI2UI02IN0}D)S3e0)

g1071314B2SIaUI0dIN0f DISSapIIue
d10°J811e(D5Iaul0)in04 @ eDIenoliezeNy
§10°1314eY3513U103IN04 @) S3|eIOWA

510°131JeY2SI9uI0dIN0) @ euljoW]|
510" Ia1eY2SIaUI0dIN0} @ UBHI || IAIH
510°1914e2SI3uI0IN0 @ YSOIudWe

510°19}ey2sI9ul004N0) [ euUn|W
310°1914842Si3Ul0dIN0Oi@aUIASTg
810°191eYISI8UI02IN0JHXNOII|P
410°1911BeY2SI3UI02IN0} D)9
F1071814BY2SI9UI02IN0}@ISUBqnpeEDy
d10°J21eYdSI83ui021N0)m) jdoprawil
310°19)1BYDSIBUI0IIN0}@ UdUNYIY|

510°43148YDSI9UI02IN0} @ ZapUBUISYA
810°1911ey3513u102IN0} @)SIIBYUW
510°1911B2SI3UI02IN0} D YTIEHY
810719148y 2S13UI02IN0) @I ASOFY

Jeuoissajoidesed 353
Josiasadng Aujioe4
uawyuedaq 10$3

Jaydea] apelis pug
Jayoea| apeio IsT
J98euely Juswjjoiul
SIIALDS UapN1S

J3Y2e3] JISN|A

Jaydea] apedo IST
a1msqns Ajleq Alejuswa|3
Jayzea) 14

343D JuBW|[0Iu]
Jayoea} uapesiapuny
layoea| uapesiapupy
Juswnedsqg L

Jayoea| apedo 1St
Jaydea] apeis Yy
Jojensuiwpy sunesadQ jooydss
|edidulld S1E1205SY
ydoadsg

Jayoea] apeio st
J9Ydea] ualessapury
J242e3) 151uonuUaAIU|
£-) 1siuondanay

J8yoea) apeis Yig
131U eIpAN

jediduig 9112085y
Hoddng jeuoianiisu; 14D
|euojssajoidereq

uosiel] juaded | I

Jayoea] speun pig
13yoea] apeus pug
Jayoea] uspesiapury
Jayaes) J8ndwo)

3
N

Apaquuny
opuepQ
anauel|n
[OSLIBI
250y
eipne;)
aney
qooer
B2ISSaf
JIALIBIA
[Ad18yD
sauep
shpe|n
3||aqeuuy
ueAy
BIUISDA
suAouy
aisan
Ajuay
wmt<
>wc@:ou
eypeN
ebieng
eueq
“Asey
ejewe)
tosef
Aespun
elb»IA
%m_m_\,_
essi|y
Asplaquuny
“uug
|ohbey

sojqoy
sowey
sowey
opaaanD
zaiad
zaJ43d
ydesdispuad
CRITER
uejeled
Aysmos|0
syep
zZaunp
luo83IN
SS3PIN
eloJeo olezeN
s9jelon
SojedoN
BUlIOA
uedi||iN
ysoupp
ejosise
Zangupoy eun
BUIAT
XNoYya
297
sueqnper
jdopiaw
usunmyjiH
ZapueusaH
SilaeH
ysien
Asop
juels
ooueld

S3A

S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A

S3A
S3A
S3A

S3A
S3A

S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A

S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A



§1071911eY2S19U1024N0} @) SIUIM]

d10719eydsIaulodIno}m Asssane

510°1914eY2S13UI02UN04 @) || IY43PUNA

g10°J9)eydsiauiodinoy@uoigajopeanl

§1071911eY2SI3UI024N0} @) [|[910UyH

F10"13eydsisuiodinoy@uosdwoylp

5107 sueydsiaul0dIno)@ i0jAelw
§10°1914B2S12UI024N0E)S3ASA
510°1314eY2519Ul02IN0 D) Z31eNng)
51071314eY2S13UI021N0) D) 1IBEMS]SU
3107191482549 U1024N04 @) Y1 WIS]
910713148 2513uU1021N0} B Y3usd
5107 131BYIS13UI02IN0 @) Ylise
310°1934eyds13u1021n0}® paaddaysy

§10°1911BDSI3UI02IN0 @ UO3|DYSS
§10°1911BY2SI2UI00IN0}@) 1948 YISy
510°193JBY2S43UI03IN0L D ZaYIUesy

510°1214BY2SI5UI004N0} @) Jeze|esy

510°4214BY2549U1021N04 (1) SSOIP

910°19148Y2519U1024N04 @ zoN31IpoJW

91071314BY3S19UI00IN0} @ ZoN31IPOID

Jayoea] apeus yig
wnjhauand jo ueaqg

Jayoea] Uy

asunp Jooyds

Jojeuipioo) SuijessdQ jooyds
Jayoea] apeio pig

s|jooyas jJo pesH
lojelisiuiwpy 1uawijjolul jooyds
juawedaq 1053
uswyedag 1053

Jayoea] Isiuoiuaniu|
|euoissajoideled

Jayaea] dishipf

Jayoea] J9indwo)

J2ydes] 34

19Yydea] apeso Yy

Jayoea] apess yig

J2Ydea ) uauesdiapury
winjndLuny) Jo ueaq

JaYyoea] apeio IsT

Jaydea| speso Yy

layoea] speus pug

J9Yyoea] apess) 1t

uasjjod
ydasor
euuy
PPIA
eolssar
uuy-ajjayoey
asiueq
3|3yl
uiqoy
ua.ey
wmmh_wz
Awwej
JIned
nyuy
AdjAeH
cm.,>3m
Ebpcmv_
uAjiey
IS
mmc._mwn_
elpueg
EpUIPIN
An3

nM
SIDUIM
Aassap
liiy4epun
uouqga] opedi|
[l?ioyL
uosdwoy|
JojAe
sayAs
zaleng
1ema1s
yuws
yuws
yHuws
pJaddays
uolRys
19)eYdS
zayoues
Jezejes
ssoy
zan8upoy
zandupoy
zon3upoy

S3IA
S3A

S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A
S3A

S3A



aouenduwo? %8 = 778°0 =
Pal}1118d JON @le ¢l
peljniad ale 9/

TVLOL HE1S/S1ayoea) 06

PaljIlBd Yljeay jejusl sl JaMoji JO %8



Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
MASTER SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 2024-25 SY

TABLE OF CONTENTS
[} Ao Yo [V Lot o] o OO 2
GENEIAl PrOCEAUIES. .....ecvveeteteeeecee ettt ettt et ebeste e e ebeereare s s eraessessense s nes 3

Emergency Management Safety Plans-3
Building Information for Public Safety Agency/First Responders-4
Building Level Emergency Protocols-4
Daily Measures/Accountability-6
Safety & Security Policies & Procedures-7
Prevention & Intervention Strategies.......ccueueeiiiiice s 8
Threat Assessment Teams-8
Reunification-8
Identification of Sites of Potential Emergency-10
Identification of School Resources-10
Organizational Chain of Command-10
Student Transport Safety-11
Intervention Strategies-11

Contacting Law ENfOrcemMENT ..ottt st st eaaerans 11
Contacting Parents/GUArdians........ccuoeereeurureeeeirensieisireseeeeesesereses e sses e sesessssssnnens 12
Physical BUilding SECUIILY....ccccuiieiieeiece et ettt st res s e e s s eneas 12
BUIlAING Saf@tY/SECUNITY...cveuiviecieiee ettt et bes sttt st era e ene 13

Staff Development & Student Management Issues-13
School Safety & Security Training-13
Employees-13
Students-14
Improving Communication Among Students, Between Students & Staff & Reporting Potentially
ViIOIENE INCIAENTS. .. vie ettt sttt ettt e b et b e saesessns 14
Program to Improve Communication-14
Response to Potentially Violent Incidents-15
Response to Acts of Violence-15
Communication with the Media-15

HB 1473 and Rule 6A.-1.0019 Changes for the 2024-2025 School Year.............. 15
Appendix A- Safety and Security Standard Operating Procedures.........c.co........ 20
Appendix B- School Safety COmMMIttEES.......cvvveeeeeie e s 28
Appendix C- Active Assailant/Shooter Procedures..........coocvveevveeeecenecveneenseveenns 28
Appendix D — MSD Security Policies Checklist...........oceoerrurenirneinecennerieseeane 32
Appendix E — SESIR Reporting Roles & Responsibilities.........cccceveeeveiereeveccnennns 39
Appendix F- Rule 6A-1.0018 Key Responsibilities..........ccccoeeveeeeicriniveecece e 44
Appendix G- HB 543 Key Safety & Security POINtS.......cccoeveeeviineicessceireeeseerene.s 45
Appendix H- SChool SPecific POIICIES......ccooveeereiri et 47
Appendix I- Involuntary Examinations & Removal for Involuntary Exames......... 55
Appendix J- Rule 6A-1.0019 Threat Management ........ccccceeveeeeeeeeeieriereseeeene s 56

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



INTRODUCTION

In accordance with Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Act, the following is the
Four Corners Charter School, Inc. (“FCCS”) Master School Safety Plan (“Safety Plan”) for its
schools. The Safety Plan, in conjunction with individual school building safety plans and the
protocols included in the building-level plans, constitutes the Safety Plan. The Safety Plan,
including each school building-level safety plan, is confidential and exempt from the Florida Public
Records Act pursuant to Fl. Stat. Section 119.071(3)(a). This Safety Plan may not be disclosed to
any party other than necessary school employees and law enforcement.

CSUSA, in partnership with CLPS Consultancy Group, shall annually review this Safety Plan and
recommend any changes for the upcoming school year by July 15" of each year. The School Safety
Officer (or designee) shall distribute this Safety Plan to school administrators by August 1% of each
year.

In addition, each school building principal (or designee) shall, on an annual basis, appoint a
Building-level Emergency Response Team, School Threat Assessment Team, and School Medical
Response Team. The teams should include, but are not limited to, school administrators,
teachers, staff, mental health professionals, school safety officer (SSO/SRO) or School Guardian
and law enforcement.

FCCS and CSUSA Shall Designate a School Safety Officer who shall:

1. Review policies and procedures for compliance with state law and rules, including the
timely and accurate submission of school environmental safety incident reports.

2. Provide the necessary training and resources to students and school staff in matters
relating to youth mental health awareness and assistance; emergency procedures,
including active shooter training; and school safety and security

3. Serve as FCCS’s liaison with local public safety agencies and national, state, and
community agencies and organizations in matters of school safety and security

4. Conduct a school security risk assessment at each school using the Florida Safe
Schools Assessment Tool. Based on the assessment findings, the School Safety Officer
shall provide recommendations to FCCS which identify strategies and activities that
the board should implement in order to address the findings and improve school
safety and security. Annually, FCCS must receive such findings and the School Safety
Officer’'s recommendations at a publicly noticed board meeting to provide the public
an opportunity to hear the board members discuss and take action on the findings
and recommendations. School Safety Officer shall report such findings and board
action to the Office of Safe Schools within 30 days after the board meeting.

5. School Safety Officer shall coordinate with the appropriate public safety agencies, as
defined in s. 365.171 that are designated as first responders to a school’s campus to
conduct a tour of such campus once every 3 years and provide recommendations
related to school safety. The recommendations by the public safety agencies must be
considered as part of the recommendations by the School Safety Officer pursuant to
paragraph 4 above.

6. As provided by F.S. 1006.07(6)(a)1, the School Safety Specialist is responsible for
supervision and oversight for all school safety and security personnel, policies and
procedures within the school district and act as the point of contact for each district’s
School Safety Specialist.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



|. GENERAL PROCEDURES

FCCS and CSUSA will endeavor to work at all times in a spirit of cooperation with local public safety
officials to protect students and staff. In an emergency, the building-level Emergency Response
Team will immediately respond. The principal (or designee) shall immediately notify the Florida
State Director (or designee) when the team is activated. Local law enforcement and other
emergency responders will be notified in accordance with the procedures outlined in the
Emergency Management Safety Plans. School leadership will ensure that staff is trained to
identify and respond to threats to school safety. School leadership will ensure that staff is trained
regarding all safety and accountability procedures. School shall identify the individuals
responsible for contacting the primary emergency response agency and the party responsible for
notifying CSUSA executive staff for each type of emergency.

As provided in Section 1006.12, F.S., school districts are required to establish or assign at least
one safe-school officer at each school facility. A school facility means a public K-12 school,
including a charter school, with a Master School Identification Number (MSID) number as
provided under Rule 6A-1.0016, F.A.C. Districts must establish a policy for safe-school officer
assignment outside of the regular school day, including during before and after school, summer
school, during extracurricular activities, and for school-sponsored events. In establishing this
policy, districts must consider factors such as the number of persons present, the ratio of staff
members to students, and other safety measures available.

Pursuant to HB 1473, a charter school governing board in a school district that has not voted, or
has declined, to implement a guardian program may request the sheriff in the county to establish
a guardian program for the purpose of training the charter school employees. If the county sheriff
denies the request, the charter school governing board may contract with a sheriff that has
established a guardian program to provide such training. The charter school governing board
must notify the superintendent and the sheriff in the charter school's county of the contract prior
toits execution. By September 1, 2024, each sheriff who issued a school guardian certificate must
report to the Department of Law Enforcement the name, date of birth, and certification date of
each school guardian who received a certificate from the sheriff.

By February 1 and September 1 of each school year, each school district, charter school, and
private school must report to the Department of Law Enforcement the name, date of birth, and
appointment date of each person appointed as a school guardian. The school district, charter
school, and private school must also report to the Department of Law Enforcement the date each
school guardian separates from his or her appointment as a school guardian.

Pursuant to F.S. 1006(09) A notice shall be posted, in a place readily seen by students, stating that
a student’s locker or other storage area is subject to search, upon reasonable suspicion, for
prohibited or illegally possessed substances or objects.

Schools shall conduct a campus tour by first responders every three years. Pursuant to HB 1473,
The Office of Safe schools shall conduct inspections every three (3) years. Annual inspections of
every school by the district’s school safety specialist (SSS) will be documented in the FSSAT portal.

Schools shall install a mobile suspicious activity reporting tool on each student issued mobile
device and have the website bookmarked on all computer devices issued to students.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



All incidents related to school safety and discipline shall be immediately reported and all
disciplinary action required to be reported pursuant to School Environmental Safety Incident
Reporting System (SESIR) shall be done in a timely manner.

Model emergency management and emergency preparedness procedures shall be established,
including emergency notification procedures for the following life-threatening emergencies:

e Weapon-use, hostage, and active shooter situations. The active shooter situation training
for each school must engage the participation of the School Safety Officer, threat
assessment team members, faculty, staff, and students and must be conducted by the
law enforcement agency or agencies that are designated as first responders to the
school’s campus.

e Hazardous materials or toxic chemical spills.

e Weather emergencies, including hurricanes, tornadoes, and severe storms.

e Exposure as a result of a manmade emergency.

Schools shall implement a procedure to ensure that upon transfer to a different school, the threat
assessment team verifies that any intervention services provided to the student remain in place
until the threat assessment team of the receiving school independently determines the need for
intervention services.

All FCCS schools are required to maintain current school listings in the FortifyFL application,
including school name, address, and MSID number. School districts are required to update
FortifyFL within five (5) school days of a school opening or closing, or when any other change
occurs that impacts the accuracy of district-provided information. The Director of Security will be
notified of any changes to personnel at a FCCS school who are authorized to receive FortifyFL tips
through the system. The Security Director has obtained administrative privileges through the
Office and Safe Schools and will update school personnel within the system to receive FortifyFL
leads/tips and follow up to ensure FCCS schools address these tips.

All FCCS schools are required to maintain current contact information (telephone number and
email address) in the FortifyFL application for each school’s administrator and for the school
safety specialist. They are required to promote FortifyFL, as provided in Section 943.082(4)(b),
F.S. This includes:

e Advertise FortifyFL on the district website, on school campuses, in newsletters, and in

school publications;
e Install the FortifyFL app on all mobile devices issued to students; and
e Bookmark the FortifyFL website on all computer devices issued to students.

a. Emergency Management Safety Plans

Each school building shall have an Emergency Management Safety Plan (EMSP) which will
detail procedures to be followed if an incident occurs at a school or occurs outside the school that
could impact school safety and security. The EMPS will be reviewed annually by FCCS and
distributed to all staff. The EMPS contains protocols for various natural and human caused
threats, hazards, and emergencies. These plans will be reviewed annually by the CSUSA security
director and schools for accuracy and to update personnel changes in the EMSP.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



b. Building Information for Public Safety Agency/First Responders

Annually, each school’s facilities manager (or designee) shall provide copies of site plans/
floor plans and maps to jurisdictional law enforcement agency and fire department Police and
shall document that this was completed and which agencies have copies of the site plans Access
to the campus/buildings will also be provided to first responders, such as building keys or access
swipe cards. In addition, each SRO/SSO/Guardian shall be provided a Duty Book when assigned
to work at a school.

Under F.S. 1006.(07)(4) The FLDOE has released a new grant for the School Mapping Data
Grant Program. All school sites, including charter school sites are eligible to receive $3,500 of
grant funds (per site #) to generate mapping in an electronic or digital format, and a printable
format. If requested, must be in a digital file format that can be integrated into interactive mobile
platforms in use. Those districts that have opted into the grant have begun mapping sites through
district approved vendors. FCCS schools will opt into any district program engaged in the digital
mapping project.

c. Building-Level Emergency Protocols
Each school shall be guided by the building/campus-specific protocols in its EMSP. The
protocols outlined shall be used to respond to natural and human-caused hazards, threats, and

emergencies. This includes, but is not limited to:

- Holding students, staff, and visitors at their current locations so short-term emergencies
on campus can be dealt with;

- Evacuating students, staff, and visitors to predesignated evacuation staging areas, on and
off campus;

- Sheltering students, staff, and visitors from severe weather emergencies or other external
hazards;

- Locking-out the school from external hazards, such as dangerous police activities,
suspicious persons, or other outside threats;

- Locking-down inside rooms from internal threats, such as an active attacker, shooter, or
armed intruder;

- Reunifying students with their parents/guardians during emergency situations;

- Establishing redundant internal and external emergency communication systems,
including an anonymous reporting system for students;

- Establishing a chain of command at the school consistent with the National Incident
Management System (NIMS);

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



- Coordinating mental health services to assure that the school has access to federal, state,
and local mental health resources;

- Conducting safety drills and other exercises to test elements of the emergency
management plan; and

- Securing and restricting access to the campus and/or building, including the roof and a
policy identifying who is allowed access to the roof.

- A system of emergency mass communication throughout the school

- A campus access policy
d. Daily Measures/Accountability

In addition to the preceding emergency protocols, all staff members are expected to
adhere to common sense basic safety measures. These measures must be performed daily by
school staff and become part of the “school culture” with the purpose of creating a safe school
environment. Required daily safety measures include:

- All authorized staff members will carry their classroom/office keys/swipe cards at all
times;

- All staff members will wear a School -issued photo identification badges and/or wear a
School -issued shirt displaying the school logo;

- Each teacher/staff member who occupies a room or area must scan the room or area
upon first entering. If the door is open, the classroom teacher will remain near the door
until it is closed. Classroom doors will remain locked at all times unless the teacher is
physically standing at the doorway;

- The principal (or designee) will be notified immediately if anything looks suspicious on
campus;

- After the designated start time of the school day, each school will be appropriately
secured;

- All visitors must report to each building's designated access control entry point(s), such as
a security station before being allowed to proceed further into the building;

- All contractors assigned to work in any building must comply with the Jessica Lunsford Act
(Act) and must either undergo a Level 2 background check or be accompanied by staff
while on campus, as appropriate pursuant to the Act. Contractors will receive an
identification badge, which must be visible at all times while on campus.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA _



School Leadership must ensure that all staff are properly trained and empowered to
identify threats to school safety; through appropriate infrastructure, communicate
threats to mitigate harm to others; and know how to react to threats. Proper
documentation must be retained regarding reporting, assessment, and follow-up.

Under Florida Statute Section 1006.07, effective August 1, 2024, School district School
Safety Specialists and/or auditors from the DOE Office of Safe Schools shall conduct
annual unannounced inspections (using the form adopted by the Office of Safe Schools
pursuant to Florida Statute Section 1001.212(14)) of the Charter School while School is in
session and investigate reports of noncompliance with school safety requirements.

Persons who are aware of any violation of this Policy must report the violation to the
school principal. The school principal must report the violation to the School safety
specialist no later than the next business day after receiving such report. If the person
who violated this Policy is the school principal, the report must be made directly to the
School Deputy Director and provide notice to the School’s Governing Board as applicable.
A progressive discipline policy shall be administered under the rule.

Discipline hereunder is a corrective rather than a punitive measure. In dealing with known
violations of the above School Safety Requirements progressive discipline shall be
administered, except in situations where more severe immediate disciplinary steps must
be taken to ensure student/staff safety. Progressive discipline may include, but is not
limited to, Verbal Warning (with documented confirmation email), Written Warning 1,
Written Warning 2, Suspension without Pay, Demotion, and Termination of employment.
The severity of the violation in each case, together with relevant circumstances will
determine what step in the range of progressive discipline is followed. A more severe
discipline measure will be used when it is in the best interest and/or safety of the students
or School community.

e. Safety & Security Policies & Procedures

Within every school’s EMSP are Policies that must be acknowledged prior to the start of
the school year by the principal or their equivalent designee.

These policies align with recommended policies listed within the Florida Safe Schools
Assessment Tool (FSSAT). Each policy contains general guidance based upon recognized
national best standard protocols and recommended strategies from the MSD Commission
Final Report.

These policies include but are not limited to the following: After Hours; 911; Campus
Monitor; Campus Access; Backup Communications; Key Control; Deliveries; Gates;
Security Sweeps; Release of Students to Parents; PA Systems; Roof Access; Unauthorized
Access; Visitor Management; Reunification Policy; Training Policy and; Tap App Policy.
Each school can add additional policies and/or procedures as needed and/or required.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



FCCS requires that every school complete the FSSAT and submit it for review annually by
the Director of Security and/or the guidelines and deadlines assigned by the school
district. Each year, the school safety specialist must complete a school security risk
assessment on or before October 1 at each public school in their district using the FSSAT,
as provided in Section 1006.07(6)(a)4., F.S., and Section 1006.1493, F.S.

Pursuant to H.B. 1421, all FCCS schools will develop a model family reunification plan
for use by child care facilities, public K-12 schools, and public post-secondary educational
institutions that are closed or unexpectedly evacuated due to a natural or manmade
disaster. This model plan shall be reviewed annually and updated, as applicable within
each CSUSA managed school’s Emergency Management Plan in the CLPS portal. The
Director of Security will assist schools in creation and implementation of their
Reunification Plan and will provide training to all FCCS schools on how to create said plan.
Pursuant to Rule 6A-1.0018(17) at a minimum, district reunification plans must address:

(a) Identification of potential reunification sites;

(b) Training for employees;

(c) Multiple methods to effectively communicate with family members of students

and staff; and

(d) Methods to aid law enforcement in student and staff identification.

Il. PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION STRATEGIES

a. Threat Assessment Teams

Each school must adopt policies, consistent with this rule and with model policies developed
by the Office of Safe Schools, for the establishment of threat assessment teams at each
school. Each school’s threat assessment team must include persons with expertise in
counseling, instruction, school administration, and law enforcement, as provided in Section
1006.07(7)(a), F.S.

The counseling team member must be a school-based mental health services
provider that is able to access student mental health records.

The law enforcement team member must be a sworn law enforcement officer, as
defined by Section 943.10(1), F.S., including a School Resource Office, school-safety
officer, or other active law enforcement officer. At a minimum, a law enforcement
officer serving on a threat assessment team must have access to local Records
Management System information, the Criminal Justice Information System, and the
Florida Crime Information Center and National Crime Information Center databases.
Officers serving on school-based threat assessment teams must also have clearance
to review Criminal Justice Information and Criminal History Record Information.

A school guardian, as defined under Section 1006.12(3), F.S., or a school security
guard, as defined under Section 1006.12(4), F.S., may not serve as the law
enforcement member of a threat assessment team.

Beginning in January, 2024 all schools must adopt the Florida Harm Prevention and
Threat Management Model (“Florida Model”). Beginning January 1, 2024, threat
management and assessment of concerning behaviors or communications must be
conducted in accordance with the Florida Model.

In order to switch to the Florida Model on January 1, 2024, District Threat Management
Coordinators, School Based Threat Management Team members, school principals, and

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA _



District Threat Management Team members must complete Office-approved training no later
than December 31, 2023. Beginning with the 2024-25 school year, district and school-level
teams must be designated before the start of the school year. Team members who have not
previously completed training must complete Florida Model training before the start of the
school year. Those appointed to threat management teams after the start of the school year
must complete Florida Model training within sixty (60) days of appointment. Each school-
based threat assessment team must meet as often as needed to fulfill its duties of assessing
and intervening with persons whose behavior may pose a threat to school staff or students,
but no less than monthly.

Each district school safety specialist must ensure that all threat management teams in the
district report to the Office on the team’s activities during the previous school year. The initial
reporting period for the Florida Model will be from January 1-May 31, 2024, and information
will be due by June 15, and annually thereafter for the preceding school year. The Office will
provide reporting instructions by November 2023, and annually thereafter prior to the start
of the school year, that will include at a minimum the following metrics:
1. Number of cases reported to the SBTMT;
2. Number of students evaluated by the SBTMT, broken down by sex, race, grade level,
and existence of an IEP, 504, or behavior intervention plan at the time of evaluation;
3. Number of cases closed by the SBTMT Chair as unfounded; after referral for self-harm
assessment; or as a low level concern without review by the full SBTMT;
4. Number of cases the SBTMT Chair referred to the full SBTMT for review;
5. Number of cases categorized by the SBTMT as unfounded, low, medium and high
levels of concern;
6. Number of SSMPs implemented after cases categorized as low, medium, and high
levels of concern;
7. Number of cases referred to the DTMT categorized as medium and high levels of
concern;
8. Number of high level of concern cases the DTMT referred back to SBTMT; and
9. Numbers of students who received disciplinary action or where law enforcement
took action in response to the behavior initially reported to the SBTMT.

Each school must establish policies to provide notification to parents of threats and unlawful
acts or significant emergencies as defined in Section 1006.07(4)(b), F.S., that occur on school
grounds, during school transportation, or during school-sponsored activities in coordination
with their local school district’s policies and Codes of Conduct. Charter Schools. Charter
schools are responsible for establishing SBTMTs and conducting threat assessments as
required by this rule. DTMCs and DTMTs must oversee and support charter schools sponsored
by or under contract with the district to the same extent they do for traditional public schools.

Notifications must be made in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA), 20 U.S.C. s. 1232g, 34 C.F.R. Part 99, and Section 1002.22, F.S.

In the case of an imminent threat of harm to students, including an active assailant incident
or hostage situation, notification to parents must be made as soon as practicable. Such
notification should be made in consultation with local law enforcement and first responders
in order to avoid compromising the safety of students and the efficacy of the emergency
response and investigation.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA _



In determining the content of notifications to parents, districts must consider including
specific information about the threat or incident necessary to inform parents and safeguard
the community as determined by the threat assessment team, or other person or entity
responsible for parent notification. Such information may include the date and time of the
incident, the location and nature of the threat or incident, how and whether the threat or
incident was resolved, a description of the suspect (where applicable), crime prevention and
safety tips, and crime and threat reporting information.

b. Identification of Sites of Potential Emergency

The School Safety Officer (or designee) in conjunction with local police will identify areas
outside of school property which may affect operations during an emergency. Factors that are to
be considered include population, presence of hazardous materials, potential for emergency
based on national trends, and proximity to school property.

The identification of sites of potential emergency outside of school property will be continuously
assessed by local officials in collaboration with the School Safety Officer to ensure emergency
plans are current and appropriate. School Safety Officer or designee will conduct a safety and
security sweep of the school prior to the commencement of each school day.

b. Identification of School Resources

School resources (i.e., disaster kits) are to be available in each building and stored in
accessible locations. Each building will designate a Command Post(s) (CP), where the Building
Level Emergency Response Team can work from during an emergency. The list, which is not meant
to be inclusive, requires the following items at each school:

e Copy of school-wide key contact Information and emergency telephone numbers;

*  Copy of the Building-Level Emergency Management Safety Plan;

* Building maps, floor plans, and schematics;

* Telephones (landline and cellular);

e Communication capabilities (walkie-talkies, mobile app);

* Battery-operated AM/FM radios (including a weather radio);

e Flashlights (battery operated lighting sources);

*  Fax machine, photocopier, computer;

¢ Student and staff rosters;

* List of students with special needs and specific evacuation plans;

* Information about emergency needs (e.g. students/staff that require medications,
vehicular transportation issues, etc.);

e Medical supplies (first aid and trauma kits);

e Clean drinking water (i.e., bottled water) and non-perishable foods; and

e  Evacuation Go Bags.

The school will, as appropriate, utilize all available manpower during an emergency. The
Florida State Director (or designee) will, as appropriate, call in all available maintenance and

custodial staff to provide support during an emergency.

c. Organizational Chain of Command

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



The Florida State Director (or designee) shall be responsible for the coordination of
resources and manpower during emergencies. If it becomes necessary during an emergency, the
Florida State Director will call upon the staff to provide all needed support. In the event that the
Florida State Director is not available, the following positions are authorized to make decisions on
behalf of the organization:

- Area Directors
- Deputy of Schools
— CSUSA General Counsel

d. Student Transportation Safety

Principal shall ensure that all transported students receive instruction in safe riding
practices and rules of conduct and that these safety practices and rules are communicated to
parents or guardians.

e. Intervention Strategies

Appropriate prevention and intervention strategies as practiced in each school shall
include, but are not limited to, the following:

- familiarization with the campus layout, security personnel and communications system,
Non-violent conflict resolution training programs

- Emergency management/threat assessment training programs

- Anti-bullying/harassment programs

- Threat Assessment Team should meet regularly, at least monthly, to review student data
(both behavioral and academic) and receive regular training on threat assessments
pursuant to Rule 6A-1.0019.

The Student Code of Conduct provides for procedures regarding bullying, violence, and
harassment and other prohibited student conduct. The Code shall be disseminated to all staff and
students by the first week of school. The Code contains procedures to be followed by all school
personnel regarding student conduct, reporting of violations, and penalties, procedures and
referrals for all inappropriate behaviors as set forth in the Code.

lll. CONTACTING LAW ENFORCEMENT

Local first responders are an integral part of the school’s ability to manage crisis
situations. The Principal (or designee) shall meet at least annually with respective law
enforcement officials to review current policies and procedures, make recommendations for
changes, if any, and plan for building-level training for both law enforcement and school staff. In
addition, each principal shall establish a working relationship with local first responders and other
security and emergency management professionals to discuss appropriate safety/security policies
and procedures, including the reporting of incidents to appropriate authorities.

Jurisdictional police or other emergency responders will be contacted if, the Principal (or
designee), deems such outside assistance is necessary. In the event of an ongoing violent incident

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



that threatens the safety and security of staff and students, the principal (or designee) will contact
the police for assistance and notify the Florida State Director as soon as practicable. Other than
an immediate crisis, actions with regards to contacting law enforcement will depend on the scope
and nature of the crisis.

IV. CONTACTING PARENTS/GUARDIANS

In the event of a crisis, or an incident requires an early dismissal of students from school,
every effort will be made to notify parents. Principal shall notify the Area Director and as soon as
practical, the Area Director (or designee) shall activate the emergency notification system that
will provide relevant information. Parental notification procedures for a student involved in
disciplinary situations shall be consistent with the Code of Conduct and shall be presented clearly
and concisely to staff and students each year. When a student is involved in any violent situation,
a parent or guardian shall be contacted as soon as practicable.

Parents have a right to the timely notification of threats, unlawful acts, and significant
emergencies. If there is a threat to the health and safety of students and faculty on school
grounds, during school transportation, or during school-sponsored activities, the Principal, or
designee, will provide parents with timely notification of the incident. In the case of an imminent
threat of harm to students, including an active assailant incident or hostage situation, notification
to parents must be made as soon as practicable. Such notification should be made in consultation
with local law enforcement and first responders in order to avoid compromising the safety of
students and the efficacy of the emergency response and investigation. The extent of the
information provided in the notice will depend on the individual circumstances of the event. In
determining the content of notifications to parents, school personnel must consider including
specific information about the threat or incident necessary to inform parents and safeguard the
community as determined by the threat assessment team, or the Principal. Notifications must be
made in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. s.
1232g, 34 C.F.R. Part 99, and Section 1002.22, F.S.

It is the responsibility of all parents and guardians to ensure that emergency contact
information for students is always up-to-date and complete.

V. Physical Building Security

Schools shall provide a physical environment, emergency equipment and supplies, and
procedures/policies that school officials, in consultation with the first responders, and other
security and emergency management professionals deem appropriate to safeguard the safety of
all students, staff, and visitors who lawfully enter school property.

Schools shall install and maintain appropriate signage, room numbers, building security systems,
alarms, lighting, emergency communications, and locking systems;

Visitors will be required to stop at a designated security station before being granted access into
the school. Visitors will be required to produce a State issued photo identification. Their
information will be entered into a visitor management system before they are permitted to enter
the school. Visitors are required to wear a visible visitor badge at all times. Visitors not known
to the school will be escorted to/from locations while inside the school. Visitors, such as parents
that are known to the school, do not have to be escorted while inside the building after they have
been screened by the visitor management system (i.e. Raptor).

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



- Ongoing visual inspections and systematic maintenance of security systems, alarms,
telephone and emergency communications systems, and locking devices will be
performed;

- Basic emergency procedures will be posted inside every classroom;

- Unoccupied classrooms, offices, and closets will be secured;

- Gates and/or fences around the school’s perimeter will be secured, unless staffed or
monitored by CCTV;

- Schools will store at least one AED on site;

Schools will store at least ten trauma kits inside the building/campus.

Schools shall have staff, security devices, and training that, in its judgment, are appropriate to
safeguard students, staff, and visitors. This may include but not be limited to school resource
officers, school safety officers, guardians, security personnel, monitors, aides, and other staff.

VI. Building Safety/Security

a. Staff Development and Student Management Issues

Early detection can eliminate a significant percentage of potential crises. Therefore,
school employees shall receive annual training about warning signs and symptoms of violent
behavior. Such training shall be organized annually by the Florida State Director (or designee):

- All newly hired crisis intervention staff, that will serve as a member of the Building-Level
Emergency Response Team and threat assessment team (such as school psychologists,
social workers, and counselors) shall be trained within 15 days of hire.

b. School Safety and Security Training

School shall maintain funds and other necessary resources for periodic multi-hazard
training for staff. Training may include procedures for the review and conduct of drills and other
exercises to test components of the emergency management plan, and may include the use of
tabletop exercises, in coordination with security consultants, public safety agencies which include
law enforcement and fire department.

The School Safety Committee at each school shall meet at least four (4) times a year to
review building safety issues, including but not limited to physical security issues, procedural
questions, building access, sign-in procedures, and site-related issues. The School Threat
Assessment Team shall meet monthly as required by Florida State Law.

Other training shall be implemented as follows:

1. Employees
The following training shall be provided to school administrators and staff:

- Crisis intervention training;

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



VII.

Active assailant /shooter training;

Stop the bleed training;

Threat assessment team training;

Bullying prevention and intervention training;

Knowledge of school policies related to security training; and
Training in the use of security devices and procedures as appropriate.
Harm Prevention & Threat Management Awareness

2. Students
Annual review of the code of conduct prior to beginning school year;
Annual review of school safety drills prior to beginning school year;

Classroom and/or assembly orientations on school security-related issues at the beginning
of each school year;

Non-violent conflict intervention and peer mediation; and
Anti-bullying and cultural diversity and tolerance instruction.

Each school must be able to have something in writing that shows a policy of “how” they
communicate how to report threats to a trusted adult (dates when provided, method,
etc.) Students need something that shows how students are informed of how to report
threats and/or concerning behavior.

IMPROVING COMMUNICATION AMONG STUDENTS, BETWEEN STUDENTS AND STAFF,
AND REPORTING POTENTIALLY VIOLENT INCIDENTS

a. Program to Improve Communication

Programs to improve communication may include, but are not limited to:

Youth-run programs;

Anonymous reporting mechanisms for school violence prevention;

On-premises/local counseling resources; and

Other programs based on school needs.

Consulting with students and staff, each principal (or designee) shall establish an

appropriate mechanism for reporting school violence, threats of violence, suspicious activities,
bullying, and harassment. Each threat assessment team shall report quantitative data on its
activities to the Office of Safe Schools in accordance with guidance from the office.

Principals (or designee) shall conduct a meeting with all students and staff at the

beginning of each school year:

Inform them that they are expected at all times to conduct themselves in
accordance with the Code of Conduct;

Inform them that they are expected to report all potentially violent incidents
to a responsible adult; and

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



- Inform them that staff will be available to discuss any concerns/problems.
b. Response to Reports of Potentially Violent Incidents

When a student or staff member becomes aware of implied or direct threats of violence
by other students, he or she must report the threat immediately to a teacher, principal, the
principal’s designee, or other responsible adult at the school. The principal (or designee) shall
investigate the report and determine if it is necessary to convene the Threat Assessment Team in
order to make further inquiries about the threat. At the conclusion of a threat assessment
investigation, the principal (or designee) shall consult the Florida State Director (or designee) to
determine appropriate management which includes referrals, services and necessary follow up
actions for the student. Disciplinary action, if any, will be in accordance with school policy and
state laws.

c. Response to acts of violence

Acts of violence requiring immediate response from building personnel shall be
responded to in accordance with protocols found in the Building-Level Emergency Management
Plan and once the situation is stabilized, acts of violence involving students shall be subject to
processing under the disciplinary procedures in accordance with school policy.

d. Communicating with Media
During a security-related incident at school, all contact with the media will be handled by the
Principal at the direction of the public relations firm or by the public relations firm directly. The
media and public will be informed and updated as soon as practicable on all developments in
statements released by the Florida State Director. Pupils, staff and parents should refer all
questions and requests for information to the Florida State Director in order to assure the release
of factual and current information.

VIII. HB 1473 and Rule 6A.-1.0019 Changes for the 2024-2025 School Year

Effective July 1, 2024 Florida has adopted new legislation which builds upon a measure of best
practices and codifies them under both law and administrative code. Key provisions under HB
1473 include:

e School Safety Awareness Program- Within the first 5 days of each school year, each
district school board and charter school governing board must ensure that instruction
on the use of the mobile suspicious activity reporting tool known as FortifyFL is provided
to students. The instruction must be age and developmentally appropriate and include
the consequences for making a threat or false report as described in ss. 790.162 and
790.163, respectively, involving school or school personnel's property, school
transportation, or a school-sponsored activity.

e By August 1, 2024, the Office of Safe Schools shall develop and adopt a Florida school
safety compliance inspection report to document compliance or noncompliance with
school safety requirements mandated by law or rule and adherence to established school
safety best practices to evaluate the safety, security, and emergency response of the
school. Upon the adoption of the report and upon any revisions to the report, the office
shall provide a blank copy of the report to each district school 380 superintendent and
charter school administrator.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



The office shall conduct unannounced inspections of all public schools, including charter
schools, while school is in session, triennially and investigate reports of noncompliance
with school safety requirements. Within three (3) school days after the unannounced
inspection, the office shall provide a copy of the completed Florida school safety
compliance inspection report, including any photographs or other evidence of
noncompliance, to the school safety specialist, the school principal or charter school
administrator, as appropriate, and the district school superintendent. The school safety
specialist or charter school administrator shall acknowledge receipt of the report in
writing within one (1) school day after receipt. The office shall reinspect any school with
documented deficiencies within six (6) months. The school safety specialist or charter
school administrator, or his or her designee, must provide the office with written notice
of how the noncompliance has been remediated within three (3) school days after receipt
of the report.

Progressive Discipline- The Office of Safe Schools shall refer any instructional personnel
as defined in s. 1012.01(2) and any administrative personnel as defined in s. 1012.01(3)
who knowingly violate s. 1006.07(6)(f) to the district school superintendent or charter
school administrator, as applicable, for disciplinary action if such action has not already
been commenced by the district school superintendent or charter school administrator
upon receipt of the Florida school safety compliance inspection report. The district school
superintendent or charter school administrator must notify the office of the outcome of
the disciplinary proceedings within three (3) school days after the conclusion of the
proceedings.

Emergency Drills- Law enforcement officers responsible for responding to the school in
the event of an active assailant emergency, as determined necessary by the sheriff in
coordination with the district's school safety specialist, must be physically present on
campus and directly involved in the execution of active assailant emergency drills. School
districts must notify law enforcement officers at least 24 hours before conducting an
active assailant emergency drill at which such law enforcement officers are expected to
attend. Each school, including charter schools, must maintain a record that is accessible
on each campus or by request of the Office of Safe Schools of all current school year and
prior school year drills conducted pursuant to this subsection, including the names of law
enforcement personnel present on campus for each active assailant emergency drill.
The Office of Safe Schools shall conduct annual unannounced inspections, using the form
adopted by the Office of Safe Schools pursuant to s. 1001.212(14), of all public schools,
including charter schools, while school is in session and investigate reports of
noncompliance with school safety requirements. The Office shall report violations of
paragraph (f) by administrative personnel and instructional personnel to the district
school superintendent or charter school administrator, as applicable.

School Safety Requirements- By August 1, 2024, each school district and charter school
governing board shall comply with the following school safety requirements:

o All gates or other access points that restrict ingress to or egress from a school
campus shall remain closed and locked when students are on campus. A gate or
other campus access point may not be open or unlocked, regardless of whether
it is during normal school hours, unless:

= Attended or actively staffed by a person when students are on campus;
= The use is in accordance with a shared use agreement pursuant to s.
1013.101; or

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



= The school safety specialist, or his or her designee, has documented in
the Florida Safe Schools Assessment Tool portal maintained by the Office
of Safe Schools that the gate or other access point is not subject to this
requirement based upon other safety measures at the school. The office
may conduct a compliance visit pursuant to s. 1001.212(14) to review if
such determination is appropriate.
All school classrooms and other instructional spaces must be locked to prevent
ingress when occupied by students, except between class periods when students
are moving between classrooms or other instructional spaces. If a classroom or
other instructional space door must be left unlocked or open for any reason other
than between class periods when students are moving between classrooms or
other instructional spaces, the door must be actively staffed by a person standing
or seated at the door.
All campus access doors, gates, and other access points that allow ingress to or
egress from a school building shall remain closed and locked at all times to
prevent ingress, unless a person is actively entering or exiting the door, gate, or
other access point or the school safety specialist, or his or her designee, has
documented in the Florida Safe Schools Assessment Tool portal maintained by
the Office of Safe Schools that the open and unlocked door, gate, or other access
point is not subject to this requirement based upon other safety measures at the
school. The office may conduct a compliance visit pursuant to s. 1001.212(14) to
review if such determination is appropriate. All campus access doors, gates, and
other access points may be electronically or manually controlled by school
personnel to allow access by authorized visitors, students, and school personnel.
All school classrooms and other instructional spaces must clearly and
conspicuously mark the safest areas in each classroom or other instructional
space where students must shelter in place during an emergency. Students must
be notified of these safe areas within the first ten (10) days of the school year. If
it is not feasible to clearly and conspicuously mark the safest areas in a classroom
or other instructional space, the school safety specialist, or his or her designee,
must document such determination in the Florida Safe Schools Assessment Tool
portal maintained by the Office of Safe Schools, identifying where affected
students must shelter in place. The office shall assist the school safety specialist
with compliance during the inspection required under s. 1001.212(14).
=  Persons who are aware of a violation of this paragraph must report the
violation to the school principal. The school principal must report the
violation to the school safety specialist no later than the next business
day after receiving such report. If the person who violated this paragraph
is the school principal or charter school administrator, the report must
be made directly to the district school superintendent or charter school
governing board, as applicable.

e Rule 6A-1.0019 (Threat Management Key Provisions)

O

Each school district and charter school governing board must adopt policies,
consistent with this rule, for the establishment of threat management teams and
for the completion of threat assessments. These policies must include providing
guidance to all students, faculty, and staff regarding recognition of concerning
behavior or threats and must identify members of the school community to whom

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



concerning behaviors and threats should be reported, pursuant to Section
1006.07(7)(c), F.S. These policies must also include procedures for referrals to
mental health services, pursuant to Section 1012.584(4), F.S., and referrals for
threats of self-harm, consistent with Section 394.463, F.S.
= All staff means all staff not just all school staff. Each school prior to the
start of the school year should provide their staff with the PowerPoint
attached entitled “2024-25 All Staff Presentation Florida Model”.
(attached) Either the school principal, Chair or Vice-Chair should provide
this presentation in person.
=  Each school MUST keep a copy of the PowerPoint, sign in sheets for all
staff which attended with date, role and signature available for state
auditors.
=  For students, each school must be able to have something in writing that
shows a policy of “how” they communicate how to report threats to a
trusted adult (dates when provided, method, etc.) (NOTE: Students need
not be provided with the name of the school’s Chair, simply something
that shows how students are informed of how to report threats and/or
concerning behavior.

o Beginning with the 2024-25 school year, district and school-level teams must be
designated before the start of the school year. Team members who have not
previously completed training must complete Florida Model training before the
start of the school year. Those appointed to threat management teams after the
start of the school year must complete Florida Model training within sixty (60)
days of appointment.

=  For Principals and all members of the School Based Threat Management
Teams (SBTMT): If you have been trained and certified during the 2023-
24 school year, you do not need to retake any in-person training for
HPTM. However, you MUST take an approximate 2-hour online refresher
training within 60 days from the first day of school. This training will be
provided by the Office of Safe Schools available sometime mid-July. Each
SBTMT member and the principals will access this training through the
state’s Single Sign On (like the FSSAT). If members of your team do not
have a single sign on please contact your districts. The training will have
knowledge questions throughout and failure to answer correctly will
result in starting over so ensure your teams carefully listen and read each
slide. Your district will have access to each school who has completed
and is still pending.

= |f you are a new principal, chair, vice-chair or any other role on your
school’s SBTMT, you MUST be trained on the full HPTM training (days 1
& 2 if applicable- day one regular SBTMT members, principals, chairs and
vice chairs; day two principals, chairs and vice chairs only)

Appendix A - Safety and Security Standard Operating Procedures
Appendix B - Risk Management School Safety Committees

Appendix C — Active Assailant/Shooter Procedures

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Appendix D — MSD Security Policies Checklist

Appendix E — SESIR Reporting Roles & Responsibilities

Appendix F- Rule 6A-1.0018 Key Responsibilities

Appendix G- HB 543 Key Safety & Security Points

Appendix H- School Specific Policies

Appendix I- Involuntary Examinations & Removal for Involuntary Examinations

Appendix J- Rule 6A-1.0019 Threat Management

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Appendix A
Safety and Security Solutions and Procedures and School Safety Training and Procedures

In furtherance of the implementation of the Master Safety Plan, the School shall also implement
the following digitized program solutions and School Safety Training and Procedures:

Safety and Security Solutions

School Emergency Management Plan Solution

The School Emergency Management Plan Solution is a multiplatform emergency preparedness
and planning system. It is a comprehensive digitized program that aligns with the National
Incident Management System and meets “best practice” standards for the all-hazards approach
necessary to protect schools. The emergency management plan is customized for each school
environment and allows authorized school administrators the ability to coordinate the essential
components involved in emergency planning, training, and drilling. It includes school-specific
emergency response procedures, designation of school safety teams, critical contact information,
and other relevant information, such as floor plans, maps, and key documents.

The principal (or designee) shall update the digital plan as appropriate by August 30'" of each year.
All safety meetings, training, and drills must be logged into the digital plan by the principal (or

designee) throughout the school year.

School Threat Assessment Solution

The School Threat Assessment Solution is a multiplatform threat assessment and management
system designed to assist the school threat assessment team when investigating a student of
concern. When a student or staff member becomes aware of implied or direct threats of violence
by other students, he/she must report the threat immediately to the principal, assistant principal,
or school dean. The principal (or designee) shall determine if it is necessary to convene the threat
assessment team in order to make further inquiries about the threat. Each school has adopted a
threat assessment team process that will systematically investigate student-made threats to
determine apparent risk level of the student of concern. Threat assessment investigations are
non-bias and conducted using standardized questionnaires. The purpose of a threat assessment
investigation is to determine if a student poses a real danger to the school community or
themselves after gathering information from multiple sources.

School employees that are members of the school threat assessment team are required to
complete the digital threat assessment team training course by August 30" of each year. Newly
hired employees — that will be assigned to the threat assessment team - are required to complete
the digital threat assessment team training course within 15 days of hire. The principal (or
designee) will manage the threat assessment program. They are responsible for providing
members of the threat assessment team access to the digital training and ensuring they complete
the training in a timely manner. If the school threat assessment team is activated and performs a
threat assessment investigation, the principal (or designee) shall notify the Florida State Director
(or designee) to inform them that a threat case was opened on a student of concern. The principal
can start a threat assessment investigation if they deem it necessary without contacting the
Florida State Director in advance. At the conclusion of a threat assessment case, the principal

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



should consult with the Florida State Director (or designee) to discuss the appropriate post-
assessment management of the student of concern. Disciplinary action, if any, will be in
accordance with school policy. The principal —and threat assessment team - should use the threat
assessment software tool when conducting threat assessments. Reports of potentially violent
incidents shall be shared with local law enforcement as soon as possible.

School Emergency Preparedness Training Solution

The School Emergency Preparedness Training Solution is a multiplatform digital training system.
The app works across multiple platforms, including iOS, Android, and Windows, and is designed
to provide school employees essential professional development training related to school safety.
Topics covered in the training modules include: Crisis Intervention, Emergency Response, Bullying
Prevention/Intervention, Reunification and Active Shooter/Assailant Preparedness.

School employees are required to complete the digital training by August 30" of each year. Newly
hired employees are required to complete the training within 15 days of hire. The principal (or
designee) will manage the training system. They are responsible for providing their staff access to
the digital training and ensuring they complete the training in a timely manner.

TAP App Emergency Communication Solution & Alyssa’s Law

Beginning with the 2022-23 school year, schools are required to implement a mobile panic alert
system that meets all requirements of Section 1006.07(4)(c), F.S. Mobile panic alert systems must
include mobile devices placed throughout each school campus. In determining the number and
placement of devices needed to afford all staff members the ability to silently and easily activate
a panic alert in the event of an on-campus emergency, districts must consider using a combination
of fixed panic alert buttons, mobile and desktop applications, landline phone capabilities, and
wearable panic alerts (such as on a lanyard).

By August 1, 2022, schools must include Alyssa’s Alert in their local emergency policies and
procedures required by Section 1006.07(4)(a), F.S. The Alyssa’s Alert policies and procedures must
be developed in consultation with the county 911 authority and local emergency management
office to ensure that the system selected by the district integrates with local public safety
answering point (PSAP) infrastructure to transmit calls and mobile activations.

The TAP App Emergency Communication Solution is a multiplatform hazard and threat
management crisis communication system. The app works across multiple platforms, including
i0S, Android, and Windows. TAP App serves two main functions related to school safety: TAP App
Security - designed to assist schools at responding to, mitigating, and managing emergency
situations. This includes both natural and human-caused incidents. TAP App Security is
customized for each school environment and allows school employees and other key stakeholders
that work at the school the ability to communicate horizontally and in real-time during
emergencies. For the 2021-22 school year, Tap App has integrated with AT&T-Mutualink in
accordance with Alyssa’s Law. Pursuant to the law, Tap App will allow for immediate two-way
communication with 911 dispatch in times of crisis. Connection tests between the AT&T-
Mutualink software and 911 centers have been scheduled for all CSUSA managed schools and will
be completed by June 1, 2022.

School employees are required to participate in the TAP App Security program. School employees
must download the app from the appropriate app store and create an account. School employees

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



will maintain the app on their mobile devices and/or classroom computers. School employees
must watch the TAP App Security Training video by August 30" of each year to familiarize
themselves with the app and its end user features. Newly hired employees are required to watch
the training video within 15 days of hire. Any school employee can initiate a lockdown through
the TAP App system if there is an imminent threat, such as an active shooter/assailant or armed
threat. School employees are permitted to possess their mobile phones during the school day to
be used during emergency situations.

TAP App Student - designed to provide students with an up-to-date means for reporting behavior
that is deemed suspicious and/or threatening. The anonymous student reporting function
provides students a voice, so school officials can prevent tragedies and provide early intervention
services to students in need. Access to TAP App Student can be offered to students in 5" Grade
and above. School administrators at each school will determine the appropriateness for students
accessing the anonymous reporting app on a student-by-student basis. School administrators
should reference the document entitled, “TAP App Student Implementation Procedures” before
implementing the student app at their school.

TAP App Student Implementation Procedures

Introduction

TAP App Student is part of the TAP App Emergency Communication Solution designed to provide
up to date means for reporting behavior that is deemed suspicious and/or threatening. In keeping
with most anonymous reporting systems, TAP App Student provides students a voice so you can
safeguard your school through a variety of means. The system allows for customizable incidents
based on type, location, etc. Data is easily uploaded, tracked and back-ended to school
management.

For students: Reports are kept confidential and securely stored so that students can feel secure
in standing up for themselves and their peers without risk of reprisal.

For Administrators: They can view, track, and respond to reports for early intervention and safety.
Anonymous Student Reporting Procedures

While school safety is greatly augmented by the variety of physical and technical procedures,
policies and measures presently underway, it should be remembered that true security and safety
is achieved by implementing efforts that integrate a host of social learning through emotional
positive behavior, mental health, academics and an environment that fosters comprehensive
school safety in conjunction with personal involvement and accountability. This is why, while
FCCS and CSUSA recognizes the responsibility placed upon our faculty and staff with the care of
our students, it is critical to recognize that everyone plays a vital role in school safety. Students,
staff, parents and the community are encouraged to be observant and let an adult know if they
see or hear something that makes them feel uncomfortable, nervous or frightened, and especially
if they hear threats of dangerous behavior. TAP App Student is designed for just such involvement
focused primarily upon the student body. FCCS through CLPS shall commence rollout of the TAP
App Student program and initiate the following procedures.

Letter to Parents: Schools should notify parents that the program will be part of their school’s
safety and security profile. Parents should be made aware, generally, of the guidelines and
procedures CSUSA has implemented to ensure safety at their children’s school and that their

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



concerns and questions are being addressed and that transparency of risk mitigation efforts is
paramount.

Training for Faculty: Faculty, administrators and staff should be trained on the TAP App Student
program and these efforts should be coordinated with local police and/or the SRO on site.
Training for Students: FCCS will encourage its schools to promote the TAP App Student program.
It should be emphasized at the beginning of each school year and at the start of the midpoint of
the year as well. Students should be reminded that they have an obligation to themselves and to
their classmates to bring information about dangerous situations to adults at the school so that
we can respond quickly and appropriately to protect their safety. The safety and well-being of
their friends and classmates are more important than the issue of tattling. They should also be
made expressly aware that they will not get into trouble and that the program is entirely
anonymous.

Training for Parents: FCCS/CSUSA should coordinate with school guidance counselors, SROs/local
police and/or mental health professionals to provide parents with an understanding of both the
App and their role. The latter should include simple items such as:

Reassure children that they are safe. Emphasize that schools are very safe. Let children talk about
their feelings, help put them into perspective, and assist them in expressing these feelings
appropriately.

Make time to talk. Children and youth do not always talk about their feelings readily. Remind
parents and staff how important it is to maintain open communication with children.

Review safety procedures. This should include procedures and safeguards at school and home.
Help children identify at least one adult at school and in the community to whom they talk with
if they feel threatened or at risk.

Remind your child. Students have an obligation to themselves and to their classmates to bring
information about dangerous situations to adults at the school so that the school can respond
quickly and appropriately to protect their safety.

Social media. Remind parents and students that they can help make our schools safer, by not
passing along rumors they hear to their neighbors or friends; but, instead, reporting them to a
school administrator who will then investigate and turn it over to the police, if necessary. Please
refrain from posting perceived campus safety issues or shortcomings on social media. This activity
has the potential to place our children and staff at unnecessary risks.

Speak Out. If your child has a smart device, please encourage your children to download App.
These are but a few factors that FCCS should consider during the rollout phase of the TAP App
Student Anonymous Reporting program. It lends another layer to school safety and security and
with proper basic training and familiarization, can offer additional safety for schools while making
students also aware and involved in their well-being.

School Safety Training and Procedures

Undergoing safety training is a proven and effective way to create and maintain safer and more
secure learning environments. School employees should receive training on a variety of natural
and human-caused threats, hazards, and emergencies.

In addition to Crisis Intervention, Emergency Response, Bullying Prevention/Intervention, and
Active Shooter/Assailant Preparedness Training, provided to employees digitally, the following is
a list of training topics certain school employees should receive: Stop the Bleed Training, First
Aid/CPR/AED Training, Bullying Prevention Training, Threat Assessment Team Training,
Reunification, Mental Health First Aid Training, and Situational Awareness Training.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Access Control and Visitor Screening

In order to maintain a safe school environment, it is important that school officials (and security
personnel) monitor and manage who is on school property and who is granted access to enter
the school building. Each school has access control and visitor screening policies written and
acknowledged within their respective EMSP. These are reviewed annually for accuracy and
updating as needed.

Schools will perform access control and visitor screening.
Access to the Campus:

Vehicular Monitoring: Vehicles will be required to enter campus through designated roadways that
are monitored. Vehicles will be monitored remotely by a security officer (or another designated
employee)

Access to the Building:

Visitor Screening — visitors will be required to stop at a designated security station before being
granted access into the school. This could include a secure vestibule inside the main entrance (or
other designated entrance) where a visitor is screened by a front office worker (or another
designated employee). Visitors will be required to produce a State issued photo identification.
Their information will be entered into a visitor management system before they are permitted to
enter the school. Visitors are required to wear a visible visitor badge at all times. Visitors not
known to the school will be escorted to/from locations while inside the school. Visitors, such as
parents that are known to the school, do not have to be escorted while inside the building after
they have been screened by the visitor management system (i.e. Raptor). The visitor screening
area will be equipped with a CCTV / Buzz-in system that is controlled from inside the building.

Police, security, or other designated employees will make random checks around the campus.

School Safety Drills

Performing safety drills is a proven and effective method of maintaining a state of readiness at
school. Natural and human-caused threats, hazards, and emergencies can occur quickly and
sometimes with little or no warning. Therefore, school employees should practice for
emergencies in advance. Performing drills provides employees the opportunity to become better
prepared for emergency situations.

Schools will conduct a variety of safety drills annually. These safety drills will include:

Evacuation Drills- everyone is to exit the building and stage at pre-designated evacuation staging
areas. Common reasons for evacuation include but are not limited to: Fires, Gas Leaks, Bomb
Threats, Other Internal Hazards. Ten (10) evacuation drills are required annually.

Lockdown Dirills - everyone inside the building is to secure themselves inside rooms, lock the door,
and move out of the line of sight from the hallway (i.e. safe spot). If you are outside the building,
everyone is to move to pre-designated evacuation staging areas. Common reasons for lockdown

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



include but are not limited to: Active Shooters, Active Assailants, Armed Threats. Five (5) lockdown
drills are required annually.

Shelter Drills - everyone is to move to pre-designated sheltering areas inside the school. Common
reasons for shelter include but are not limited to: Severe Weather, Tornados, External Threats.
Two (2) shelter drills are required annually.

Lock-Out Drills - everyone that is outside is to re-enter the building. All outdoor activities are
suspended. Business as usual inside the school. Common reasons for lock-out include but are not
limited to: Dangerous Police Activities, Homeland Security Threats, Other External Threats. Two
(2) lock-out drills are required annually.

Hold Drills - everyone is to remain at their current location and await further instructions from
administration. Common reasons for hold include but are not limited to: Medical Emergencies,
Facilities Failures, Students Fighting, Disorderly Persons, Other. Two (2) hold drills are required
annually.

Re-Unification Drill - students will be released to their parent/guardian or other authorized person.
Common reasons for re-unification include but are not limited to: Early Dismissals, Incidents Where
it is Unsafe to Re-Enter the Building, Other Hazards. One (1) re-unification drill is required
annually.

If the State requires additional drills, other than those listed above, the school must perform such
required drills. If the State requires fewer drills than listed above, the school must still perform the

drills listed above.

All drills should be scheduled in advance and documented in the emergency drill section of the
emergency management plan.

Physical Building Security

The school shall provide a physical environment, emergency equipment and supplies, and
procedures/policies that school officials, in consultation with the first responders and other
security and emergency management professionals judge appropriate to safeguard the safety of
all students, staff, and visitors who lawfully enter school property.

The school shall install and maintain appropriate signage, room numbers, building security
systems, alarms, lighting, emergency communications, and locking systems.

Ongoing visual inspections and systematic maintenance of security systems, alarms, telephone
and emergency communications systems, and locking devices will be performed.

Basic emergency procedures will be posted inside every classroom.
Unoccupied classrooms, offices, and closets will be secured.
Gates and/or fences around the school’s perimeter will be secured, unless staffed or monitored.

Schools will store at least one AED on site.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Schools will store at least ten trauma kits inside the building.

Contacting Law Enforcement

Local first responders are an integral part of the school’s ability to manage crisis situations. School
shall make every reasonable effort to maintain good working relationships with local emergency
responders.

The principal (or designee) shall meet at least once annually with respective law enforcement
officials to review current policies and procedures and plan for emergencies.

Jurisdictional police (or other emergency responders) will be contacted if, in the opinion of the
principal (or designee), such outside assistance is necessary. In the event of an ongoing violent
incident that threatens the safety and security of staff and students, the principal will contact the
police for assistance and notify the Florida State Director (or designee) as soon as practicable.
Other than an immediate crisis, actions with regards to contacting law enforcement will depend
on the scope and nature of the crisis.

Any school employee can initiate a lockdown if there is an imminent threat, such as an active
shooter/assailant or armed threat. Directly contacting law enforcement by any means available

from anywhere on campus is authorized during imminent threats.

Lockdown and Classroom Hard Corners

During an active assailant/shooter or armed threat situation, it is imperative that school
employees take swift and appropriate actions to protect themselves and others entrusted to their
care. The best way to protect yourself from an active assailant/shooter or armed threat is to
create Time, Distance, and Shielding between you and the threat. In sitiations where it is not
practical (or safe) to runway and/or escape, school employees must know how to quickly
lockdown a classroom and protect themselves and their students from an internal threat.

Classroom teachers will mark-off a “safe spot” inside their classroom if possible. This is done by
placing visible tape on the floor that will allow people inside the classroom to know where to
assemble during a lockdown so they are not visible to someone looking into the classroom from
the hallway.

During a lockdown, staff members will: ensure the classroom door is secured/locked (doors should
remain locked during the school day). Move everyone to an area of the room that is out of-the-
line-of-sight from someone looking into the room from the hallway (this is known as a safe spot or
hard corner). If safe to do so, access into the classroom can be impeded by barricading the door
or moving furniture (i.e., desks, chairs, shelves) in front of the doorway to impede someone from
easily gaining access to the room.

Daily Safety Measures at School

Staff members are expected to adhere to common sense basic safety measures. These measures
must be performed daily by school staff and become part of the “school culture” with the purpose
of creating a safe school environment.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Required daily safety measures include:

All authorized staff members will carry their classroom/office keys/swipe cards at all times. All
staff members will wear a school-issued photo identification badges and/or wear a school issued
shirt displaying the CSUSA logo.

Each teacher/staff member who occupies a room or area must scan the room or area upon first
entering. If the door is open, the classroom teacher will remain near the door until it is closed.
Classroom doors will remain locked at all times unless the teacher is physically standing at the
doorway.

The principal (or designee) will be notified immediately if anything looks suspicious on campus.

After the designated start time of the school day, each school will be appropriately secured.

All visitors must report to each building's designated access control entry point(s), such as a
security station before being allowed to proceed further into the building.

All contractors assigned to work in any building must first be authorized by the Facilities
Department (or other authorized school official) and receive an identification badge, which must

be visible at all times while on campus.

Supervising Students Outside the Classroom

Staff members are expected to safeguard students both inside and outside the classroom. Their
protective role extends to times when students are outside the building during school activities
such as recess, physical education, or other outdoor events on campus.

All staff members that are outside the building with students will carry a fully charged walkie-
talkie radio and/or mobile device (i.e., smart phone with communication app).

Areas outside the building will be visually scanned by staff members before students are permitted
in those areas.

Staff members will not congregate together in small groups when supervising students outside.
They will position themselves a reasonable distance apart so the entire outside space where
students are can be visually monitored.

Staff members will not permit younger students (K-4) to re-enter the building alone. Students that
re-enter the building must be accompanied by another student or staff member. Staff members
will notify the main office (or other appropriate employee inside the building) when a student is
re-entering the building.

Staff members will not leave students outside on their own. Students outside the building must
have constant adult supervision.

Staff members must have quick access to a first aid/trauma kit/AED when outside the building
with students.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Staff members will report all incidents where a student is injured while outside, regardless of
severity. Anytime a student is injured, he/she will be examined by the school nurse (or other
school employee), and a written report will be made.

Staff members will report suspicious persons or packages to local law enforcement (or security) if
observed when outside the building. Staff members will not approach a suspicious person or touch
a suspicious package. Staff members will escort students away from the suspicious
person/package. Police or security will investigate reports of suspicious persons or packages

Appendix B
School Safety Committees
(District/School Specific)

Appendix C
Active Assailant/Shooter Procedures

Overview

Following the tragic event that took place at Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School in Parkland,
Florida, Governor DeSantis signed Executive Order 19-45, entitled “Ensuring the Safety of Our
Children in Our Schools.” Although it is true that school safety has improved significantly over
the years, there are still several questions and concerns from parents, staff, and the community
regarding school safety. Targeted violent attacks at schools still occur from time to time and
schools are continuously taking assertive steps to prevent attacks. However, if prevention efforts
fail, schools must have viable plans in place to minimize the negative impacts an active
assailant/shooter could have on a school. This has resulted in the State of Florida mandating all
schools establish active assailant/shooter procedures.

Purpose

The purpose of these procedures is to ensure that there are practical guidelines in place to protect
students, staff, and visitors in the event of an active assailant/shooter on school grounds or in the
school building. Active Assailant/Shooter is a term used by law enforcement to describe a
situation in which a shooting (or violent assault) is actively in progress. A coalition of U.S.
government agencies — including the FBI and DHS formally defined an active assailant/shooter as
an individual actively engaged in killing or attempting to kill people in a confined and populated
space. To minimize the negative impacts from such an event, FCCS has developed Standardized
Operating Procedures (SOP) for an Active Assailant/Shooter incident.

Concept

There are various procedures being taught to schools to respond to an active assailant/shooter
incident. Some strategies include: RHF (Run — Hide — Fight), ADD (Avoid — Deny — Defend), and
ABC (Avoid — Barricade — Confront). Most of the procedures currently being taught focus on
removing yourself away from a threat and defending yourself as a last resort. A viable strategy

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



to safeguard yourself during an active assailant/shooter incident is to create time, distance, and
shielding between you and the threat. This can be accomplished by evacuating a building or
running away from the threat, locking down inside classrooms or offices, barricading and/or
obstructing entrance ways into rooms, moving behind objects to shield yourself from possible
gunfire, and defending yourself by engaging the assailant/shooter as a desperate last resort.

There is no “cookie-cutter” procedure that can be applied to every scenario. There are multiple
variables that will dictate the appropriate response to an active assailant/shooter. To properly
prepare schools for a possible active assailant/shooter incident, school staff and students are to
be provided with response options applicable to age and/or disability levels that can be applied
based on circumstances that exist at the time of an incident.

Preparedness

Preparedness activities take place before an emergency occurs. This includes the continuous
cycle of planning, training, drilling, and evaluating in an effort to prepare the school for an
emergency, such as an active assailant/shooter. Here are a few ways the school can become
better prepared:

Control access points into buildings (i.e. CCTV, Remote Buzz-in, Visitor Screening)
Keep classroom doors locked during the school day when classes are in session
Develop clear, concise, and easy-to-follow emergency procedures

Enhance safety by identifying (and marking) hard corners inside classrooms

Assure the school has multiple and reliable ways to communicate during emergencies
Practice active assailant/shooter procedures by performing drills and training
Coordinate drills and training with local police and emergency responders

NoubkwhNpeE

Recommended Procedures

First and foremost, any school personnel may directly activate the school’s active
assailant/shooter response procedures without consultation with anyone else. School
personnel have the “authority and are highly encouraged” to report imminent threats, such as
an armed intruder or active assailant/shooter. The best mass internal communication tool is to
utilize the soft panic app (TAP App Security). Other available modes of communication such as
calls to 911 should be used if safe to do so. It is important that internal mass communication
occurs to allow others the opportunity to protect themselves.

If an administrator, teacher, or staff member becomes aware of an active assailant/shooter, they
should take immediate steps to safeguard themselves. Once at a safe location, they should
initiate a Code Red using all available communication means. The TAP App system should be
activated as soon as possible. If making an announcement over the PA system, use plain language
and state, “This is a Code Red — Lockdown — Lockdown — Lockdown.” Repeat this announcement
three times, if safe to do so. The PA alert should also include the location of the incident so that
decisions can be made whether to take shelter or direction in which to escape.

School personnel (administrators, teachers, staff) should look for the most viable way to create
time, distance, and shielding between themselves (including nearby students) and the threat.
This includes:

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Direct students to quickly evacuate the building or run away from the threat
Instruct students to assemble at an evacuation staging area

Account for students when at a safe evacuation staging area

If there are injured students, provide first aid and report injuries by calling 911
Remain at the staging area unless directed otherwise by law enforcement

YYVYVY

Each school’s emergency plan will have pre-designated evacuation staging areas (on and off
campus) where people can go to during an active assailant/shooter incident.

If at a location where escaping is not a safe option (i.e., second or third floor of building), distance
from incident, or you are responsible for vulnerable students (i.e., younger children or students
with special needs/disabilities), the best option might be to lockdown inside a room and retreat
to the designated hard corner with students.

> Lock the door, if it is not already locked. Barricade or obstruct the doorway with available
furniture, if safe to do so

> Direct students to quickly move to the hard corner inside the room

> Instruct students to remain quiet (i.e., silence cell phones, no talking)

> |f there are injured students, provide first aid and report injuries by calling 911

> Be prepared to defend yourself and students if the assailant gets into the room

> Do not unlock the door or leave the classroom until directed to do so by a law

enforcement officer who is on scene
Students (if on their own) should look for the most viable way to create time, distance, and
shielding between themselves and the threat. This includes:

> Quickly evacuate the building or run away from the threat

> Seek refuge at a safe location away from the threat

> (Call 911 to report any injured students with their group

> Remain at the safe location unless directed otherwise by law enforcement
If student(s) are at a location where escaping is not a safe option (i.e., second or third floor of
building), and there are no school staff or first responders present to provide instructions, their
best option might be to lockdown inside a nearby room. They should:

> Quickly enter the nearest room, lock the door, if possible, and barricade or obstruct the
doorway with available furniture, if safe to do so

> Move to the hard corner area inside the room

> Contact 911 to report any injured students with their group

> Be prepared to defend themselves if the assailant gets into the room
General Safety Recommendations

During an active assailant/shooter incident, police resources will be dispatched to the school.
Responding officers will be rapidly entering buildings and searching for the threat, with the
primary mission of neutralizing the active assailant(s). School staff and Students should:

> Follow all instructions from police that are on scene

> Present themselves to police as non-threatening by putting their hands high above their
heads with fingers open

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



A\

Provide police (via 911 or other mode of communication) with pertinent information
during an incident (i.e., location or direction of travel of assailant(s), description of
assailant(s), types of weapon(s), etc.)

Remain calm, and follow officers’ instructions

Put down any items in your hands (i.e., bags, jackets)

Immediately raise hands and spread fingers

Keep hands visible at all times

Avoid making quick movements toward officers such as holding on to them for safety
Avoid pointing, screaming and/or yelling

Do not stop to ask officers for help or direction when evacuating, just proceed in the
direction from which officers are entering the premises.

YYVYVYYVYVY

Age-Appropriate Response: As required by SB 7026 Public Safety Act, all schools are required
provide active shooter preparedness plans. Such plans must also include steps to better prepare
faculty and staff for how to implement strategies that account for the elementary age students.
The following steps should be presented, trained and implemented in ways that are not fear-
based but rather developed to provide a better understanding for what needs to be done by
students if they encounter such a situation.

For younger elementary age students, the National Center for Youth Issues, together with U.S.
Department of Education and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security recommend guidelines
that reflect universal standards yet recognize local conditions. These are not “one size fits all” but
have objective applicability.

K through 2™ Grade: It is vital that students of this age are given recommendations in a non-
fearful way. The A.L.I.C.E. method is one such guide. It includes;

> Alert: students are notified someone of danger is in the building. Stop, look and listen to
the teacher for all directions.
Lockdown: Remain quiet and stay out of sight
Inform: Let others know of the danger if possible
Counter: If the danger enters the classroom, throw items at the assailant, run in a zigzag
fashion make noise.

> Evacuate: leave the building as quickly as possible, hands in the air.
Grade 3 through 5: Students of this age are provided with the basic guidelines of Run, Hide, Fight.
These include:

v vy

4

Listen to any and all instructions from your teacher.

Evacuate the building or run away from the threat seeking refuge at a safe location away
from the threat

Remain at the safe location unless directed otherwise by law enforcement

Lock the door, if it is not already locked. Barricade or obstruct the doorway with available
furniture, if safe to do so.

Move to the hard corner inside the room

Remain quiet (i.e. silence cell phones, no talking)

Be prepared to defend yourself and students if the assailant gets into the room.

\

vy

vy VY

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



>

Do not unlock the door or leave the classroom until directed to do so by a law
enforcement officer who is on scene.

Middle through High School: Students in middle and/or high school should follow the baseline
principles outlined above within the general recommended procedures. These include:

YyVYVYVY

A\l

vyvyVvyy

Quickly evacuate the building or run away from the threat

Seek refuge at a safe location away from the threat

Call 911 once at a safe location

Remain at the safe location unless directed otherwise by law enforcement

When escaping is not a safe option (i.e. second or third floor of building), and there are
no school employees or first responders present to provide instructions, their best option
might be to lockdown inside a nearby room.

Quickly enter the nearest room, lock the door, if possible, and barricade or obstruct the
doorway with available furniture, if safe to do so.

Move to the hard corner area inside the room

Be prepared to defend themselves if the assailant gets into the room.

Follow all instructions from police that are on scene

Present themselves to police as non-threatening by putting their hands high above their
heads with fingers open

Appendix D
MSD Security Policies Checklist

MSD Commission Recommendations and FCCS/CSUSA Response

All staff should have clearly established roles and responsibilities that are outlined in a
written policy and procedure manual provided to all personnel. The school security staff
and/or “safety team” should regularly meet and train on proper protocols and procedures
in emergency situations and coordinate with law enforcement.
a. Each school’s EMSP defines roles for the school’s administration and their role
during a crisis. This is reviewed annually and the safety team meets quarterly at
a minimum.
All school campus gates must remain closed and locked, and when opened for ingress and
egress they should be staffed to prevent unauthorized campus access.
a. CSUSA policy requires all gates are locked/closed when not in use. All gates are
staffed during drop off and pick up times.
Doors leading to instructional classrooms or student-occupied space and for
ingress/egress to campus or a specific building should remain locked during school hours,
and if they are open, they should be staffed. All teachers should be able to lock doors
from within the classroom, and keys should be on their person at all times.
a. CSUSA policy requires all classrooms are locked during school hours. A written key
policy is part of each school’s EMSP and acknowledged/updated annually.
Every district and school should have a written, unambiguous Code Red or similar active
assailant response policy that is well known to all school personnel, parents and students.
The policy must make unequivocally clear that all personnel are empowered to activate

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



10.

11.

12.

emergency active assailant response procedures and that those procedures are to be
immediately implemented upon notification.

a. Each FCCS school has a written active shooter policy that is age appropriate and
part of the school’s EMSP. The active shooter policy is used to create an active
shooter plan and these plans are drilled throughout the school year.

Every school must have an effective communication system through which everyone on
campus can see and/or hear—and immediately react to—a called Code Red or similar
active assailant response notification.

a. Each FCCS school has a combination of lights, PA system, alarms and a mobile mass
notification alert system that marks a Code Red in every school.

Classrooms should establish safety measures, such as hard corners or other safe areas,
and teachers should have the ability to cover door windows quickly.

a. FCCS/CSUSA policy requires every school designate a hard corner in each

classroom.

Schools should evaluate and give consideration to the appropriateness of locking
bathrooms doors.

a. FCCS schools that do not have bathroom doors has measures in place to ensure
students in bathrooms are accounted for during a Code Red situation.

All Florida public schools should immediately provide law enforcement with live and real-
time access to all school camera systems. The schools’ districts should provide law
enforcement with adequate training to access and operate the cameras.

a. FCCS has established MOUs with several sheriff’s offices and local police
throughout the state for camera access to our schools. The process is ongoing.

Schools should be required to notify students of FortifyFL, promote its use by advertising
the app on campus and in school publications and install the app on all student-issued
computer devices. Education about and publication of reporting platforms must be
continuous and ongoing by the schools. Future updates to the application should explore
the possibility of two-way live dialogue functionality.

a. FCCS/CSUSA policy has required FortifyFL is on every school’s homepage online
and on every school issued device (computer, laptop, tablet, etc.)

Every school district should implement a policy that requires its personnel to report all
indicators of suspicious student behavior to an administrator. The administrator should
be required to document the report and his/her disposition of the information (e.g.
referred to threat assessment team, unsubstantiated). The policy should require that the
disposition of all threats of school violence be reviewed at least by the school’s principal —
if not by a higher authority—and reported to the threat assessments team, which has
mandatory law enforcement participation.

a. FCCS/CSUSA policy requires all suspicious incidents are reported and
documented within the threat assessment tool and reviewed by each school’s
threat assessment team.

The BCPS threat assessment process is reactive; it needs to be proactive so that the TATs
obtain information about concerning behavior before they manifest into actual threats.
The TATs should seek out information and not merely wait for reports from staff or
students. This applies to TATs across all Florida schools.

a. Per policy, FCCS/CSUSA requires that each school’s TAT meet monthly to discuss
possible and ongoing threats proactively.

The TATs should have dedicated positions/members. Rotating TAT members does not
allow for consistency, and personnel do not gain the necessary experience when rotated

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

on and off the TATs. However, temporary members should be used to supplement the
team, if needed, to provide specific information or knowledge.

a. FCCS/CSUSA policy requires members of the TAT are trained annually and
provided with updated information as needed.

The Florida DOE should develop a standardized, statewide behavioral threat assessment
instrument and create a statewide threat assessment database that is accessible to all
districts and appropriate stakeholders. Florida should consider the model used by the
State of Virginia, which is widely recognized as the leader in school-based behavioral
threat assessment.
Pursuant to DOE’s August 1, 2019 memo, a standardized, statewide behavioral
threat assessment instrument for use by all public schools, including charter
schools, which addresses early identification, evaluation, early intervention, and
student support has been developed. The Comprehensive Student Threat
Assessment Guidelines (CSTAG) (F.S 1006.07(7) are part of every FCCS schools’
threat assessment process. Training is provided annually and all members of the
threat assessment teams must take the CSTAG training. All school faculty must
take the Threat Assessment Team Training.

b. For the 2022-23 school year, each member of a threat assessment team must
complete Office-approved training on the CSTAG model no later than December
31, 2021. This training is part of the CLPS Threat Assessment Team training
located within the CLPS portal for every charter school. All FCCS/CSUSA schools’
TAT members have been trained in CSTAG which commenced in October, 2021
and concluded April, 2022.

All TATs should be comprised of specific (static) members, with at-large positions in each
case for school personnel with personal knowledge of the child. TATs should be required
to meet at least monthly and be proactive, not just reactive. The TATs should receive
regular training on threat assessments.

a. Pursuant to FCCS policy all TATs are required to meet monthly to discuss ongoing
and future threats to the school. FCCS/CSUSA requires that all monthly TAT
meetings for the coming 22/23 school year are logged into the CLPS software and
documented.

b. School districts will require that threat assessments are submitted through the
FSSAT. For the 2022-23 school year, the total number of threat assessments
conducted, the number of transient threats, and the number of substantive
threats. These are to be logged in under the “Incidents” link within the FSSAT.

All school personnel should receive mandated training on behavior indicators that should
be referred to the TAT for assessment. Reporting observed behaviors to the TAT should
be mandatory. There should be sanctions for non-reporting.

a. All CSUSA school personnel are required to take mandatory threat assessment
training annually and report all possible threats in the CLPS threat assessment
platform.

The annual districtwide FSSAT should specifically set forth the physical site security
priorities for the district in descending order of priority.

a. CSUSA requires that every school’s FSSAT is reviewed annually by the Director of
Security and security priorities are set forth in descending order of priority. In
consultation with Facilities and IT, cost projections for security upgrades are
presented for possible security grant allocations.

School Districts must ensure that each school accurately reports all required SESIR
incidents and that underreporting is eliminated. School districts should be held

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

accountable for accurate reporting, and the districts should hold their administrators
accountable.
a. FCCS/CSUSA policy requires every school exceed state SESIR mandates and have
at least two (2) trained SESIR staff. This would include the Principal and at least
one (1) equivalent personnel.

Campuses should have single ingress and egress points to the extent that is consistent
with this level’s criteria of minimal cost.

a. CSUSA requires all schools maintain a single ingress and egress points at drop off
and pickup.

Interior access should be limited by co-locating Attendance, Guidance, Main Office and
other public business offices.

a. CSUSA school co-locate main office personnel and staff.

Clear signs should direct visitors to appropriate entry points. All entry/exit doors should
indicate a closed campus and direct visitors to report to the front office.

a. FCCS schools have adequate signage and security grant monies over the past two

years have supplemented those schools that require additional signage.
Install a door alert or notification system to the main entry for visitor control.
Nonessential visitors should be limited and when allowing visitors they should be required
to show positive identification, state their purpose for entering the school, be issued a
visitor badge and, when appropriate, have a staff escort during the entire time the person
is inside the school.

a. FCCS schools have a door notification system in place. A written visitor policy has
been created for all CSUSA managed schools that each school must
acknowledge annually through their EMSP.

Visitor management. All campus perimeter ingress and egress points shall be staffed
when opened for student arrival and dismissal.

a. CSUSA managed schools staff all single point entries to ensure visitor management.
Each school should have a written campus access policy that is distributed to all
personnel.

a. A written campus access policy has been created for all FCCS schools that each

school must acknowledge annually through their EMSP.
Staff members should be trained to challenge, if appropriate, or report anyone
unauthorized to be on campus or any vehicle not parked in an authorized area.
a. All CSUSA staff receive online training mandated annually prior to the start of the

school year on how to challenge unauthorized personnel on campus.
Ensure all campus doors and buildings are clearly marked with easily identifiable markings
known to first responders. Mark exterior classroom windows so first responders can
identify classrooms from the exterior of the building.

a. All FCCS classroom doors have clearly visible markings that correspond to the
buildings’ floor plans and provided to emergency personnel. CSUSA has begun
the process of marking exterior classroom windows beginning in the 20/21
school year.

Building numbers should be placed on the roof for aerial support.

a. CSUSA has begun the process of marking exterior roofs beginning in the 20/21

school year.

Provide keys/access to on duty law enforcement so they can quickly enter the school.
All FCCS schools have knox boxes on the exterior of their school buildings for law
enforcement response and critical entry. These are key only entries.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Multiple school staff members should be trained on the operation of campus monitoring
systems.

a. Beginning in the 21/22 school year, FCCS policy will require schools have a
primary and alternate trained in campus monitoring systems.

There should be locks on all exterior/classroom doors and other areas where students
assemble in mass (cafeterias, libraries, auditoriums). All doors should self-close and lock
upon closing.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations (i.e. fire
code) and long term/multi-year implementation.

Classroom doors should either have no windows or every door should be equipped with
a device that can readily block line of sight through the window, but does not indicate
occupancy.

a. FCCS policy requires all classroom doors have blackout devices.

Policies should include those doors be checked regularly throughout the school day to
ensure they are secure.

a. All FCCS guardians working through a third-party vendor are required to check all
doors routinely throughout the school day. All police/sheriff’s offices and/or
school district police are asked to routinely check all doors.

There should be effective two-way communications between lockdown spaces and school
administrators, SRO or law enforcement.

a. Alyssa’s Law, which takes effect for the 21/22 school year requires all schools’
mobile emergency mass notification alert system is connected with 911 dispatch.
All CSUSA Florida schools are connected as of June 1, 2021 through AT&T-
Mutualink, one of the FDOE pre-approved vendors. Connection tests between
AT&T-Mutualink and the 911 centers have been scheduled for all CSUSA schools
and will be completed by June 1, 2022.

Fenced campuses with single ingress and egress points (could be a level Il based on
campus size and complexity). All fencing should be constructed in a way or high enough
to prevent easy climbing.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation. Where feasible, security grant allocations have
supplemented fencing on campuses beginning in the 19/20 and 20/21 school
years.

Use protective bollards at campus entrances.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation. Where feasible, security grant allocations have
supplemented fencing on campuses beginning in the 19/20 and 20/21 school
years.

There should be redundant two-way communications systems in every classroom and
student assembly area.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.

All common use closed areas in a school should have electronically controlled doors that
can be locked remotely or locally with appropriate hardware on single and double doors
to resist forced entry.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.

Enhance current video surveillance systems to eliminate any interior/exterior gaps in
camera coverage including front door access control.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Install electronically controlled door systems.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Install ballistic resistant glass covering on classroom interior door windows.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Install door alert systems that can be monitored from a central location to determine if a
door is closed or propped open.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Install classroom door windows that are small enough to restrict access and located a
sufficient distance from the door handle to prevent a person from reaching through to
unlock the door from the interior.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Install a ballistic glass vestibule or double door system at the single point of entry to limit
entry for visitors and prevent or delay a perpetrators entrance to campus.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
All parking areas should be outside of the single point of entry perimeter.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Ensure that there is adequate lighting that allows for clear observation of all entry points
and parking lots.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
If a Code Red or other active assailant response is initiated, make sure that message is
displayed on all computer screens connected to the school’s computer network.
a. CSUSA has redundant systems to display/convey Code Red alerts.
Establish a system that notifies staff, district officials, parents and students off campus by
email, text, and/or phone about an active assailant response being implemented.
Each FCCS school has a method for conveying Code Red alerts to parents.
Reunification training is also provided to all FCCS schools beginning in the 21/22
school year.
Provide school personnel with a device that could be worn to immediately notify law
enforcement of an emergency.
a. AllFCCS schools have the Tap App mobile mass notification alert system presently
integrated with AT&T-Mutualink for immediate 911 access.
All school radio traffic should be recorded.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Metal detectors and x-ray machines at campus entrances.
a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.
Implement real time crime centers or their equivalent with live video monitoring
capability of all cameras on all school campuses.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

a. During the 20/21 school year, FCCS has entered into several MOUs with several
districts” Real Time Crime Centers for camera access. The process is continuing
through the 21/22 school year.

Gunshot location sensor should be tied into camera system Use tactical tablets that are
directly fed to the E911 system.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.

RFID and Near field communications (NFC) card readers should replace all door locks on
campus.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.

Install electronic message board in every classroom.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.

New buildings or major renovations must include sensors that alert the office staff when
exterior doors are not secured with electronic monitoring that automates the process of
identifying the cause of the open door.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long
term/multi-year implementation.

Shipping and receiving areas should be designed to allow access without breaching the
single point of entry containment system and have electronic monitoring.

a. A written vendor policy has been created for each school and part of the EMSP.
Interior corridors between classrooms should have the ability to electronically seal the
movement of intruders but allow staff to move easily with electronic access control.

a. May require significant funding and/or changes in laws or regulations and long

term/multi-year implementation.
Faculty should be trained in “Stop the Bleed” procedures with adequate kits for all
schools. This should be covered in First Aid Training with properly trained school
personnel.

a. Stop the Bleed training has been conducted by CLPS and local law enforcement
agencies throughout the state. All FCCS schools have emergency kits or “go bags”
for Code Red incidents.

Do designated monitors have specific written and defined procedures to which they must
adhere?

a. A written monitor policy has been created for each school and part of the EMSP.
Does the school require the following to wear identification outside their clothing where
it can be visible to others?

a. FCCS and CSUSA policy requires all staff wear their ID visibly on their person at all

times.
Does every classroom have a checklist that explains step-by-step emergency procedures
readily available for the following?

a. FCCS and CSUSA policy requires every classroom have emergency procedures
clearly posted near the door.

Does the school have a reunification system in place?

a. Each school’s reunification procedures are located within their EMSP and
updated annually. Beginning in the 21/22 school year, all FCCS schools will be
trained on specific reunification methods.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Appendix E SESIR Roles & Requirements

Rulemaking Authority: 6A-1.0017, 1001.02(2)(n), 1006.07(9) FS. Law Implemented 1001.212(8),
1001.42(13)(b), 1001.51(12), 1001.54(3), 1002.33(16)(b)10., 1006.07(9), 1006.135(2)(¢),
1006.147(4)(k), 1006.147(6), 1008.385 FS.

History—New 6-16-20.

A. Definitions: “SESIR” means School Environmental Safety Incident Reporting, as identified
in Rule 6A-1.0017, F.A.C. The purpose of this rule is to set forth the requirements school
districts must use to report disruptive or criminal incidents to the Florida Department of
Education so that the data can, in turn, be used in required state and federal reports,
including EdFacts, the United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights Data
Collection (required by 20 U.S.C. 3413(c)(1)), the Gun Free Schools Act report
(required by 20 U.S.C. 7961(d) and (e)), the Every Student Succeeds Act report cards
(required by 20 US.C. 6311(h)(1) and (2)), and state reports on Bullying and Harassment
(required by Section 1006.147, F.S.). SESIR data is also used to design and evaluate
interventions to provide a safe learning environment. SESIR is not a law enforcement
reporting system.

i. “Locally-defined incident” means an incident that is a violation of a local code of
student conduct, but does not meet the definition of any incident reportable to
SESIR.

ii. “Rank order level” means a classification of incidents, from Level | to Level IV,
that determines which incident must be reported when more than one incident
occurs during a single episode. The rank order level of each incident is noted
under the incident definitions found in subsection (7) of this rule.

iii. “Related element” means a factor that was present during or contributed to the
incident but was not the main offense. All related elements that are applicable
are required to be reported with SESIR incidents.

iv. “School district” or “district” means a Florida school district, the Florida Virtual
School (Section 1002.37, F.S.), the Florida School for the Deaf and Blind (Section
1002.36, F.S.), and Developmental Research (Laboratory) Schools (Section
1002.32, F.S.).

B. Analysis of incidents. In order to determine whether an incident must be reported in
SESIR, the following three (3) criteria must be met;

i. The incident meets one of the SESIR incident definitions listed in subsection (7). ii.
The incident occurred on a K-12 school campus, on school-sponsored transportation,
during off-campus school-sponsored activities, or off campus where the incident is
accomplished through electronic means, if the incident substantially disrupts the
educational process or orderly operation of a school. iii. Where the incident was carried
out by a student, taking into account developmentally age-appropriate behavior and
disability, if any, the student had the capacity to understand his or her behavior and the
inappropriateness of his or her actions.

C. SESIR incidents that meet the requirements of paragraph (3)(a) of this rule must be
reported regardless of whether:

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



iv.

The incident was carried out by a student, a person other than a student, or
where the person who carried out the incident is unknown;

The victim of the incident is a student, a person other than a student, or where
the victim is unknown;

The incident occurred when school was in session or not. SESIR incidents occur
365 days a year at any time of the day or night; or.

Disciplinary action is taken by the school district and regardless of whether law
enforcement action is taken.

D. Requirement to report SESIR incidents.

All incidents meeting the requirements of subsection (3) of this rule must be
reported by school districts to the Department of Education.

A school district must not report an incident which meets the requirements of
subsection (3) of this rule as a locally-defined incident in lieu of reporting the
incident to the Department of Education. E. General SESIR reporting conventions.

i. SESIR is an incident-based reporting system, which means that a single incident is

reported, even where there are multiple offenders or victims, or multiple
incidents that occur within one episode.

a)lf there is more than one incident in a single episode, districts are
required to report only one incident based upon rank order level,
beginning with incidents that are classified as Level I.

b) If there are multiple incidents that have the same rank order
level, districts must report the incident that caused the most injury or
damage to property.

c)When reporting a SESIR incident, districts are required to report all
related elements as described in subsection (8) of this rule that are
present or contribute to a reported incident. A related element must be
reported even where it duplicates the incident. For example, when
reporting an Alcohol incident, the Alcohol-related element must also be
reported.

d) School districts must report SESIR incidents to the Department
during the survey periods and using the elements set forth in Rule
6A1.0014, F.A.C., Comprehensive Management Information System. F.
Incident specific SESIR reporting conventions.

i. For incidents of Bullying, Harassment, Sexual Harassment, Threat/Intimidation, and
any other incident that is Bullying-Related, districts are required to report the Incident
Basis and the Victim Basis, which identifies whether the incident is based upon the
person’s race, sex, disability, sexual orientation, or religion. ii. Allegations of Bullying
and Harassment that are not able to be substantiated after investigation must be
reported in SESIR as Unsubstantiated Bullying and

Unsubstantiated Harassment, respectively, pursuant to Section 1006.147(4)(k),
F.S.

G. Incident definitions.

Alcohol (Level IV): Possession, sale, purchase, or use of alcoholic beverages. Use
means the person is caught in the act of using, admits to use or is discovered to
have used in the course of an investigation.

Aggravated Battery (Level I): A battery where the attacker intentionally or
knowingly causes great bodily harm, permanent disability, or permanent
disfigurement; uses a deadly weapon; or, where the attacker knew or should have
known the victim was pregnant.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



iii.  Arson (Level 1): To intentionally damage or cause to be damaged, by fire or
explosion, any dwelling, structure, or conveyance, whether occupied or not, or
its contents. Fires that are not intentional, that are caused by accident, or do not
cause damage are not required to be reported in SESIR. iv. Burglary (Level Il):
Unlawful entry into or remaining in a dwelling, structure, or conveyance with the
intent to commit a crime therein.

V. Bullying (Level 1V): Systematically and chronically inflicting physical hurt or
psychological distress on one or more students or employees that is severe or
pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment;
or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school performance or
participation. Bullying includes instances of cyberbullying.

vi. Disruption on Campus-Major (Level lll): Disruptive behavior that poses a serious
threat to the learning environment, health, safety, or welfare of others.
Examples of major disruptions include bomb threats, inciting a riot, or initiating
a false fire alarm.

vii. Drug Sale or Distribution (Level Il) : The manufacture, cultivation, sale, or
distribution of any drug, narcotic, controlled substance or substance
represented to be a drug, narcotic, or controlled substance.

viii. Drug Use or Possession (Level Il1): The use or possession of any drug, narcotic,
controlled substance, or any substance when used for chemical intoxication.
Use means the person is caught in the act of using, admits to use or is discovered
to have used in the course of an investigation.

ix. Fighting (Level Ill): When two or more persons mutually participate in use of
force or physical violence that requires either physical intervention or results in
injury requiring first aid or medical attention. Lower-level fights, including
pushing, shoving, or altercations that stop on verbal command are not required
to be reported in SESIR.

X. Harassment (Level IV): Any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use
of data or computer software, or written, verbal, or physical conduct that places
a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his or her person or
damage to his or her property; has the effect of substantially interfering with a
student’s educational performance, opportunities, or benefits, or has the effect
of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school, including any
course of conduct directed at a specific person that causes substantial
emotional distress in such a person and serves no legitimate purpose.

Xi. Hazing (Level llI): Any action or situation that endangers the mental or physical
health or safety of a student at a school with any of grades 6 through 12 for
purposes of initiation or admission into or affiliation with any school-sanctioned
organization. Hazing includes, but is not limited to pressuring, coercing, or
forcing a student to participate in illegal or dangerous behavior, or any brutality
of a physical nature, such as whipping, beating, branding, or exposure to the

elements.
Xii. Homicide (Level I): The unjustified killing of one human being by another.
Xiii. Kidnapping (Level I): Forcibly, or by threat, confining, abducting, or imprisoning

another person against his or her will and without lawful authority.

Xiv. Larceny/Theft ($750 threshold) (Level Ill): The unauthorized taking, carrying,
riding away with, or concealing the property of another person, including motor
vehicles, without threat, violence, or bodily harm. Incidents that fall below the

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



$750 threshold are not reportable in SESIR, but instead should be reported as
locally-defined incidents according to district policies.

XV. Other Major Incidents (Level 1ll): Any serious, harmful incident resulting in the
need for law enforcement consultation not previously classified.

XVi. Physical Attack (Battery) (Level Il): An actual and intentional striking of another
person against his or her will, or the intentional causing of bodily harm to an
individual.

XVii. Robbery (Level Il): The taking or attempted taking of anything of value that is

owned by another person or organization, under the confrontational
circumstances of force, or threat of force or violence, and/or by putting the
victim in fear.

Xviii. Sexual Assault (Level Il): An incident that includes threatened rape, fondling,
indecent liberties, or child molestation. Both males and females can be victims
of sexual assault.

XiX. Sexual Battery (Rape) (Level 1): Forced or attempted oral, anal, or vaginal
penetration by using a sexual organ or an object simulating a sexual organ, or
the anal or vaginal penetration of another by any body part or foreign object.
Both males and females can be victims of sexual battery.

XX. Sexual Harassment (Level lll): Unwanted verbal, nonverbal, or physical behavior
with sexual connotations by an adult or student that is severe or pervasive
enough to create an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment,
cause discomfort or humiliation or unreasonably interfere with the individual's
school performance or participation, as defined in Rule 6A-19.008, F.A.C.

XXi. Sexual Offenses (Other) (Level Ill): Other sexual contact, including intercourse,
without force or threat of force. Includes subjecting an individual to lewd sexual
gestures, sexual activity, or exposing private body parts in a lewd manner. xxii-
Threat/Intimidation (Level Ill): An incident where there was no physical contact
between the offender and victim, but the victim felt that physical harm could
have occurred based on verbal or nonverbal communication by the offender.
This includes nonverbal threats (e.g., brandishing a weapon) and verbal threats
of physical harm which are made in person, electronically or through any other
means.

XXiii. Tobacco (Level 1V): The possession, use, distribution, or sale of tobacco or
nicotine products on school grounds, at school-sponsored events, or on school
transportation by any person under the age of 21.

xxiv.  Trespassing (Level Ill): To enter or remain on school grounds, school
transportation, or at a school-sponsored event, without authorization or
invitation and with no lawful purpose for entry.

XXV. Vandalism ($1,000 threshold) (Level Il1): The intentional destruction, damage, or
defacement of public or private/personal property without consent of the owner
or the person having custody or control of it. Incidents that fall below the $1,000
threshold are not reportable in SESIR, but instead should be reported as locally-
defined incidents according to district policies.

XXVi. Weapons Possession (Level Il): Possession of a firearm or any instrument or
object that can inflict serious harm on another person or that can place a person
in reasonable fear of serious harm. H. Related element definitions.

i Alcohol-related: An incident is alcohol related if there is evidence that those

involved in the incident were caught drinking at the incident or had been drinking,
based on testing or investigation of a Law Enforcement Officer at the scene, or if

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



vi.

vii.

they admit to drinking, or if the incident is somehow related to possession, use
or sale of alcohol. Schools are not required to test for the presence of alcohol.
Bullying-related: An incident is bullying related if the incident includes
systematically and chronically inflicting physical hurt or psychological distress on
one or more students or employees that is severe or pervasive enough to create
an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment; or unreasonably interfere with
the individual's school performance or participation.

Drug-related: An incident is drug related if there is evidence that those involved
in the incident were under the influence of drugs at the time of the incident; if
they admit to using or being under the influence of drugs; if drugs were in the
possession of individuals involved in the incident, based on testing or
investigation done by a police officer as a result of the incident; or if the incident
is somehow related to possession, use or sale of drugs. Schools are not required
to test for drug use.

Gang-related: An incident is gang-related if gang affiliation/association caused
the incident or was a contributing factor to action that happened during the
incident.

Hate Crime-related: All SESIR incidents motivated all or in part by hostility to the
victim’s real or perceived race, religion, color, sexual orientation, ethnicity,
ancestry, national origin, political beliefs, marital status, age, social and family
background, linguistic preference or mental/physical disability are required to be
reported as Hate Crime-related.

Hazing-related: An incident is hazing-related if the incident includes any action or
situation that endangers the mental or physical health or safety of a student for
purposes of initiation or admission into or affiliation with any schoolsanctioned
organization.

Injury-related: All SESIR incidents that result in serious bodily injury are required
to be reported as Injury-related. Less serious bodily injury means incidents which
require immediate first aid or subsequent medical attention. More serious
injuries include death or injuries with substantial risk of death, extreme physical
pain, protracted and obvious disfigurement, and protracted loss or impairment
of the function of a bodily member, organ, or mental faculty. viii. Vaping-related:
All SESIR incidents that involve the use of non-combustible vaping products,
including electronic cigarettes, vapes and vape pens, or any electronic nicotine
delivery system (ENDS) are required to be reported as Vaping-related, if the liquid
used contains nicotine or a controlled substance.

Schools are not required to test for nicotine or drugs in vaping devices.

ix. Weapon-related: All SESIR incidents are required to be reported as Weapon related

where anyone involved possessed or used a weapon or if the incident was related
to possession, use or sale of weapons.

Reporting law enforcement involvement. A school district must report to the Department
any SESIR incident:

That is reported or referred to law enforcement by school district personnel,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 1006.13, F.S.; or

That results in consultation with law enforcement by school district personnel,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 1006.13, F.S.

Training required. Each district superintendent must designate persons responsible for
SESIR reporting in the district and ensure that all such persons receive the on-line training

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



found at http://sesir.org. SESIR training provided by Department staff can be used to
satisfy the online training requirement

K. Accountability for SESIR reporting. In order to enhance SESIR reporting, the persons or
entity listed below have the following responsibilities:

i School principals. Each public-school principal, including charter school principals
or equivalent, must ensure that all persons at the school responsible for SESIR
information participate in the training set forth in subsection (10) of this rule and
must ensure that SESIR data is accurately and timely reported. ii. School District
Superintendents. Each school superintendent must ensure that all persons
responsible for reporting SESIR data have received the training required in
subsection (10) of this rule, that any local district policies are consistent with the
SESIR reporting requirements set forth in this rule and Rule 6A-1.0014, F.A.C., and
that the district timely and accurately reports SESIR incidents. Annually,
superintendents must certify to the Department that these requirements have
been met.

iii. Office of Safe Schools. The Office shall conduct site visits at schools throughout
the state, as well as conduct data reviews. The review must include school district
policies, training records, school incident and school discipline records.
Superintendents, principals and school safety specialists must fully cooperate
with requests for information when the Office of Safe Schools is reviewing and
evaluating districts for compliance with SESIR reporting.

iv. Commissioner of Education. If a district fails to report SESIR data by the survey
deadlines, set forth in Rule 6A-1.0014, F.A.C., the Commissioner must request
that the district school board withhold the superintendent’s salary, pursuant to
Sections 1001.51(12) and 1001.42(13)(b), F.S., until the SESIR data is reported. If
there is cause to believe that a superintendent knowingly transmitted or caused
to be transmitted false or incorrect information, the Commissioner shall cause
the allegation to be investigated and refer the matter for disciplinary action
pursuant to Section 1012.796, F.S., if the superintendent holds a license or
certificate under Chapter 1012 and take action to enforce the forfeiture of the
superintendent’s annual salary.

Appendix F- Rule 6A-1.0018 Key Responsibilities

6A-1.0018 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring- The purpose of this rule is to set forth
requirements relating to school safety, reporting, and training. The rule also provides notice of
the procedures and criteria utilized by the Office of Safe Schools to monitor school districts and
individual schools for compliance with those requirements. Having taken effect for the start of
the 2022-23 school year, the Rule establishes guidelines for all schools in monitoring and
implementation of safety standards in accordance with best practices and/or Florida law. Key
components include but are not limited to the following:

Monitoring by the Office of Safe Schools: The Office will monitor compliance with school safety
requirements identified in this rule through announced and unannounced on-site visits to schools
and district facilities or offices, review of school and district websites and publications, interviews
with students and staff, and review of media reports and other information submitted to or
received by the Office. The FLDOE Safety & Security checklist is provided to the Director of
Security for CSUSA prior to the start of the school year. The checklist is distributed to all FCCS

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



schools so that they may conduct internal audits to ensure they are in compliance with all items
on the list. Unannounced site visits from the Director of Security or their designee are conducted
for each FCCS school. Findings are presented to the Area Directors and VP for Operations. Schools
are required to provide action plans to remedy any deficiencies within 48-hours.

Threat assessment teams: Each school-based threat assessment team must use the
Comprehensive School Threat Assessment Guidelines (CSTAG) model to assess the behavior of
persons who may pose a threat to school staff or students and to coordinate intervention and
services for such persons. All reported threats, even those determined not to be a threat, must
be documented by the threat assessment team. Documentation must include the evaluation
process and any resultant action. In order to protect students from future stigma and unintended
consequences, reported threats that are determined not to be a threat, meaning they do not rise
to the level of transient or substantive, must not be documented in the student’s file.

Zero-Tolerance Policies and Agreements with Law Enforcement: Each district must have zero-
tolerance policies, including policies that define acts that require consultation with and reporting
or referral to law enforcement, as provided by Section 1006.13, F.S. Each district must have an
agreement with the county sheriff’s office and local police department for reporting acts that
pose a threat to school safety, as provided by Section 1006.13(4), F.S.

Emergency Drills: District school safety specialists must coordinate with the sheriff in their county
to determine what law enforcement officers are responsible for responding to each school in their
district in the event of an active assailant emergency and must provide those officers a minimum
of 24 hours notice prior to conducting an active assailant emergency drill, pursuant to Section
1006.07(4)(a), F.S. These law enforcement officers must be physically present on each school
campus and directly involved in the execution of active assailant emergency drills, unless their
presence is determined to be unnecessary by the sheriff.

Youth Mental Health Awareness and Assistance Training (YMHFA): Each district school safety
specialist shall ensure that all school personnel within his or her school district receive youth
mental health awareness and assistance training, as provided in Section 1012.584, F.S. By July 1,
2023 all schools must ensure that, at a minimum, at least eighty (80%) of all school staff are
trained in YMHFA.

Reporting Safe-School Officer Discipline, Dismissal or Discharge of Firearm: Discharge of a
weapon. The school superintendent must notify the Office when a safe-school officer assigned to
any school facility in the district discharges a firearm in the exercise of safe-school officer duties,
other than for training purposes, as provided in Section 1006.12(5), F.S. Notification must be
made no later than seventy-two (72) hours of the incident by submitting Form SSON-2021 to
SafeSchools@fldoe.org.

Appendix G- HB 543 Key Safety & Security Points

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



On April 3, 2023 Governor DeSantis signed House Bill 543 (HB 543) into law. Some provisions of
the bill took effect immediately while the remaining items are due to take effect on July 1, 2023.
HB 543 contains several safety and security measures for all Florida schools. Additionally, the bill
also restores the Hardening Grant funding to $42 Million and provides additional training funds
for the Office of Safe Schools as well as funding technology projects for threat management and
SESIR. Detailed provisions of the bill are found at; http://laws.flrules.org/files/Ch 2023-018.pdf

Some of the safety/security provisions of HB 543 include the following:

Section 12, Penalties for weapons on campus: A person who exhibits any sword, sword cane,
firearm, electric weapon or device, destructive device, or other weapon as defined in s. 790.001
including a razor blade, box cutter, or common pocketknife, except as authorized in support of
school-sanctioned activities, in the presence of one or more persons in a rude, careless, angry,
or threatening manner and not in lawful self-defense, at a school-sponsored event or on the
grounds or facilities of any school, school bus, or school bus stop, or within 1,000 feet of the real
property that comprises a public or private elementary school, middle school, or secondary
school, during school hours or during the time of a sanctioned school activity, commits a felony
of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.

Section 18, Law Enforcement Active Assailant Policies: For the protection of all persons in this
state, it is necessary and required that every law enforcement agency in this state be prepared
to respond to an active assailant event. To be adequately prepared, each law enforcement
agency must create and maintain an active assailant response policy. By October 1, 2023, each
law enforcement agency in this state shall have a written active assailant response policy that:
e Is consistent with the agency’s response capabilities; and
e Includes response procedures specifying the command protocol and coordination with
other law enforcement agencies.

Section 19, A Florida Specific Threat Management Model: Develop a statewide behavioral
threat management operational process, a Florida-specific behavioral threat assessment
instrument, and a threat management portal. By December 1, 2023, the office shall develop a
statewide behavioral threat management operational process to guide school districts, schools,
charter school governing boards, and charter schools through the threat management process.
The process must be designed to identify, assess, manage, and monitor potential and real
threats to schools. This process must include, but is not limited to:

e The establishment and duties of threat management teams.

o Defining behavioral risks and threats.

e Guidelines for appropriate law enforcement intervention.

e Mechanisms for continued monitoring of potential and real threats.

e Procedures for referrals to mental health services identified by the school district or

charter school governing board pursuant to s. 1012.584(4).

The office shall provide training for members of threat management assessment teams
established under s. 1006.07(7) and for all school districts and charter school governing boards
school administrators regarding the use of the Florida-specific behavioral threat assessment
instrument. (NOTE: The Director of Security for CSUSA was a member of the MSD Committee’s
Threat Assessment Working Group that created the new Florida model and will be trained and
certified as a Master Instructor by the Office of Safe Schools)

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Section 23, Threat Management: This section reiterates some of the Section 18 threat
management requirements and also;

e Requires that at least one teacher or administrator on the team is personally familiar
with the student who is the subject of the assessment (if none is, an admin or teacher
who is familiar with the student can sit in on the assessment, but will not be considered
a member of the team) and;

e It also requires that the SESIR rule be revised to identify which incidents must be
reported to law enforcement.

Section 26, The Florida Safe Schools Canine Program: The Department of Education, through
the Office of Safe Schools pursuant to s. 1001.212, shall establish the Florida Safe Schools
Canine Program for the purpose of designating a person, school, or business entity as a Florida
Safe Schools Canine Partner if the person, school, or business entity provides a monetary or in-
kind donation to a law enforcement agency to purchase, train, or care for a firearm detection
canine. The office shall consult with the Florida Police Chiefs Association and the Florida Sheriffs
Association in creating the program. The presence of firearm detection canines at K-12 schools
contributes to a safe school community, furthering a communitywide investment and
engagement in school safety and public safety initiatives. The program seeks to foster
relationships between schools, local businesses, and law enforcement, promoting trust and
confidence in the ability of law enforcement to keep schools and communities safe. Firearm
detection canines act as liaisons between students and law enforcement agencies and serve as
ambassadors for a law enforcement agency to improve community engagement. K-12 schools
and students are encouraged to partner with law enforcement to raise funds in the local
community for the monetary or in-kind donations needed to purchase, train, or care for a
firearm detection canine. This includes building relationships with local businesses that support
school safety by providing monetary or in-kind donations to help with the ongoing care and
expenses of a firearm detection canine which include, but are not limited to, veterinary care
such as wellness checks and medicine; food; interactive and training toys; grooming; and
necessary equipment such as collars and leads.

Appendix H- School Specific Policies

After-Hours Policy
Justification: Each school should have a written procedure for access to campus facilities that
would include times when unoccupied, such as after being closed for the night or the weekend,
or for buildings not in use during operational hours. (MSDHS Public Safety Commission, Initial
Report, p. 345)
1. The school will vet all individuals with access to the campus after-hours. This includes
such visitors supplying the school with a government authorized and approved photo ID.
All visitors are screened in a sex offender registry prior to entry. Any issue with a visitor
and/or failure to comply will result in a denial of entry on campus and referral to the
SRO/SSO/SSG should an issue arise.
2. The school requires any after-hours visitors to enter through one pre-designated entry
point preferably the main office.
3. The school restricts access to parts of the campus during after-hours events. These
include any/all areas where such visitors are not required and where they are not
permitted. Vendors and/or service repairs after-hours must follow school campus

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



access policy. Where feasible, after-hours visitors will still be required to display a
visitor’s identification badge that will be turned in upon completion of the visit. For
larger after-school events access, the school will ensure that staff/faculty maintain
school integrity to the area(s) of the after-hours event.

4. Staff who seek after-hours access are required to request said access beforehand
and/or inform school administrators the reason for such access and provide at least 24-
hours’ notice when feasible. The school will maintain a log of those personnel who
request/require after-hours access.

5. For larger after-hours events on school grounds, a search of items brought on premises
will be conducted. Such screening will ensure that posting of legal justification for such
searches is clearly posted.

6. The school ensures that campus buildings are secured when unoccupied. Security
devices (i.e. Detex alarms, CCTV, etc.) continue to operate after hours and can be
accessed if needed after hours. This would include times the building is or should be
unoccupied, such as after being closed for the night or the weekend, or for buildings not
in use during operational hours.

911 Policy

Justification: Association of Public-Safety Communications Officials; National Emergency
Number Association; Florida Safe Schools Assessment Tool (FSSAT) School Infrastructure Section
3.14 Emergency Communications. Located at APCO/NENA
https://www.nena.org/page/911TipsGuidelines

1. All staff/faculty authorized to call 911 in the event of an emergency

2. Does the situation constitute an emergency defined as any serious situation where a law
enforcement officer, fire fighter, or emergency medical help is needed right away? If
you are unsure of whether your situation is an emergency, go ahead and call 9- 1-1. The
9-1-1 call taker can determine if you need emergency assistance and can route you to
the correct location.

3. Ensure that when calling 9-1-1 do your best to stay calm and answer all questions.
Staying calm can be one of the most difficult, yet most important, things you do when
calling 9-1-1. It is very important that you stay as calm as possible and answer all the
questions the 9-1-1 call taker asks. The questions 9-1-1 call takers ask, no matter how
relevant they seem, are important in helping get the first responders to you as fast as
possible.

4. Help the 9-1-1 call taker help you. Listen and answer the questions asked. By doing this,
it helps the call taker understand your situation and will assist you with your emergency
until the appropriate police, fire or medical units arrive.

5. Know the location of the emergency. The wireless 9-1-1 caller must be aware that the 9-
1-1 center that answers the call may not be the 9-1-1 center that services the area that
the wireless caller is calling from. Look for landmarks, cross street signs and buildings.
Know the name of the city or county you are in. Knowing the location is vital to getting
the appropriate police, fire or EMS units to respond. Providing an accurate address is
critically important when making a wireless 9-1-1 call.

Campus Monitor Policy
Justification: Does the school have designated campus monitors? Campus monitors are
generally school staff or volunteers who work under the general supervision of a school

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



administrator to assist maintaining order in the school, protect school property, and enforce
school policies and procedure as they relate to the safety and security of people and property.

1. The school will vet campus monitors to include those strictly volunteering. This includes
a requirement that campus monitors submit to a sex registry database query and where
feasible a criminal record check by the local police and/or SRO where feasible.

2. If campus monitors assist with drop off and/or pickup or engage in routine
interior/exterior patrols and/or assist with school sponsored events, monitors will be
issued school radios where feasible. The school maintains up to date contact
information with the campus monitor(s). They will be required to sign in/sign out daily.

3. Campus monitors will be issued school radios where feasible. The school requires that
monitors sign in/sign out the school radio. Monitors will leave their government issued
ID (i.e. DL) at the main office when picking up their school issued radio. Their ID will be
returned upon completion of their duties.

4. For any after-hours events where campus monitors are used, the school will assign the
monitors’ responsibilities clearly prior to the start of the event. This includes any
instances where they may be required to assist with bag screening.

5. Where feasible the school will provide any training and/or orientation for campus
monitors. This includes a walk-though of the interior/exterior; familiarization with the
school security officer (SRO/SSO/SSG) and a tutorial on radio use

6. The school ensures that all campus monitors will not actively engage with any
unauthorized access and/or activities on campus and report such instances to school
administration and/or the school security officer (SRO/SSO/SSG).

Campus Access Policy
Justification: Each school should have a written campus access policy that is distributed to all
personnel. (MSDHS Public Safety Commission, Initial Report, p. 345).

1. Campuses have single ingress and egress points to the extent that is consistent with this
level’s criteria of minimal cost.

2. Clear signs direct visitors to appropriate entry points. All entry/exit doors indicate a
closed campus and direct visitors to report to the front office. The main entrance should
clearly stand out from the other entrances. Signs should be simple, readable from a
distance (such as a car window), well-lit, written in all relevant languages, and located at
all entry points to the property.

3. All campus doors and buildings are clearly marked with easily identifiable markings
known to first responders.

4. Upon entry to the campus, all visitors will be screened by the school. This includes the
provision of a government authorized and approved photo ID. All visitors are screened
in a sex offender registry prior to entry. Any issue with a visitor and/or failure to comply
will result in a denial of entry on campus and referral to the SRO/SSO/SSG should an
issue arise.

5. All campus buildings are secured when unoccupied, but do not prevent egress from the
building at any time

6. All contractors/vendors are required to sign in and receive an identification badge when
they will be accessing the campus?

7. All visitors must where a visitor badge worn above the waist and visible at all times to
others while on campus

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



8. Non-essential visitors are limited and when allowing visitors, they are required to show
positive identification, state their purpose for entering the school, be issued a visitor
badge and, when appropriate, have a staff escort during the entire time the person is
inside the school.

9. All campus perimeter ingress and egress points shall be staffed when opened for
student arrival and dismissal.

10. Staff members are trained to challenge, if appropriate, or report anyone unauthorized
to be on campus or any vehicle not parked in an authorized area. In the event of
unauthorized access to the campus a staff member will immediately notify the
SRO/SSO/SSG either by radio or other means of communication if feasible. If the
unauthorized visitor is being combative, or presents any danger, staff will not engage
and use the school’s mass notification system to initiate the appropriate response
(Lockdown).

11. How are instances of propped doors or doors being held open to allow unauthorized
access addressed by school administration?

Backup Communications Policy

Justification: In the event of an emergency, if the primary mode of communications service is
lost, a written backup procedure for communications exists. 1006.07(4), F.S.; FEMA, Sample
School Emergency Operations Plan-Multi-hazard Emergency Planning for Schools, March, 2011.

1. During an emergency, the school will ensure that additional options for communication
are available. These include but are not limited to the following:

a. Standard telephone: The school has designated a school telephone number as a
recorded “hotline” for parents to call for information during incidents. The goal
is to keep other telephone lines free for communication with first responders
and others

b. Cellular telephones: These phones may be the only tool working when electric
service is out; they are useful to faculty/staff en route to or from a site,

c. Intercom systems: The intercom system includes teacher-initiated
communication with the office using a handset rather than a wall-mounted
speaker

d. Bullhorns and megaphones: A battery-powered bullhorn is part of the school’s
emergency to-go kit to address students and staff who are assembling outside
the school. Procedures governing storage and use will help ensure readiness for
use

e. Two-way radio: Two-way radios provide a reliable method of communication
between rooms and buildings at a single site. All staff will be trained to
understand how to operate the two-way radio.

f.  Computers: A wireless laptop computer may be used for communication both
within the school and to other sites. Email may be a useful tool for updating
information for staff, other schools in an affected area, and the district
superintendent. An assigned staff member(s) will post information such as
school evacuation, closure, or relocation on the home page of the school and
district Web site.

g. Alarm systems: Bells or buzzers are in place and sound in different ways to
signal different types of incidents — for example, fire, lockdown, or special alert
(with instructions to follow). All staff/faculty, support staff, students, and

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



volunteers will be trained on what the sounds mean and how to respond to
them. Whistles:

h. Whistles should be included in crisis kits in order to signal a need for immediate
attention or assistance.

i. Compressed air horn or megaphone and two-way radios will serve as backup
alerting/communication devices.

2. The school will activate the backup communications plan options once the Incident
Commander determines the primary means of communication are unavailable.

Key Control Policy

Justification: Each school should have a key control program to account for all keys to all
buildings, rooms, and gates. The key control program should define who may have keys,
including master keys, to the buildings, classrooms, and critical access points (HVAC, security
room, etc.); the procedure for turning in keys by substitutes, or when staff is transferred,
terminated, or retired; and the annual audit process. (MSDHS Public Safety Commission, Initial
Report, p. 346)

1. Does the school have a procedure for providing keys to substitute teachers?

2. Schools have a key control program in place to account for all keys to all buildings,
rooms, and gates. The keys are kept secure and copies are only authorized by the
Principal or their designee.

3. The school has a procedure for turning in keys by substitutes, or when staff is
transferred, terminated, or retired. Substitutes will sign out any key(s) assigned to them
and provide an ID upon possession of any school keys and this ID will be returned upon
completion of the school day. No substitute will be allowed to take home any school
keys even if they are coming on campus on consecutive days.

4. The school conducts an annual audit of all keys prior to the start of the school year and
again at the end of the school year. Any keys not accounted for will be followed up by
the Principal or their designee. Any missing keys should include a follow up with
Facilities to address replacement of the locks in question.

5. Multiple keys color coded or similar so as to be clearly identified in times of emergency.
The school will ensure that staff/faculty are notified of the color codes for such keys.

6. The key control program clearly identifies who may have keys, including master keys, to
the buildings, classrooms, and critical access points (HVAC, security room, etc.)

7. The school will inform first responders of any change to the keys for interior/exterior
campus access locations, doors, etc. Any changes to such keys will automatically be
provided to first responders within 48 hours of such key changes.

Deliveries Policy

Justification: Each educational facility has a clearly marked central point for receiving and
screening all visitors. This will require signs throughout the school telling visitors where to check
in and training staff to ensure that visitors check in at the appropriate location. Delivery
activities should be orderly and not interfere with normal school functions. (Federal Commission
on School Safety Final Report, p. 123)

1. The school has a formal written signage that informs deliveries where they must report
for bag and package inspection for deliveries (e.g. packages, food, gifts). Such signage is
clear and located upon entry to the campus and outside the main entrance.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



2. All deliveries are assigned specific times that they may be allowed on campus to drop
off their material/merchandise. Preapproved vendors have been properly vetted by the
school.

3. The school ensures that all deliveries requiring access to the campus will follow the
school’s campus access policies and such vendors/deliveries will not be left
unattended/unescorted during their time on campus.

4. All delivery personnel are vetted if they routinely delivery products to the school to
include sex registry offender database checks. They will submit government approved
identification prior to campus access.

5. All delivery personnel are required to sign in and obtain a visitor badge prior to
conducting their business. This ID will be clearly visible and displayed at all times while
on campus.

6. The school has a shipping and receiving areas that is designed to allow access without
breaching the single point of entry containment system and have electronic monitoring.

7. The school ensures that all delivery activities should be orderly and not interfere with
normal school functions.

Gate Policy

Justification: All gates should remain closed and locked unless opened for active ingress or
egress. All doors to buildings should remain closed and locked unless opened for active ingress
and egress. When opened for ingress and egress, every gate and building door should be staffed
and never left open and unattended. Campuses should have single ingress and egress points to
the extent that is consistent with this level's criteria of minimal cost. (If cost is significant then it
should be considered later in the hardening process). (MSDHS Public Safety Commission, Initial
Report p. 345)

1. All campus perimeter ingress and egress points shall be staffed when opened for
student arrival and dismissal. If a school does not have traditional gates, it will still have
campus ingress/egress points. These points, per the MSD Commission Report, are
staffed by school personnel during drop off and pick up times. These school personnel
have access to school issued radios and access to the mobile panic alert system (i.e. Tap
App).

2. The school ensures that staff at the gates will report any instances of unauthorized
campus access to school administrators and/or the school security officer
(SRO/SSO/SSG)

3. Atthe end of the day, the school ensures that all gates are and remain locked nightly.

4. The school provides safety messaging to the following on not leaving gates/doors open
unless during predesignated times. Staff Faculty Students Other:

5. If the single point of entry and/or gate project is in progress, provide an estimated
completion time.

Security Sweep Procedure

Justification: The school should have a written procedure for conducting a safety and security
sweep of school grounds prior to opening each day to check for safety issues, suspicious
packages/items, and signs of trespassing or vandalism. FSSAT Section 5 Prevention and Threat
Management, 5.2-Inspections; MSD Commission Report pg. 311.

1. The school safety officer (SRO, SSO, SSG) conducts a routine walk of the campus
perimeter and/or interior prior to the start of the school day and routinely throughout

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



the day. These walk-throughs are random. Any issues involving trespassing, vandalism,
etc. will be addressed by the SRO/SSO/SSG and if applicable, a SESIR report will be filed
with the state per statute where applicable by the Principal or their designee.

2. Incidents that must be reported to SESIR and are expected to include consultation with
law enforcement including trespassing and vandalism.

3. The School Safety Officer ensure that security sweeps of the campus are not at fixed
times and that more than one is conducted during the school day.

Release of Students to Parents Procedures

Justification: Schools will have procedures for release of students to parents and/or guardians to
ensure safety and well-being of students. Department of Homeland Security Best Practices K-12
School Security.

1. The school will ensure that only a parent or caregiver/guardian is responsible for the
release of a student to their care. The parent/guardian must go to the school’s main
office and be prepared to provide: Positive identification, State their purpose for
entering the school, Formally sign out their child

2. The school will ensure that students will not be released to an unauthorized person
without written permission from a parent or guardian.

3. The school ensures a written list of authorized persons must be kept on file in the office.

4. The authorized persons must be knowledgeable of your specific family code word and
have valid picture ID.

5. During an emergency the school ensures that students will only be released to the
parent/guardian or someone designated by the parent/guardian on the emergency
card.

6. The school ensures that parents/guardians arriving to obtain a release of their child are
directed to park in a safe location/visitor spot. They will not block driveways, gates, or
parking lot drive-through.

PA Systems Policy

Justification: Does the school have procedures in place to ensure proper and adequate
communication of its PA system during routine hours and during emergencies? (U.S.
Department of Justice Office of Justice Programs, The Appropriate and Effective Use of Security
Technologies in U.S. Schools A Guide for Schools and Law Enforcement Agencies and
10067(4)(c), F.S.

1. The school’s PA system is available to all school classrooms. All interior building hallways
and exterior common areas where students or staff move about should be equipped
with speakers tied to the school’s intercom system. This includes portable classrooms.

2. The school informs all staff/faculty and students that any earbuds or headphones that
would prevent hearing emergency warnings are prohibited.

3. Pursuant to F.S. 1006.07(4)(c) the school has a schedule to test the functionality and
coverage capacity of all emergency communications systems and determined if
adequate signal strength is available in all areas of the school's campus. These tests are
documented and will occur at least quarterly.

4. The school ensures that the PA system is easily accessible and that staff are trained on
its use.

Roof Access Policy

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Justification: Access to campuses and educational facilities is limited to authorized individuals.
(MSDHS Public Safety Commission, Initial Report p. 345) It is important to the school that
appropriate access controls and processes are developed to ensure proper protection of and
access to certain restricted areas within the campus perimeter. Technical and procedural
mechanisms are used to control electronic access at all electronic access points to the electronic
security perimeter.

1. The school ensures that access to the roof is secured with a locked access portal (door,
hatch, etc.)

2. s access to the roof secured through one of the following methods: Manually opened
and secured with a heavy-duty approved pad lock Electronically accessed with card
credential, or electronically accessed with remote gate FOB. Monitored 24/7 by CCTV.

3. Contractors required to sign in and receive an identification badge if they will be
accessing the roof. The visitor badge worn above the waist and visible at all times to
others while on the roof

4. The school ensures that only required personnel (maintenance, facilities) are allowed
roof access.

5. The school ensure that landscaping elements, covers for exterior walkways and stairs,
etc., which may allow easy access to roofs, windows, or other upper level areas are
reduced, mitigated, etc.

Unauthorized Access Policy
Justification: Each school should have a written policy to report instances of unauthorized access
to the campus. (MSDHS Public Safety Commission, Initial Report, p. 347)

1. The school ensures that all incidents of unauthorized access attempts are reviewed,
investigated and processed in accordance with school policy and local ordinances. These
are then logged in and stored on campus.

2. Signs are placed at each primary entry to the school property to direct student, staff,
visitors, and delivery traffic to appropriate locations.

3. The school will train all school staff, including support personnel, to greet and challenge
strangers. Staff should be trained to at least report strangers to the office if they do not
feel safe in approaching someone, they believe to be an intruder. In such instances, staff
will immediately notify the SRO/SSO/SSG.

4. The fencing and/or campus perimeter are clearly marked at regular intervals with visible
warning (i.e., 'no trespassing') signs.

5. Any instances of unauthorized access to the campus will be investigated by the
responding law enforcement agency responsible for the school. The Principal will
convey results of said investigation with faculty and staff and coordinate response and
training efforts to prevent future incidents.

Visitor Management Policy

Justification: The district should have procedures that govern access to each educational facility
and its students, and access is limited to authorized students and visitors. Access to campuses
and educational facilities is limited to authorized individuals. (MSDHS Public Safety Commission,
Initial Report, p. 345)

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



1. Non-essential visitors are limited and required to show: Positive identification, State
their purpose for entering the school, Issued a visitor badge and, when appropriate,
Have a staff escort during the entire time the person is inside the school.

2. The school has a clearly marked central point for receiving and screening all visitors. This
will be at the main office and visitors will be logged in and out for each visit.

3. The school ensures that signs throughout the campus telling visitors where to check in
are clearly visible and staff are trained to ensure that visitors check in at the appropriate
location.

4. If staff members encounter anyone unauthorized to be on campus or any vehicle not
parked in an authorized area, they will verbally challenge said vehicle/individual(s)
asking who they are and what their business on campus is. If the staff member feels not
threatened by the encounter, they will communicate that said individual(s) must report
to the main office. If a vehicle, they will direct it to visitor parking and the occupants to
the main office. If the staff member feels threatened and/or the vehicle/individual(s)
appear menacing, non-responsive, etc. staff should immediately report this to the
SRO/SSO/SSG.

5. Visitors are instructed to wear their badge properly while on campus, above the waist
and visible at all times 6. Visitors are required to sign out and return their visitor badges
upon exiting the premises.

Appendix I- Involuntary Examinations & Removal for Involuntary Examinations

District school safety specialists must ensure that each safe-school officer in the district that is a
sworn law enforcement officer, as defined under Sections 1006.12(1) and (2), F.S., has completed
mental health crisis intervention training through a curriculum developed by a national
organization with expertise in mental health crisis intervention. The training must meet the
requirements set forth in Section 1006.12(6)(a), F.S. District threat assessment policies must
include procedures for referrals to mental health services identified by the school district
pursuant to Section 1012.584(4) F.S. & 394.463 F.S.

If a student presents a concern for the safety of others, due to their actions or words, as
determined by the school or district administration, law enforcement, or a threat assessment
team, said student(s) will be referred for mental health services, per F.S. 1012.584. These services
may be provided on campus or through off-campus mental health providers that partner with
each district. If a student presents an immediate concern for the safety of themselves or others,
they will be removed from campus under the provision of the Baker or Marchman Acts pursuant
to 394.4625 and/or 397.6811 F.S.

The school principal or the principal’s designee shall immediately notify the parent or guardian, if
a student is removed from school, school transportation, or a school-sponsored activity and taken
to a receiving facility for a Baker, Marchman, or other evaluation, pursuant to 394.463 and/or
397.6811 F.S. The principal or the principal’s designee may delay notification for no more than 24
hours after a student is removed, if the principal or designee deems the delay to be in the
student’s best interest and if a report has been submitted to the central abuse hotline, pursuant
to F.S. 39.201, based upon knowledge or suspicion of abuse, abandonment, or neglect or
corresponding district policies.

If an involuntary examination is initiated by an FCCS school pursuant to the Baker Act under
394.463 F.S., school principals or their designees must verify that de-escalation strategies have

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



been utilized and outreach to a mobile response team has been initiated; unless the principal or
designee reasonably believes that any delay in removing the student will increase the likelihood
of harm to the student or others. Steps for de-escalation strategies should include, but not be
limited to:

e Student conference
e Parent/Guardian contact
o Contact the parent or guardian by phone and document said call in the
corresponding district system
o If the parent/guardian cannot be reached by phone, leave a voicemail
o If the parent/guardian cannot be reached by phone, email the parent or
guardian and document the email in the corresponding district system
e School Counselor involvement
e Referral to an outside mental health counselor and/or outside agenda
e Follow up and tracking if student(s) of concern and/or those with risk behaviors
e Minimum monthly school threat assessment team meetings to monitor progress and
next steps as needed
As part of the services that may be provided on campus or through off-campus mental health
providers that partner with each district, CSUSA are contracted with a service provider to deliver
services to our students as part of our mental health assistance allocation plan. The contracted
mental health professional services provider serves as a member of each FCCS and CSUSA
managed school’s Threat Assessment Team. Their expertise, insights, and recommendations will
be taken into serious consideration during the threat assessment process and can access records
should any involuntary examination and/or removal be required in accordance with local district
policies and pursuant to 394.463 and/or 397.6811 F.S. They provide professional guidance and
expertise to each school and offer opinions, recommendations, and best practices based on their
expertise in the field of threat assessment. The provider maintains open and transparent
communication throughout the threat assessment process pursuant to Rule 6A-1.0018 and HB
543.

Appendix J Rule 6A-1.0019 Threat Management

6A-1.0019 Threat Management. (1) Purpose. The purpose of this rule is to set forth requirements
relating to threat management, a process by which school districts, K-12 schools, charter school
governing boards, and charter schools identify, assess, manage, and monitor potential and real
threats to student safety. (2) Definitions. (a) “CSTAG” means the Comprehensive School Threat
Assessment Guidelines behavioral threat assessment instrument, Form CSTAG-2022, which must
be used for threat assessments in all public schools, including charter schools through December
31, 2023. The CSTAG categorizes threats as (1) transient, meaning a threat without a sustained
intent to harm that can be easily resolved by apology, retraction, or explanation; or (2)
substantive, meaning a threat where the intent to harm is either present or unclear, and requires
protective action. (b) “Florida Harm Prevention and Threat Management Model” or “Florida
Model” means the Florida-specific behavioral threat management process required by Section
1001.212(12), F.S. The Florida Model consists of the Florida Threat Management Manual and the
Florida Harm Prevention and Threat Management Instrument (“Instrument”). Under the Florida
Model, threats and reports of concerning behavior or concerning communications are
categorized as having a low, medium, or high level of concern. (c) “School” means a public K-12
school, including a charter school, with a Master School Identification Number (MSID) number as

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



provided under Rule 6A-1.0016, F.A.C., but does not include: 1. Settings where instruction is
provided in a county jail or state prison, in a Department of Juvenile Justice facility or program, in
a hospital, or while a student is homebound; 2. Schools that provide only prekindergarten or adult
education; 3. Technical centers under Section 1004.91, F.S. A list of schools meeting this definition
will be provided to the School Safety Specialists by December 1, 2023, and annually thereafter by
July 1. (d) “School-based mental health services provider” means a school psychologist certified
under Rule 6A-4.0311, F.A.C., a school social worker certified under Rule 6A-4.035, F.A.C., a school
counselor certified under Rule 6A-4.0181, F.A.C., or a mental health professional licensed under
Chapter 490 or 491, F.S., who is employed or contracted by a district or school to provide mental
health services in schools. (e) “School district” or “district” means a Florida school district, the
Florida Virtual School (Section 1002.37, F.S.), the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind (Section
1002.36, F.S.), Developmental Research (Laboratory) Schools (Section 1002.32, F.S.), and charter
schools sponsored by a university or Florida College System institution (Section 1002.33(5), F.S.).
(f) “Student Support Management Plan” or “SSMP” means an ongoing intervention and
monitoring plan implemented by the school-based threat management team. The SSMP may
impose requirements on a student of concern for a defined period of time based on the level of
concern. The SSMP is reviewed each month by the School Based Threat Management Team
(SBTMT). (g) “Threat Assessment” means the identification of individuals exhibiting threatening
or other concerning behavior. (h) “Threat Management” means the multipart process by which
schools identify individuals exhibiting threatening or other concerning behavior, assess the risk of
harm, and coordinate appropriate interventions and services for such individuals, as provided in
Section 1006.07(7), F.S. (3) Required policies. (a) Each school district and charter school governing
board must adopt policies, consistent with this rule, for the establishment of threat management
teams and for the completion of threat assessments. These policies must include procedures for
referrals to mental health services, pursuant to Section 1012.584(4), F.S., and referrals for threats
of self-harm, consistent with Section 394.463, F.S. (b) Parental notification. 1. School districts and
charter school governing boards must, at a minimum, require parental notification in the
following circumstances: a. If the SBTMT Chair determines the report of a concerning behavior or
threat is a Low level of concern and summarily closes the case, the Chair or designee must use
reasonable efforts to notify the parent or guardian of the student of concern. b. If the Chair does
not summarily close the case and refers it to the SBTMT, reasonable efforts must be made to
notify the student of concern’s parent or guardian on the same day the SBTMT assigns the
preliminary level of concern. c. If the preliminary level of concern is High, the SBTMT Chair or
designee must notify the superintendent or designee to ensure that the notice requirements of
Section 1006.07(7)(e), F.S., are met. d. Parents or guardians must also be notified if the threat
management process reveals information about their student’s mental, emotional, or physical
health or well-being, or results in a change in related services or monitoring, including but not
limited to implementation of an SSMP. e. Once an SSMP is finalized and anytime it is substantively
revised, the SBTMT Chair or designee must provide a copy of the SSMP to the student of concern’s
parent or guardian. The targeted student's parent or guardian should also be informed that an
SSMP has been implemented. f. Where a report of concern includes an identified student target,
the Chair must make a reasonable effort to notify the parent or guardian of the targeted student
before the end of the school day that the report was received unless the Chair has determined
the concern is unfounded. As provided for in the Florida Harm Prevention and Threat
Management Manual (Form 0SS-001), the unfounded summary disposition should only be used
when it is clear and articulable that there is no basis for concern. If there is any doubt, the case
should be forwarded to the full School Based Threat Management Team for further evaluation
and parent notification should occur. Nothing herein prevents the school from notifying parents
or guardians if they believe it is in the best interest of the student. 2. “Reasonable effort to notify”

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



means the exercise of reasonable diligence and care to make contact with the student’s parent
or guardian, typically through the contact information shared by the parent or guardian with the
school or school district. The SBTMT Chair or designee must document all attempts to make
contact with the parent or guardian. 3. Timelines for required notice may be modified where the
SBTMT reasonably believes and documents that such disclosure would result in abuse,
abandonment, or neglect, as defined in Section 39.01, F.S. (c) Education records. Threat
assessments and records related to threat management are considered education records as
defined by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and Sections 1002.22 and
1002.221, Florida Statutes. Policies relating to access, maintenance, and retention of these
records must be consistent with Rule 6A-1.0955, F.A.C., Education Records. (4) CSTAG. Threats
assessments initiated on or before December 31, 2023, must be done in accordance with CSTAG
and the Model Behavioral Threat Assessment Policies and Best Practices for K-12 Schools, as
follows: (a) Threat management teams. Each school must have a threat management team
(previously known as a threat assessment team) that includes persons with expertise in
counseling, instruction, school administration, and law enforcement. The counseling and law
enforcement team members must meet the requirements in subparagraphs (5)(c)1. and 4. (b)
Training. Threat management teams at each school must be fully staffed before the start of the
school year. Due to the pending switch to the Florida Model, additional training is not required
for the Fall 2023 semester, as long as at least one (1) member of the team has been CSTAG trained.
(c) Instrument. Through December 31, 2023, threats will be assessed using the CSTAG instrument
to assess the behavior of persons who may pose a threat to school staff or students and to
coordinate intervention and services for such persons. All reported threats, even those
determined not to be a threat, must be documented, including the evaluation process and any
resultant action. (d) Meetings. Each school-based threat management team must meet as often
as needed to fulfill its duties of assessing and intervening with persons whose behavior may pose
a threat to school staff or students, but no less than monthly. Districts must adopt policies
requiring threat management teams to maintain documentation of their meetings, including
meeting dates and times, team members in attendance, cases discussed, and actions taken. (e)
Reporting. Each district must ensure that all threat management teams in the district report to
the Office on the team’s activities during the previous school year. The district school safety
specialist must ensure all schools in the district timely report information required by this
paragraph: the total number of threat assessments conducted, disaggregated by the total number
of non threats, the total number of transient threats, the total number of substantive threats, and
the sex, race, and grade level of all students assessed by the threat management team. 1.
Information for the 2022-23 school year is due by October 1, 2023 in the Florida Safe Schools
Assessment Tool (FSSAT). 2. Information for August 1-December 31, 2023 is due by June 15, 2024
in FSSAT. (5) Florida Harm Prevention and Threat Management Model (“Florida Model”).
Beginning January 1, 2024, threat management and assessment of concerning behaviors or
communications must be conducted in accordance with the Florida Model, as follows: (a) District
Threat Management Coordinator (DTMC). Each school district superintendent must designate a
Threat Management Coordinator to oversee threat management at all public K-12 schools,
including charter schools sponsored by or under contract with the district. Where there is no
superintendent, the lead administrator for the school district must assign the Threat
Management Coordinator. 1. The DTMC must: a. Ensure that all district-level and school-level
threat management team personnel are trained in threat management and on the Florida Model;
b. Serve as Chair of the District Threat Management Team and as the liaison to the Department
of Education’s Office of Safe Schools (“Office”); and c. Assist School Based Threat Management
Teams in the district. 2. Each school district school superintendent, or lead administrator if there
is no superintendent, must report the name, phone number, and email address of the District

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



Threat Management Coordinator to the Office at FloridaModel@fldoe.org. This information must
be reported annually by July 1, and must be updated within one (1) school day if there is a change
in the information provided. (b) District Threat Management Team (DTMT). Each school district
superintendent must designate a District Threat Management Team that will receive referrals
from the School Based Threat Management Teams, assess serious situations, and provide support
to school-based teams, including charter schools in their district. The DTMT must include the
District Threat Management Coordinator as Chair, persons from school district administration and
persons with expertise in counseling, instruction, and law enforcement. Where there is no
superintendent, the lead administrator for the district must assign the DTMT. Districts with three
(3) or fewer schools may request approval to alter the DTMT membership by emailing the Office
at FloridaModel@fldoe.org. The Office will grant requests that demonstrate that the duties of the
DTMT can be executed with fidelity. (c) School Based Threat Management Team (SBTMT). Each
school must have an SBTMT comprised of four (4) members, at a minimum, including persons
with expertise in counseling, instruction, school administration, and law enforcement. The
principal or equivalent administrative head of the school is responsible for appointing team
members. The SBTMT must also include a member with personal knowledge of the student of
concern who is the subject of threat management. Team members must meet the following
requirements: 1. The counseling team member must be a school-based mental health services
provider that is able to access student mental health records. 2. The instructional team member
must meet the definition of instructional personnel under Section 1012.01(2)(a)-(d), F.S., or must
hold a current Florida Educator Certificate under Section 1012.56, F.S. 3. The school administrator
team member must meet the definition of administrative personnel found in Section 1012.01(3),
F.S. This should not be the school principal, or equivalent, unless they are the only administrator
at the school, because the principal has administrative oversight of the SBTMT. 4. The law
enforcement team member must be a sworn law enforcement officer, as defined by Section
943.10(1), F.S., including a School Resource Office, school-safety officer, or other active law
enforcement officer. At a minimum, a law enforcement officer serving on a threat management
team must have access to local Records Management System information, the Criminal Justice
Information System, and the Florida Crime Information Center and National Crime Information
Center databases. Officers serving on school-based threat management teams must also have
clearance to review Criminal Justice Information and Criminal History Record Information. A
school guardian, as defined under Section 1006.12(3), F.S., or a school security guard, as defined
under Section 1006.12(4), F.S., may not serve as the law enforcement member of a threat
management team. 5. If none of the team members are familiar with the student of concern, the
SBTMT Chair must assign a member of the school’s staff who is familiar with the student to consult
with and provide background information to the threat management team. The person must be
instructional or administrative personnel, as defined in Section 1012.01(2) and (3), F.S. Consulting
personnel do not have to complete Florida Model training and may not participate in the decision-
making process. (d) Threat Management Chair and Vice Chair. The principal of each school must
appoint a Chair and Vice Chair of the SBTMT. The Chair serves as the point person for threat
management at the school-level and is responsible for triaging reported threats or concerning
behavior and communications to determine whether the matter should be summarily closed or
whether it should be reviewed by the full SBTMT. (e) Instrument. Each SBTMT and DTMT must
use the Florida Model to assess the behavior of students who may pose a threat of harm to
themselves or others and to coordinate intervention and services for such students. All reported
threats or concerning behaviors and communications, even those determined to be unfounded,
must be documented by the SBTMT along with any resultant action, using the Florida Model
Instrument. (f) Meetings. Each SBTMT must meet as often as needed to fulfill its duties of
assessing and intervening with students whose behavior may pose a threat of harm to themselves

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



or others, but no less than monthly. Districts must adopt policies requiring threat management
teams to maintain documentation of their meetings, including meeting dates and times, team
members in attendance, cases discussed, and actions taken. DTMTs must meet as needed to
review and consult with SBTMTs and must meet timeframes set forth in the Florida Threat
Management Manual. (g) Training. 1. All members of SBTMTs and DTMTs must be trained on the
Florida Model through training provided by or approved by the Office of Safe Schools, as follows:
a. All SBTMT and DTMT members must complete basic Florida Model training. b. The District
Threat Management Coordinator must complete additional training specific to the Coordinator
role. c. School principals, the Threat Management Chair, and the Vice Chair must complete
additional training specific to their respective roles. 2. In order to switch to the Florida Model on
January 1, 2024, District Threat Management Coordinators, SBTMT members, school principals,
and DTMT members must complete Office-approved training no later than December 31, 2023.
3. Beginning with the 2024-25 school year, district and school-level teams must be designated
before the start of the school year. Team members who have not previously completed training
must complete Florida Model training before the start of the school year. Those appointed to
threat management teams after the start of the school year must complete Florida Model training
within sixty (60) days of appointment. For assistance in accessing this training, districts must
contact the Office in writing at FloridaModel@fldoe.org. 4. Beginning with the 2024-25 school
year, district and school-level team members who have been fully trained in a previous school
year must complete an annual refresher training provided by the Office within the first sixty (60)
days of school. (h) Reporting. Each district school safety specialist must ensure that all threat
management teams in the district report to the Office on the team’s activities during the previous
school year. The initial reporting period for the Florida Model will be from January 1-May 31,
2024, and information will be due by June 15, and annually thereafter for the preceding school
year. The Office will provide reporting instructions by November 2023, and annually thereafter
prior to the start of the school year, that will include at a minimum the following metrics: 1.
Number of cases reported to the SBTMT; 2. Number of students evaluated by the SBTMT, broken
down by sex, race, grade level, and existence of an IEP, 504, or behavior intervention plan at the
time of evaluation; 3. Number of cases closed by the SBTMT Chair as unfounded; after referral for
self-harm assessment; or as a low level concern without review by the full SBTMT; 4. Number of
cases the SBTMT Chair referred to the full SBTMT for review; 5. Number of cases categorized by
the SBTMT as unfounded, low, medium and high levels of concern; 6. Number of SSMPs
implemented after cases categorized as low, medium, and high levels of concern; 7. Number of
cases referred to the DTMT categorized as medium and high levels of concern; 8. Number of high
level of concern cases the DTMT referred back to SBTMT; and 9. Numbers of students who
received disciplinary action or where law enforcement took action in response to the behavior
initially reported to the SBTMT. (6) Transition to Florida Model. All threat assessments initiated
under CSTAG that are not completed by January 1, 2024, or where a student is still being actively
monitored by the threat management team on January 1, 2024, must be reassessed under the
Florida Model. While new information may be gathered by the SBTMT Chair, the Chair may rely
on the information gathered while using CSTAG to determine what level of concern to classify the
student's behavior, and if a SSMP should be implemented as a result. If an SSMP is implemented,
the student must be monitored for the minimum period that aligns with the new Florida Model.
(7) Charter Schools. Charter schools are responsible for establishing SBTMTs and conducting
threat assessments as required by this rule. DTMCs and DTMTs must oversee and support charter
schools sponsored by or under contract with the district to the same extent they do for traditional
public schools. (8) Virtual Schools. Virtual schools are responsible for establishing SBTMTs and
conducting threat assessments as required by this rule. Florida Virtual School must also establish
a District Threat Management Team and assign a District Threat Management Coordinator. (9)

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA m



The following forms are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this rule. Copies
may be obtained from the Florida Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee,
FL 32399-0400. (a) Florida Harm Prevention and Florida Threat Management
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15897), effective September 2023. (b)
Harm Prevention and Threat Management
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15898), effective September 2023. (c)
Comprehensive School Threat Assessment Manual, Instrument, Guidelines, Form Form Form OSS-
001 0SS-002 CSTAG-2022 (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15899),
effective September 2023. (d) Model Behavioral Threat Assessment Policies and Best Practices
for K-12 Schools, Form BTAP-2022 (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-
15900), effective September 2023. Rulemaking Authority 1001.02(1), (2)(n), 1001.11(9),
1001.212(12) FS. Law Implemented 1001.11(9), 1001.212(12), 1006.07(7) FS. History—New 9-26-
23.

Master Safety Plan | Charter Schools USA



E—

N

7\

CHARTER SCHOOLS.

wsA

CSUSA K-12 READING PLAN

2024-2025




Table of Contents

[y d goTo [U1 4 To] o HA PP RPPPTP PR PUPRPPPPPIRS 2
K-5 RemediationN/ENFICRMENT .. ..c.e et et e et et e e e e ee e e e e e meee s e s enereeenn s eeenanaasene 4
(NGB 11 (= V7= o1 o] o PP PPPPPPRP 4
B-12 INTEIVENTION ...ttt ettt s et e e s e e et e e ebaeaet e e ebasesenensenasessnsastnnnannnsessnnsssnnensanns 5
The Comprehensive Core Reading Program (CCRP) .......uuivivrreiiiiiiiieieeeiiereeetiieeeeernneeressesesssnnreesssnesenes 7
Supplemental Intervention Reading Program (SIRP) .........cuuuuieeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeettree s e e e e eerraan e e e eeeeesaaanas 7
Comprehensive Intervention Reading Programs (CIRP)........coiivruiiiiireiiiiiieiriieereriieeeeeenneeeeenseressneeesnnnes 8
RESPONSE 10 INTEIVENTION ..ce i et e it e et e et e et e et s et e et e et e eanaebanas 8
Reading Program SpeCifiCations.........ccoeeeiiiiiiieie e 10
Specification 1: Professional Development .............cc..cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 10
Specification 2: Administrative Practices in Support of Reading ...............cccoceiniiiniiiiiiiiiiniiiiceeniee s 12
Specification 3: High Quality Reading Instruction is a Dynamic System............cc.ccoceniiniiniinnininicncneee 14
Specification 4: Reading Text Materials and Resources ...............cc.ccooiiiiiiiniiie e 19
Supplemental Intervention Reading Program (SIRP) Materials ...........cooeeieieiiiiiiiiiieeeeceeeiceee e, 20
Use of Technology and Digital Materials..........ccooo oo 20
J 0 1ol o1 0= o 0 OO PP UPPPPPPPRRR 22
Evidence-Based Intervention Resources, Programs, and Materials ..............c..ccoccoovininiiiiniiiiiineeee, 22
Y - ol o1 o =101 - PP PP RPPTPPPPPPPPPRPRPPR 23
Reading Intervention DecCiSIon TIee............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e s te e st esbeesbeesbaeesabeesareens 23
Y Tl ] 0 =Y 0 SR 24
Data-Driven Decision-IMaking TOON...........ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e s st e e e ssataeesssbeeesansaeesnnnreeesns 24

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 1



Introduction

The reading curriculum for CSUSA Schools is based on a foundation of the FL BEST standards.! CSUSA
applies a standards-based approach to reading instruction that focuses on mastery through the use of a
Guaranteed and Viable Curriculum (GVC), the core of its education model. The GVC is based on the
research of Robert Marzano as published in What Works in Schools: Translating Research Into Action
(2003) and The New Art and Science of Teaching (2017). The GVC provides all students with equal
opportunity to master the standards, and the time in which to reach mastery. The use of the GVC ensures
that individual teachers do not have the option to disregard or replace assigned content. Teachers focus
individualized reading instruction utilizing CSUSA created curriculum maps, which group and arrange
the standards in a logical way to ensure all grade level standards can be taught within the school year.
Instruction will incorporate a variety of authentic texts, with a blend of literary and informational texts in
all grade levels. Along with other resources described further in this plan, CSUSA Schools will utilize a
core reading resource, SAVVAS MyView Literacy (K-5) and Houghton Mifflin Into Literature (6-12).
Core reading programs are augmented with diagnostic assessments, leveled texts, intervention and
supplemental resources, as well as various other components to meet the needs of all students. The
program provides support in building a strong foundation in reading and utilizing critical thinking skills
within the reading activities.

The primary goal of the implementation of the reading curriculum is to teach children to understand what
they read, and to become life-long readers through systematic, direct instruction of the Standards aligned
to the six components of reading: phonological awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, reading
comprehension and oral language. CSUSA has incorporated the six components of reading into the GVC,
providing curriculum maps with corresponding standards assessments and vocabulary that will assist
teachers in systematic instruction of the standards aligned to the science of reading. In the curriculum
maps, standards are logically grouped and sequenced, building from simple to more complex skills and
taught to mastery, as monitored through Instructional Focus Assessments (IFAs) after each unit of
instruction and other classroom formative assessments. Phonemic awareness and phonics skills are
scaffolded in blending, segmenting, deleting, and other skills. Research has identified specific skills
children must learn in order to read well. According to the Report of the National Reading Panel Teaching
Children to Read, the best instructional reading programs include: use of the alphabet (phonemic
awareness and phonics), fluency (guided oral reading and independent, silent reading), and comprehension
(vocabulary and text comprehension).

Research from Florida Center for Reading Research and Just Read Florida! will be continually reviewed
in order to formulate a research-based reading curriculum based on the needs of the students. CSUSA
Schools will implement an ELA block that includes time for all BEST ELA Strands in kindergarten
through fifth grades. The ELA block will include whole group instruction and small group instruction
utilizing a research-based sequence of reading instruction, with differentiation for specific student learning
needs, timely and specific feedback, and high-student engagement to ensure the greatest impact of a full
instructional block. There will be instruction for communication/writing, and further vocabulary
development, including integration of science and social studies within the ELA block. In addition to the
ELA block, there will be an additional block of time dedicated to targeted intervention, remediation or
enrichment based on student need, which is aligned with Response to Intervention (RtI), described further
in this plan. Standards-aligned reading, writing, speaking and listening instruction will be systematically
integrated throughout the day in all subject areas.

I A review of the CSUSA Reading Plan for K-12 and guidelines provided by Just Read, Florida! is conducted
annually to ensure alignment with current Florida state statute.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 2



No matter the grade level, students in need of additional support will be provided the extra minutes of
support either in a push-in or pull-out setting, possibly within a non-required specials period. Middle and
high school grades will follow a similar plan, dependent on course scheduling. If students qualify based
on data and assessments, they will receive intervention in reading.

Research informs us that there is an instructional difference between annual growth for students who are
on grade-level and catch-up growth for students that are below or significantly below grade-level
(Fielding, Kerr and Rosier 2007). Addressing literacy and reading for those who are multiple years behind
grade-level is not a single year process, in fact, it is only after 2-3 years of comprehensive reading
instruction of more than 200 minutes per day that students begin to cross the threshold of grade- level
performance (50th percentile). With this in mind CSUSA Schools intend to provide extended instructional
minutes to students below grade level through extended-day learning opportunities, remediation,
additional tutoring, and in-school interventions.

Table 1.1 below describes a sample progression plan to increase instructional minutes in reading in grades
K-5.

Table 1.1
Sample Progression Plan of Instructional ELA Minutes Grades K-5

On Grade Level Strategic Instructional Plan Intensive Instructional Plan
Instructional Plan

90-minute uninterrupted |90-minute uninterrupted ELA | 90-minute uninterrupted
ELA block block ELA block
30-minute additional block [30-minute additional block for | 30-minute additional block
for ELA instruction ELA instruction for ELA instruction
30-minute 30-minute 30-minute
remediation/enrichment |remediation/enrichment block remediation/enrichment
block block
30-minute 30-minute Intervention block
Intervention block
Additional 30-minute
intervention block

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 3



K-5 Remediation/Enrichment
Students receive targeted instruction in core reading classes during a specific time block. Students are
grouped based on their various levels of performance on grade-level standards. The groups are adjusted
accordingly based on formative assessment data to ensure students continuously receive personalized
instruction. For example, students that are below grade level may receive remedial instruction focused
on foundation or comprehension skills, while novel studies or vocabulary application may be the focus
for students on grade level. Students above grade level may be participating in an enrichment block
where they are incorporating critical thinking and project-based learning to enhance their levels of
understanding.

K-5 Intervention
Students who have been identified as having substantial reading deficiencies, as defined by FL Rule 6A-
6.053, receive targeted, intensive instruction during a specific intervention time block. They are grouped
based on their various levels of performance within the domains of reading and are instructed based on
those targeted skill gaps. The groups are adjusted accordingly based on screening, diagnostic and
progress-monitoring data to ensure students continuously get the support they need.

The following table provides an example of an elementary schedule beginning with a
remediation/enrichment block, a core integrated ELA block, and a separate block for intervention. See
the school addendums for individual schools’ schedules.

Table 1.2

Sample Elementary Schedule

Time Monday — Friday Schedule
&:00 am — 8:40 am Remediation/Enrichment Block

8:40 am — 10:10 am ELA Block — 90 Minutes
Uninterrupted Reading
Instruction

Additional ELA Block -
Integrated Social Studies and
Science Content

10:10 am — 10:40 am

10:40 am -11:10 am

Intervention Block

11:10 am — 11:40 am Lunch
11:40 pm — 12:25 pm Specials
12:25 pm — 12:55 pm Guided PE
12:55 pm — 2:25 pm Mathematics

2:25 pm — 3:00 pm

Science/Social Studies
Experiential Block

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24




In middle and high school, students who need remediation as determined by their performance on state
and/or interim assessments will receive intensive instruction through intensive reading support during a
double ELA block, a push-in/pull out model or a separate intensive reading course, in addition to their
Students are grouped based on their various levels of
performance and targeted skill gaps. Throughout the class, groups are adjusted based on formative and
progress monitoring data to ensure students continuously get the support they need. Small group

scheduled English Language Arts course.

6-12 Intervention

instruction and research-based instructional strategies for intervention will beincluded.

Descriptions of the programs and resources used for intervention will be explained in detail further in
Attachment A. Individual schools are not limited to the resources listed in this attachment. The resources

used by the individual schools can be found in the school addendums.

Table 2.1 that follows, aligned with Response to Intervention (Rtl) described further in this plan,
describes the progression plan to increase reading instructional minutes in grades 6-12 to ensure that
students achieve mastery of grade level expectations.

Table 2.1

Progression Plan of Instructional Reading Minutes 6-12

On Grade Level
Instructional Plan

Strategic Instructional Plan Intensive Instructional Plan

50+ minute ELA block

50+ minute ELA block

50+ minute ELA block

50-minute intensive reading
class (OR) intensive
scaffolded support in reading
during a double
block/remediation block
(OR) intensive scaffolded
support in reading during a
push-in/pull-out model

50-minute intensive reading
class (OR) intensive
scaffolded support in reading
during a double block/

remediation block (OR)

intensive scaffolded support
in reading during a push-

in/pull-out model

30-minute intervention
sessions

Table 2.2 provides an example of a middle school schedule including intensive reading instruction through

a push in/pull out method and a double block of ELA instruction.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24




Table 2.2

Sample Middle School Schedule

Time Subject

8:00 am — 8:24 am Homeroom/Advisory
1 8:26 am —9:16 am ELA
2 9:18 am — 10:08 am ELA (option for interventions)
3 10:10 am — 11:00 am Math
4 11:02 am — 11:52 am Musical Theatre

(option for interventions)

S 11:54 am — 12:44 pm Science

12:46 pm — 1:16 pm Lunch
6 1:18 pm —2:08 pm World History
7 2:10 pm — 3:00 pm PE

3:00 pm Dismissal

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24



The Comprehensive Core Reading Program (CCRP)

The Comprehensive Core Reading Plan (CCRP) is the basis of reading instruction provided to all students
at all levels as a critical component of the GVC. SAVVAS MyView Literacy (K-5) is the state approved
core-reading program for kindergarten through fifth grade. It is a comprehensive, research-based program,
which provides for the implementation of an integrated approach, and supports the creation of a strong
reading foundation required for the development of literacy skills needed for the success of 21st century
learners. It correlates to the BEST standards across all grade levels and addresses the six areas of reading:
phonological awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, comprehension, and oral language. It also provides
for explicit, systematic instruction, and ample practice opportunities which allow students to master
necessary reading skills. This research-based instructional approach is provided during the uninterrupted
90-minute ELA block, and will incorporate a variety of authentic texts, with a blend of literary and
informational texts in all grade levels. This combination of short stories, novels, non- fiction texts, poetry,
and drama will prepare the student for real-life reading application. Text exemplars provide exposure to
more complex text to challenge the students, allowing them to reach higher standards of success. The
literature and non-fiction texts, supplemented with exemplar texts, suggested in the curriculum maps, are
to be used for close, analytic reads.

A portion of the block will consist of teachers providing the designated reading lesson for the day, and the
remainder of the time will be differentiated for students to receive targeted small-group instruction or
complete independent activities tailored to practice necessary reading skills from the lesson. Small-group
instruction and corrective feedback will be provided, and independent work will be monitored. Teachers
will use texts and materials at the student’s instructional level, and progress to more complex text as
necessary.

HMH Into Literature, a comprehensive English Language Arts program with an integrated reading and
writing approach, will be utilized in grades 6-12. The program correlates to the BEST standards for all
grade levels and contains multiple resources that include a reading focus. For example, resources such as
an interactive work text, The Close Reader, is provided for close reading as are digital tools to enhance
students’ ability to analyze and identify critical information within a variety of rigorous text structures.
Into Literature can also be utilized to facilitate teacher-led small group instruction, which research shows
to be an effective strategy for proficient reading. Additionally, Into Literature includes vast supplemental
novels for the use of book studies and Literature Circles, a research- proven effective reading instructional
strategy (Daniels, 2002; Langer, 2002; Marzano, Pickering & Pollack, 2001; Barone & Barone, 2012;
Helgeson, 2017).

Supplemental Intervention Reading Program (SIRP)

Based on benchmark, interim and formative assessment data, students will receive additional instruction
and practice on identified skills. Teachers will provide additional instruction outside of the 90- minute
ELA block (K-5) in times such as the Rtl block, through content area integration, during enrichment
activities, and during any other opportunity to support student achievement of individual learning goals.
Programs, resources and assessments used during SIRP are described in detail in Attachment A. Individual
schools are not limited to the resources listed in Attachment A. The resources used by the individual
schools can be found in the school addendums.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 7



Comprehensive Intervention Reading Programs (CIRP)

CSUSA Schools will meet the individual needs of students who, based on diagnostic data, have been
identified to have significant skill deficiencies and/or read one or more years below grade level. Students
will receive additional instruction outside of the 90-minute ELA block and the SIRP interventions through
the use of an evidence-based intervention program in a small-group setting. These students will receive
more frequent progress monitoring to ensure accelerated progress toward grade level expectations.
Students will not be pulled out of core subjects for this additional reading instruction. For example, the
comprehensive reading instruction could occur during dedicated intervention times, an extension of an
ELA block, or during non-required electives. Programs, resources, and assessments used during CIRP are
described in Attachment A. Individual schools are not limited to the resources listed in the school
addendums.

Response to Intervention
CSUSA Schools will use a Response to Intervention model based on a Multi-Tiered System of Supports
(MTSS) to provide high quality instruction and interventions matched to the needs of each individual
student. This model is aligned with all federal and state laws to ensure all students make appropriate
learning gains. Each student’s performance will drive future instructional decisions. This will be in place
for all students in need of reading intervention, including students who have previously been identified
as meeting Exceptional Student Education (ESE) eligibility requirements, students with 504 plans, and
English Language Learners (ELL). Students with IEPs qualify for Tier 2 and Tier 3 services in the same
manner as all other students, in addition to any services and accommodations that they are already
receiving through their IEP. CSUSA Schools will follow the district’s guidelines for 1011.62(9), F.S.,
and FL Rule 6A-6.053, where all students in grades kindergarten through 12 requiring Tier III intensive
reading interventions will be taught by a teacher who is certified or endorsed in reading.

The RtI model includes:

» Tier 1 — Standards-Based Classroom Learning. All students participate in general education
learning that includes: universal screenings to target groups in need of specific instructional and/or
behavioral support and implementation of the Florida Standards (BEST). This is implemented
through standards-based classroom structure, differentiation of instruction, flexible grouping,
progress monitoring, formative assessments, and positive behavior supports.

» Tier 2 — Needs-Based Learning. In addition to Tier 1, targeted students participate in standard
intervention protocol processes for identifying and providing evidence-based interventions based
on student need, on- going progress monitoring to measure student response to intervention and
guided decision-making. Instruction occurs in small-groups in addition to the time allotted for core
instruction.

» Tier 3 — SST-Driven Learning. In addition to Tier 1 and Tier 2, targeted students participate in
intensive, formalized problem solving to identify individual student needs; targeted evidence-
based interventions tailored to individual needs; evidence-based curriculum resources; frequent
progress monitoring; and analysis of student response to intervention(s). The time spent on
instruction for Tier 3 students is in addition to the combined Tier 1 and Tier 2 amounts.

See Addendum for a draft of a Reading Intervention Process and Procedures Manual for CSUSA Schools.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 8



CSUSA Schools ensure that behavior does not impact the reading acquisition process. Through a
collaborative problem-solving model, the multi-disciplinary team, which may include school counselor,
teacher, curriculum resource teacher, administrator will systematically review performance data of all
students and identify interventions as needed to improve student performance. This team will work with
teachers on implementation of these interventions with fidelity and progress monitoring. The team will
meet regularly to discuss how to better enable learning for students at each of the three intervention tiers.

CSUSA Schools will offer ELL students instructional services through a Mainstream/Inclusion English
Language Arts and Mainstream/Inclusion for Core/Basic subject areas model. Sheltered instruction may
be offered to students in grades 6 —12 as needed via English Through ESOL and Developmental
Language Arts Through ESOL. Mainstream/inclusion instruction provided to ELL students will be equal
in amount, sequence, and scope to the instruction provided to the non-ELL students at the same grade
levels. WIDA Can Do Descriptors will be used as a tool to help differentiate instruction, according to
what the student should be able to do based on the student’s stage of English language

proficiency. Instruction will be supported through the use of differentiated ESOL instructional
strategies, accommodations, materials, and assessments, which are monitored by the ELL committee and
documented in lesson plans. The effectiveness of these ESOL strategies will be determined by the
teachers’ observations, administrative classroom walk-throughs, data chats, and site visits. In addition,
the curriculum, textbooks, and other instructional materials used by ELL students will be comparable to
those used by their non-ELL counterparts. Supplemental text and materials will also be provided as
needed for language acquisition and reading instruction.

ESOL components are included within the SAVVAS MyView Literacy (K-5) reading program, such as
leveled texts, to supplement the lesson and provide differentiated support to ELL students. All students,
including ELL students, who are performing below grade level will be referred to the Rtl process.
Interventions that will be provided include push-in/pull-out support and small-group instruction. Progress
Monitoring Plans (PMP) will be created for all students, including ELL students, to properly document
types and frequency of interventions. The ESOL coordinator will take part in monitoring these PMPs to
ensure ELLs are making adequate progress based on performance of class and benchmark assessments.
The state required assessment, ACCESS for ELLs, will be administered as appropriate.

Students in CSUSA Schools who have been identified and qualify for a Gifted Education Program, each
have an Educational Plan (EP). The schools’ gifted teachers work collaboratively with the instructional
team to support the students in the achievement of their EP goals. Strategies utilized will allow students
to be academically challenged and will focus on higher-order thinking skills. The team works together to
review student data and identify enrichment areas which may be targeted through differentiated
instruction. Through differentiated activities, gifted students’ studies may encompass holistic projects
that include components such as the development of advanced research skills, complex creative thinking
and problem-solving, communication skills for a variety of audiences, and use of technology to promote
the desire for learning on self-selected and/or teacher-selected topics.

Between diagnostic and interim assessment periods, teachers will administer a variety of assessments to
students in need of intervention, or to those who are not responding to interventions. The norm-based
Northwest Education Association (NWEA) assessment or other comparable assessments are used as the
universal screenings for all grade levels, K-10 to determine student need for intervention. For the complete
breakdown of diagnostic tools used and frequency of assessment during the Rtl process, see Assessment
section beginning on page 15.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 9



All elements of progress monitoring will be shared with parents through the report card and data
conferences, conducted throughout the year. Parents will have the option to schedule conferences as
needed with the teacher. This connection between home and school will enhance students’ ability to
achieve annual progress.

Reading Program Specifications

In order to make reading a “primary focus,” all objectives from the Just Read Florida! Reading Program
Specifications that follow will be implemented at CSUSA Schools.

Specification 1: Professional Development

Comprehensive Initial Professional Development
Professional Development for Everyone

Frequent and Continuous Professional Development
Professional Development to Impact Change
Professional Development Led by School-site Expertise

YVVVVYYV

CSUSA Schools will provide professional development for all teachers through the model of continuous
improvement. All teachers will be provided evidence-based professional development targeted to school
improvement goals and aligned to the science of reading. Literacy trainings will help teachers integrate
phonemic awareness, phonics, word study and spelling, fluency, vocabulary and text comprehension
strategies into an explicit, systematic and sequential approach to reading instruction, including
multisensory intervention strategies. Teachers will meet in professional learning communities weekly by
grade level teams, facilitated by their team leads, to analyze student data and design units and
accompanying lessons that are aligned to state benchmarks. Additionally, team leads participate in
monthly leadership meetings with administrators. Based on administrative/support walk-throughs, site
visit feedback, and student performance, teachers will be provided specific, differentiated professional
development from mentor teachers, administrators, curriculum specialists, or curriculum resource teachers
(CRTs). At least one CRT will be on staff at all CSUSA Schools, and a regional curriculum specialist will
be assigned for support.

Professional development will be provided at least monthly, in addition to weekly grade level meetings,
and on designated teacher professional development days. Teachers will meet for data chats with mentor
teachers and administrators, after benchmark assessment periods, to analyze student reading progress,
and develop an action plan for professional development. These data chats can include reading intervention
strategies, teaching reading in content areas, and many other literacy development opportunities.
Professional development will have an emphasis on dyslexia, multisensory interventions and explicit
instructional approaches. Florida’s BEST Standards and scientifically based reading research and
evidence-based practices will also be an area of focus for professional development and PLCs. Mentor
teachers and model classrooms may be used as additional coaching strategies to supplement the traditional
professional development already in place. A sample professional development agenda is shown in Table
3 that follows. In addition to the following network-wide plan, see the school addendums for individual
schools’ customized professional development plans.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 10



Table 3

Month Topic Facilitator
July/August CRT Boot Camp Curriculum Specialist
September Data Driven Instruction Curriculum Resource
Teacher
October Cadre webinar Curriculum Specialist
November Coaching Cadre in person Curriculum Specialist
December Small Group Instruction Curriculum Resource
Teacher
January Cadre Webinar Curriculum Specialist
February Coaching Cadre in person Curriculum Specialist
March Literacy Across Content Curriculum Resource
Areas Teacher
April Cadre webinar Curriculum Specialist
May Cadre Webinar Curriculum Specialist

Instructional personnel who have not yet earned a reading certification, endorsement or an advanced
degree in scientifically researched and evidence-based reading instruction will be provided opportunities
to obtain these through partnerships with higher education institutions and/or state approved Education
Preparation Institutes.

In preparation for their highly supportive roles within CSUSA Schools, CRTs attend training workshops
each year to further professional knowledge on how to best serve CSUSA Schools. In order to facilitate
professional development to the teachers throughout the year, CRTs attend Curriculum Cadres and
webinars provided by curriculum specialists.

Principals and Assistant Principals have their own professional development institutes over the summer
to prepare for the coming year, with regard to best practices, new regulations, and any other expectation
within their roles. Principals and Assistant Principals attend meetings to receive support within their
positions.

CSUSA also has a professional development plan for New Teacher Induction (NTI) prior to orientation
at the school level. Additional opportunities for NTI will be provided throughout the year as teachers are
hired. Returning teachers receive at least one full week of professional development prior to the start of
the new school year for Returning Teacher Orientation (RTO). These two-week trainings are provided by
CSUSA, and are facilitated by Curriculum Specialists, site-based administrators, and Curriculum
Resource Teachers. During the first days of NTI/RTO, all teachers new to the school will receive
comprehensive training that ensures their understanding and implementation of the GVC. In subsequent
days, all teachers will receive training based on the Marzano works, What Works in Schools: Translating
Research into Action (2003), and Classroom Instruction That Works: Research-Based Strategies for
Increasing Student Achievement (2001). This professional development will support all areas of reading
instruction, including the use of targeted instruction, differentiated instruction, formative and summative
assessments, tracking and monitoring progress, and working with special needs students such as ELL and
students with disabilities.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 11



Teachers have to complete required coursework to obtain proper ESOL endorsement, as well as follow
state guidelines for professional certificate renewal. In addition, teachers and administrators are
encouraged to exemplify the commitment to lifelong learning, by seeking professional development
outside of the requirements of CSUSA Schools.

Professional development based on reading instructional software programs occurs throughout the year.
Both CSUSA and the individual software companies provide these trainings. Training formats include
face-to-face, train-the-trainer, network wide webinars and continuous follow up visits and support.
Trainings are also provided by core textbook publishers throughout the year on appropriate, new uses of
resources, including ways to best utilize provided materials to reach struggling readers.

The roles and responsibilities of instructional coaches can vary depending on the specific needs and
goals of the school. However, some common roles and responsibilities include Coaching, Data,
Curriculum, Professional Development, and Culture.

The table below explains in detail the coaching and professional development standards for Curriculum
Resource Teachers (CRTs) and examples of responsibilities that fall within these standards. Instructional
Coaches are not limited to the responsibilities listed and are differentiated based on school/teacher
needs.

CSUSA Curriculum Resource Teacher (CRT) Standards

CRT Standards Sample Responsibilities

Standard 1: Coaching Tier teachers based on support needed.
The CRT utilizes the coaching cycle tools to  |Walk-throughs
model, coach, and provide meaningful Targeted observations
feedback to build capacity in instructional Instructional Strategies and Resources
staff. Feedback

Modeling

Coaching

Maintain documentation of coaching cycles
Standard 4: Professional Development Differentiate Teacher Professional Days

The CRT facilitates meaningful, differentiated |[Establish follow up systems/implementation
professional learning opportunities aligned to [Provide assistance with DPP goals

the school-wide strategic plan and State Collaborate on PD calendar
initiatives. Track PD Points

PLC’s

NTI/RTO

Instructional Action Planning

Tiering teachers is an essential part to coaching as one of the initial steps. When tiering teachers, the
leadership team considers several factors, including but not limited to student growth, progress monitoring
data, classroom observations, etc. Coaching support for teachers is differentiated and varies based on
teacher need. Teachers identified as needing intensive support would then work with coaches to begin a
coaching cycle based on the identified areas of opportunity.

Specification 2: Administrative Practices in Support of Reading
» 2.1 Reading as a School-wide Priority
» 2.2 In-service and Evaluation Processes Focused on Reading
» 2.3 Resource Focus on Reading Achievement

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 12



School leaders will set high expectations for student achievement in reading and will develop a culture of
excellence with a focus on reading. The frequent administrative/support walk-throughs and site visit
feedback will be targeted to track teachers’ mastery of high-probability, research-based instructional
strategies. These measures ensure that teachers implement the reading plan with fidelity and that resources
are allocated and used to deliver the strongest impact on student achievement in reading.

High-quality reading programs and materials will continuously be chosen to meet the needs of students.
Feedback from teachers can be gathered at each biweekly data chat, as well as from results from each
interim assessment and benchmark assessment provided by the Northwest Evaluation Association
(NWEA) or other comparable assessments to evaluate the effectiveness of each chosen instructional
program. These assessments are described further in this plan. Core curriculum may be supplemented by
the purchase of novels and other approved fiction and nonfiction texts for students to read within
classroom instruction, as well as for personal reading pleasure, to increase motivation and foster a love
for reading in students. The Curriculum Resource Teacher will collaborate with the reading and content
area teachers to create text sets or collections of books around a topic of inquire at varying levels of
complexity. If an individual school has received a Title I designation, there also could be additional
resources and personnel, such as a reading coach, to assist with the selection of materials.

The principal will clearly articulate the vision, mission, and expectations that all children can read, and
assist in establishing reading as a priority. Schools may support reading as a priority by spearheading a
Reading Challenge in which all students will be expected to read a specific number of books at their
independent level throughout the year.

Table 4 below provides CSUSA guidelines for the number of books that may be read by
each student:

Table 4
Kindergarten 100
15t - 5" Grade 50
6th _pth Grade 30

Teachers can monitor students’ independent reading, and check for comprehension in a variety of ways
including, but not limited to, student created illustrations, summaries, and verbal explanations. Progress
toward the school-wide goal will be tracked and celebrated on hallway or classroom displays. This
challenge will also provide for a home-school connection with reading, in addition to their regular daily
homework assignments from core courses. Parents will be required to sign a reading log or tracking system
to monitor students’ independent reading at home. Parents can facilitate deeper understanding of texts by
being the “teacher” at home, asking their children questions about what they are reading and providing
support for any book reports or projects that may need to be completed. Students may have the opportunity
to use tablets or e-readers as well.

Staff members may also participate in a similar reading challenge. This can further promote CSUSA
Schools’ vision of creating the desire for students to be life-long learners as teachers will be role models,
demonstrating their love for learning through reading.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 13



CSUSA Schools will also have a Literacy Committee or Reading Leadership Team in order to develop
programs and activities that will promote reading throughout the school.

Specification 3: High Quality Reading Instruction is a Dynamic System
» 3.1 Propels Student Learning in Essential Reading Components
» 3.2 Expends Efficient Use of Instructional Time
» 3.3 Contains Systematic Set of Assessment Practices
» 3.4 Differentiated Instruction

Essential Reading Components

The six components of reading will be taught explicitly with structured practice to ensure mastery.
Speaking and listening skills is an essential component of literacy. Expressive and receptive oral
language skills will be provided throughout the English Language Arts instructional block.
Opportunities for students in all grades will be provided to engage in developmentally appropriate
collaborative partner, small group and whole class discussions. These discussions will include
vocabulary development, guided practice, demonstrating understanding by summarizing and retelling,
reporting on topics and relating key details of stories in a logical fashion, presentations and picture chats.

Phonological awareness skills, such as phoneme blending and phoneme deletion, will be scaffolded
beginning with simpler phonemes, and building to more complex phonemes. Phonics skills and decoding
strategies will be taught systematically and sequentially so that students understand how letters represent
sounds and sounds blend together to make words that contain meaning. The curriculum supports students
enhancing their phonics skills within their writing. In addition to explicit whole group instruction, these
skills are further mastered through small group instruction, centers, and cooperative learning activities.

Teachers will provide fluency instruction on three levels of text: high frequency word fluency, phrase
fluency, and text fluency. Students will set individual goals for fluency, and teachers will track progress
toward achievement through regular fluency assessments.

To build academic vocabulary, teachers will choose the most important vocabulary words to teach, and
following a six-step process to teach new words so that students develop a deep understanding of the word
(Marzano). Students are first provided a description or example of the word (verbally and in non-linguistic
form). Students then restate this description in their own words, and also create a picture or symbol to
represent the word. Students interact with this new word in various higher-order activities throughout the
week, as well as with each other. They may also participate in games with the word for further motivation
and connections.

Reading process and literary analysis skills will be taught through direct instruction of content cluster
skills, and modeling of metacognitive, comprehension strategies (Keene and Harvey & Goudvis). This is
supported through small group instruction with leveled texts. By providing direct, systematic instruction
for all six components of reading, CSUSA Schools will ensure that all students achieve annual growth in
reading.

Using an integrated approach, writing will be a part of all content areas. Included in this approach will be
elements from direct skill instruction and the process-oriented methodology including frequent
opportunities for students to engage in, and apply specific skills in a variety of communication activities.
Additionally, writing skills will be strengthened across the curriculum through responding to text and the
use of writing strategies such as, planning, revising, editing, peer review and collaboration. Furthermore,

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 14



text production and process writing approaches will be incorporated. Technology, such as word processing
will be utilized as support.

Efficient Use of Instructional Time

In order to maximize instructional time, teachers are requested to map out their lessons minute-by-
minute. This ensures for “bell-to-bell” instruction, with research-based strategies implemented to engage
students within learning the entire time. These lesson plans are approved by administrators and
implemented with fidelity throughout the year. With administrative approval, teachers may adjust their
plans as the year progresses to best fit the needs of students. These minutes are posted in the classroom
for all students, as well as visitors, to see. This makes all stakeholders aware of what is happening in the
classroom and assists with appropriate instructional pacing.

Teachers are also expected to map out their lesson plans in a very structured, research-based manner,
following the guidelines of using an introduction, modeling, guided practice, independent practice, and
closure within every lesson and every subject.

Reading processes and literary analysis skills will be taught through direct instruction of content cluster
skills and by modeling of metacognitive comprehension strategies (Keene and Harvey & Goudvis). This
1s supported through small group instruction. Students will have access to leveled readings and activities
in targeted small groups and centers used for individualized instruction and practice. Highly qualified
teachers will appropriately group students by level and differentiate instruction targeted to particular
groups’ needs through scaffolded, reading lessons. Additionally, instructional software, which adapts to
student’s individual needs will be used.

Students move into independent practice when they have proven they have understood the concept, and
the purpose is to master the objective. During this time, teachers can work with small-groups, and focus
on targeted instruction using research-based strategies through targeted small group instruction and
implement differentiated and skill-specific centers. This allows teachers to provide extra assistance to
those who are not ready to move on to the independent practice stage and hone in on particular
deficiencies. Lastly, a closure activity is conducted, whether it is in the form of an exit-slip, or turn-and-
talk response, in order to gauge final understanding of the concept taught within the lesson. This
effective use of instructional time plan applies to all subject areas, not just reading. For those students
who are in need of extra instructional time and support, see the sample schedules provided.

Assessment

At the beginning of every school year, teachers will analyze previous year’s state assessment scores and
identify each student’s reading level through a variety of assessments. Examples of assessments that
may be available for CSUSA Schools are shown in Table 5.1 below. See the school addendums for
specific progress monitoring assessments used at individual schools and Attachments A and C for more
information about CSUSA assessments.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 15



Table 5.1

Table 5.2

Grades K-2 Sample Reading Assessments

Category

Assessment

Frequency

Screening NWEA MAP Growth; Up to 3 times a year
STAR; iReady
Diagnostic iReady Progress 1-3 times a year
Monitoring; DIBELS;
NWEA Reading Fluency

Progress Monitoring

STAR; Easy CBM;
DIBELS; NWEA Reading
Fluency; DAR; MyView

Minimum of every 3-4
sessions within a 6-8-week
intervention cycle

Outcome Measures

NWEA MAP Growth;
State Assessments,
Instructional Focus

Assessments

Range: by unit = 3 times a
year

Grades 3-5 Sample Reading Assessments

Category

Assessment

Frequency

Screening NWEA MAP Growth; Up to 3 times a year
FAST; iReady
Diagnostic iReady Progress 1- 3 times a year

Monitoring; DIBELS;
DAR; NWEA Reading

Fluency
Progress Monitoring FAST/Cambium; Easy Minimum of every 3-4
CBM; STAR; sessions within a 6-8-week

DIBELS; DAR; NWEA
Reading Fluency; MyView

intervention cycle.

Outcome Measures

NWEA MAP Growth;
State Assessments,
Instructional Focus

Assessments

Range: by unit 2 3 times a
year

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24

16



Table 5.3
Grades 6-12 Sample Reading Assessments

Category Assessment Frequency
Screening NWEA MAP Growth; Up to 3 times a year
iReady (6"- 8™); FAST
Diagnostic DIBELS; DAR; iReady 1-3 times a year
Progress Monitoring (6'"-
8th)
Progress Monitoring Easy CBM; Minimum of every 3-4
FAST/Cambium (6-10); |sessions within a 6-8-week
DIBELS, DAR intervention cycle.
Outcome Measures NWEA MAP Growth; State| Range: by unit = 3 times a
Assessments, Instructional year
Focus Assessments;

In addition to the assessments above, fluency assessments such as oral reading fluency checks using
scaffolded discussion templates, will provide data regarding reading level progress. For those students
with disabilities for whom participation in the regular state assessments has been deemed not appropriate
per their Individualized Education Plans, alternative options will be provided per the Florida state
guidelines. CSUSA Schools will be in compliance with all guidelines and requirements, including
assessments for students with Individual Education Plans and English Language Learners. For those third
grade students who do not meet standardized testing passing requirements, CSUSA Schools will utilize
state approved alternative assessments for good cause promotion. Teachers will administer formative and
summative standard based assessments that are designed to evaluate whether a student has mastered a
specific standard at the lowest level that was taught. Each assessment will measure the academic
performance of each student on a particular standard, based on content that has been introduced and
practiced multiple times.

NWEA MAP Growth, or a comparable assessment, may be administered three times per year, as well as
interim assessments will provide data regarding progress toward the state-mandated assessment, and are
described as follows:
» NWEA Interim Formative Assessments - The Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA)
MAP Growth assessments are nationally normed, and proven to be effective at targeting
student achievement and determining skills students need to improve performance. NWEA
uses a scale score (RIT) that continues through each grade level, which enables us to
monitor growth from one grade level to the next, as well as determine exactly how far
above or how far below grade level a student is. NWEA currently provides the Measures
of Academic Progress (MAP). These assessments are adaptive and computer-based, which
help prepare students for the format of the state assessments as well. NWEA MAP tests
students with engaging, ability-appropriate content. NWEA is an adaptive assessment;
therefore, as a student responds to questions, the test difficulty adjusts to the level of the
student.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 17



Assessments are followed by a decision-making process to determine the next action to take to meet
students’ needs. Teachers use data from state assessments, NWEA MAP, interim assessments, and class
assessments to drive the decision- making process with regard to differentiated instruction. This decision
making includes re-teaching, changing the instructional strategies, or modifying the developed product to
demonstrate understanding. Student groupings will change in classes periodically depending on the
activity level and ability level. Teachers will integrate formative assessments throughout activities to make
adjustments. Continuously assessing, reflecting, and adjusting content, process, and product enables
teachers to best meet the needs of each individual student.

For students receiving targeted intervention, for example those receiving Tier 2 or Tier 3 support, the
decision-making process will be more formal. After every 3-4 intervention sessions there will be an
analysis of the progress monitoring to determine the success of the intervention. After 6-8-weeks there
will be a meeting to analyze the data to determine if the student needs to continue with the intervention,
if the intervention needs to be modified, or if the student has met their goals and no longer needs the
intervention. Time frames may be adjusted based on LEA guidelines.

Differentiated Instruction

CSUSA Schools will follow the belief that differentiated instruction includes:
» A teacher’s response to student needs
» The recognition of students’ varying background knowledge and preferences
» Student-centered instruction that addresses students’ differences
» A blend of whole-group and small-group instruction.

Research states that teachers can differentiate in various ways: with the content students are learning; the
process or environment in which the material is being taught; and the product that is developed to
demonstrate learning. Teachers will take into consideration the students’ readiness for learning, their
interest, and their learning profiles.

Research- based best practices with regard to differentiating include:

» For student readiness: focusing on the standard for the content being taught and the
objective that must be mastered, but content may be at various levels (i.e. students may
read higher-level text yet still master the same standard as students reading on- level text).

» For student interest: allowing students to choose from a list of options of how they will
demonstrate mastery (i.e. some students may complete a project, whereas others might
write an essay).

» For student learning profile: addressing various individual student differences in learning
styles (i.e. students that are tactile learners can use manipulatives, whereas students who
are visual learners can use pictures).

Using assessments describe previously in the plan, students will be assessed at the beginning of the school
year to determine basic reading development and to detect the presence of any difficulty. Based on the
instructional implications of the diagnostic screening, students will be provided instruction to meet their
individual needs with an emphasis on cooperative learning and small group instruction. Cooperative
groups are flexible based on progress monitoring of reading skills. The reading lesson segments can
incorporate differentiated texts—for on-level, advanced, below- level, and ELL students. Teachers will
utilize various rigorous and standards-based center resources to engage students in reading activities to
deepen their understanding of reading skills through hands-on activities, the use of manipulatives (i.e.
word sorts, letter tiles, and dry erase boards), and integration of technology (i.e. listening centers, Reading
Plus).

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 18



To further enhance learning for those students who are higher-level, including gifted learners, CSUSA
Schools will emphasize using higher-order thinking skills and higher-order tasks to challenge the students.
These tasks are utilized as students master concepts and deepen their understanding, and ultimately will
benefit all levels of learners. The activities are to enrich college-ready skills, such as problem-solving,
critical thinking, synthesizing, analysis, connections, creativity, metacognition, evaluation of decision-
making, and transferring knowledge. Not only can these be applied within the reading program, but also
across all content areas. Examples of higher-order activities that can be utilized include, but are not limited
to:

Cooperative learning groups
Student-created artifacts
Cross-curricular projects
Inductive learning

Real-world application projects
Circle of knowledge
Evaluations and Critiques
Research projects

Debates

Mock trials

Specification 4: Reading Text Materials and Resources
» 4.1 Materials Aligned with Student Reading Levels
» 4.2 Comprehensive Instructional Materials
» 4.3 Wide Assortment of Diverse Text
» 4.4 Flexible Use of Text
» 4.5 Appropriate Use of Technology

The Comprehensive Core Reading Plan (CCRP) Materials: CSUSA Schools will use SAVVAS MyView
Literacy (K-5) and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt Into Literature (6-12). As all reading resources are
consistently reviewed and evaluated, these choices may change in the future if new, more effective,
research-based resources are determined. As stated previously, these proposed programs include a range
of diverse print and media aligned with the Florida’s BEST Standards. Within the programs there are
diagnostic assessments, leveled texts, intervention and supplemental resources, as well as various other
components to meet the needs of all students.

Accompanying instructional materials such as workshop kits and decodable books, will be used for
differentiated instruction during the K-5 90-minute ELA block, and during the regularly scheduled double
block of middle school ELA as illustrated on the sample student schedules in this document. This
integrated reading and ELA block will infuse reading instruction for all students through the use of
research-based strategies such as close reading experiences and novel studies with the use of exemplar
texts. The increase in complexity will be accomplished by exposing students to authentic texts. Students
will have the opportunity to utilize these resources at school and at home.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 19



Supplemental Intervention Reading Program (SIRP) Materials

CSUSA Schools will meet the individual needs of students during the school day. The schedules outlined
in this plan show additional minutes outside of the uninterrupted 90- minutes of core reading instruction
through the Supplemental Intervention Reading Program. Based on classroom and benchmark data,
students will receive additional instruction and practice on identified skills. Teachers will provide
additional instruction outside of the 90-minute ELA block in times such as the Rt block, through content
area integration, during enrichment activities, and any other opportunity, to support student achievement
of individual learning goals. A comprehensive list of programs, materials and resources for SIRP is
detailed in Attachment A. See the school addendums for the list of resources utilized by individual schools,
along with descriptions of how the programs are implemented. Individual schools are not limited to the
resources listed in Attachment A. CSUSA is dedicated to increase the resources and materials used to
support SIRP at the 6-12 grade levels.

Comprehensive Intervention Reading Programs (CIRP) Materials: CSUSA Schools will meet the
individual needs of students who, based on diagnostic data, have been identified to have significant skill
deficiencies, and/or read one or more years below grade level, these students will be given additional
instructional minutes using an evidence-based intervention program. In addition to SIRP intervention,
students will receive this additional instruction outside of the regularly scheduled ELA block, in a small-
group setting, with more frequent progress monitoring, to ensure accelerated progress toward grade level
expectations. Various materials and strategies will be utilized to aid those students needing extra support
in meeting and exceeding a year’s worth of learning. A comprehensive list of programs, materials and
resources for CIRP is detailed in Attachment A. See the school addendums for the list of resources utilized
by individual schools, along with descriptions of how the programs are implemented. Individual schools
are not limited to the resources listed in Attachment A. CSUSA is dedicated to increase the resources and
materials used to support CIRP at the 6-12 grade levels.

Attachment C demonstrates a sample of the decision-making process through which students are identified
for strategic or intensive support. For students who have not responded to a specific reading intervention
delivered with fidelity and with the initial intensity (time and group size) provided, reading intervention
instruction and/or materials will be changed based on student data. Also, reflected in Attachments A and
B are examples of materials that may be utilized during the intervention process. Listed materials will be
utilized as the resource, such as FCRR, for research-based reading acquisition strategies. When students
are not responding to an intervention their supports are increased, and/or the intervention being used is
changed. Assessment and progress monitoring is continued in order to determine and target the deficiency.

Use of Technology and Digital Materials

A primary focus of CSUSA Schools is utilizing technology as an effective way to increase student
engagement and interaction with learning, as well as for real-world application. CSUSA Schools will do
the same and leverage many digital curriculum assets to enhance the offerings for remediation, enrichment
and direct classroom instruction. The goal of technology usage is to create an interactive classroom, taking
technology out of the hands of the teachers and place it within the hands of students, for an optimal
experiential learning environment. Teachers will be trained to integrate technology into the student-
learning environment to increase academic achievement for each student.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 20



With the integration of technology, all students will have targeted access to curricular resources,
assessment, technology-based intervention, and enrichment enhancing differentiation. Teachers and
students will have technology integrated in the classroom through a variety of modalities. For students,
this may include:

Flat screen televisions with interactive tablets
SMART/Interactive Panel Boards
Laptop computers

Computer labs

Tablets

Document cameras

Production room

CSUSA Schools will utilize digital texts and materials in addition to the traditional texts used in schools.
All of the textbook programs used will have a digital book component for both school and home. CSUSA
Schools will work to build a partnership with a local library as well to obtain more access to digital content.
Materials will consistently be reviewed and updated based on impact on student achievement, with digital
texts as a priority to meet student needs.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24 21



Attachment A

Evidence-Based Intervention Resources, Programs, and Materials

Examples of Evidence-Based Assessments

Additional evidence —based assessments may be used at the individual school level.

Name of Assessment

Type of Assessment

Frequency

NWEA MAP Growth (K-12) Screening up to 3 times per year
NWEA Reading Fluency (K-5) Screening, Diagnostic and/or Progress up to 3 times per year
Monitoring
STAR Early Literacy/Reading State Screening 3 times per year

Assessments (K-2)

MyView, MyFocus (K-5)

Progress Monitoring

Ongoing, as needed

Read 180

Progress Monitoring

Ongoing, as needed

DIBELS (through 8th grade)

Diagnostic/Progress Monitoring

Ongoing, as needed

Easy CBM (K-12)

Diagnostic/Progress Monitoring

Ongoing, as needed

FAST Progress Monitoring (3-10)

Progress Monitoring

2 times per year, plus summative FAST

DAR (K-12)

Diagnostic/Progress Monitoring

Ongoing, as needed

i-Ready (K-8)

Screening/ Diagnostic

1 to 3 times per year

Examples of Evidence-Based Intervention Resources, Programs, and Materials
Additional evidence-based programs, resources and materials may be used at the individual school level.

Resources/ Grade Phonics Phonemic  Fluency | Comprehension Vocabulary (o] ]]
Program Level Awareness Language
Lexia Core 5 K-5 X X X X X X
Lexia Power Up 6-12 X X X X
i-Ready K-8 X X X X
Reading Horizons 4-12 X X X X
Read 180 3-12 X X X X X
Phonics for Reading 2-6 X X X
Intensive Reading MS X X X X X X
Course Course
Edgenuity MyPath 6-12 X X
STARI 6-8 X X
FCRR K-12 X X X X X X
Scholastic Reading K-5 X X X X X X
Kits
Exact Path K-12 X X X X X X
Spire 1-8 X X X X X X
Orton Gillingham K-12 X X X X X
Heggerty K-12 X X
Corrective Reading 3-12 X X X
SIPPS K-12 X X X X

*See school specific addendums for details.

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24

22



Attachment B

Reading Intervention Decision Tree

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24

23



sweJboud uonuariayul yym ubije oy pasn aq Aew sjoo} buriojuow ssa.b0o.d [euonIppPY, .
SaIIIqeSIP YlIM SJUSpN)S pue Siaues| [enbulliyiniu Sepnjoul (13y) UouaAId)ul 0] asuodsay,

‘SNJ0JAIN / MIIAA
LSV 204K/ MIINA mﬁm.mﬁ_ mc_ﬁ\.,_m\a c AT .
“YV.LS ‘08T Peay ‘SNI04AN/MIIALIN “fouanyy Suipesy VEMN — S0 VLS ‘SNO0JAN/MIINAIN
‘STHEIA VA ‘WED Ased o LSV ‘STHEIA “YVA WED Aseq sirina v S VAN SEPOID “fouaniy Suipeay VEMN IsIpPIYD
1, SULIONIUON Ss9180.14 AV.LS ‘08T PERY ‘SNI0ALN/MAINAN x4 SULIOJIUO Ssa1801d Lt L ISR LN D AR SIS VAMN “4Vda ‘STdd1d ‘WD Ased
‘STALId AV d ‘NED Asedq T 144 SULIONUOIN Ssa.180.1d

uos[Iip

14+ SULIONIUOI SSa180.1d
1+ SULIOIIUON Ssa1S01g UOS[IM ‘SUIPESY 131D AJ[eay
‘Burpeay 1ea.1n A[[eaY ‘000 243NV ‘08T
peay ‘Surpeay onaudey ‘GYIdS ‘SUOZLIOH
Surpeay ‘weyul([iy uonIQ ‘Yed AW

‘08T peay ‘Surpeay onausepy . UOSIIM . UOS[IM ‘Suipeay
Y1dS ‘SddIS ‘weySuypn Buipeay 3eal) A[jeay Bupeay 1ea1In A[eay ‘Surpeay onousely
‘08T peay ‘Burpeay onsuel ‘TYIdS 0 ‘Burpeay xoquIes.( PROUSEIN ‘YIS ‘SddIS WeyBuIII) “TUIdS ‘SddIS ‘Wweysurm
fymusSpg  Supeay xoqureaiq ‘Apeay ‘SddIS “WeYSUI[IED) UOYQ ‘SUOZLIOK ‘sI3] SUIPEY dBSLIOUDS DA 00 "SI Supeay dBSEIOYS uoyQ “A119880} ‘suy Supeay
-1 ‘313 SUIpEaY JNSE[OYIS YU TUV.LS Suipeay qaed AW Lmusdpy ‘Apeay TYV.LS ‘Suipeay 1oy soruoyq “d¥D4 ‘Suipeay 1oj soruoyd SISEIOUSG ¢ GBS 10
‘Surpeay JIoj soruoyq ‘dp Jomod erxor| -1 ‘s11y] SuIpeay JNISEIOYdS ‘YU suozLioy Surpeay ‘( 210)) ‘Apeay-1 ‘£11988ay ‘(5 910D) erxe] NSE[OY2S YYD 'sUIpesy 10j
‘(g a10D) erxa (VyS) Surpeay 2Anda.110) ‘df) Jomod erxar ‘(G 210)) eIxa]

eixo (Vys)Suipeay 2Anda.L107) ‘(vyS)Suipeay 9A1n29.1107) sotuoyd ‘Apeay-1(ga10)) erxor|
:SHONUIAIU] J[qISSOJ :SUOTUSAINU] :SUOTIUAAIIU]

UOS[IAA ‘SUIpeay Jea.n) A[[eay

ISUONUIAIUL

SUONUDAIU]

ssaua.remy [ediSojouoyd

"AOUsDop owes 9y} M SIUapnIs
Jo sdnoag [jews ul UORIUSAISIUI pajadae} ajelpawil apiaod ‘(uorsusaya.aduwod
(8->1) Apeay-! Jo ‘Aremnqesoa ‘Aouany ‘soruoyd ‘ssauareme [ediojouoyd :seate SUIMol[o]
(zT-) ¥va 9y3Jo Aue ul pasu 9y} SUIUIULISISP) SISATEUE JUSWISSISSE INSOUSEIP 9y} U0 paseq
(epead 3noay) (8-3) Apeay !
pels ;8 Y y3) sTad1d (c-5]) £>e1o3r] Aaeq HV.LS
Aouanyq Surpeay VAMN L :
1 SHPER Y soA (21-1) vAMN -
:so1soubvi( auop-puvis EAEUERVELS
¢housysp Surpess « "IOUSAIDS [BSISAIUN B} 0}
“Kouspyap durpeal oypads oy AJruspt 03 oy1oads 9y} AJIuspl 03 JUSWISSISSE Furpeal Suipaoooe ‘Aousdyep Surpeal [enueisqns
juawssasse 3urpeal onsoudelp e soysiurwpy |+ | onsouSerp e uaAld usaq Juapmis a3 Sey & genSUOWAP OYM SYUSPNIS AJUSp]
ON :a.19H 14D3]S

«SIUIPNMIS [[V 10J [00] Suruue[d 93.1], UOISII( UONUIAINU] Suipeay



Attachment C

Data-Driven Decision-Making Tool

CSUSA K-12 Reading Plan — DRAFT as of 5.10.24

24



v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

"SOIOURIOAP SUIPBAI [enjueIsqns UIOUIONAI ‘GZ 800 [ IN3els 10J A AH oD
"BJBP 9} UO PIseq uononnsul Jo sion (e ur aedronred [[ns isnw sJH[ 10/pue sue[d TTd YIm Sjudpms
:SUOIIBIOPISUO))/SAION [BUONIPPY
yoam /g
NOoMm/€ JYO0[q UOTJUIAIIUL J00[q UOTIUIAIIUL
QAISUQIUI QJNUIWI-()§ o nuIWw-O)¢ e uononnsul uonoNnISul uononnsul
YoM/ Yo0[q uonoNNSUl Vg V14 10} V14 10J V14 10J
uonuaAUL ANUIW-O¢ e | 10J 3O0[q [eUONIPpE 300[q [euonIppe 300[q [euonIppe 300[q [euonIppe
uononnsur 14 IoJ Jo0[q nuIW-O)¢ e AnuI-O)¢ e JnuUIW-O¢ e JnuInI-O¢ e
[eUOhIppe ANUI-O¢ o 30019 39019 V14 ¥o01q ¥001q VT4
Y9019 V19 V14 pardniuojurun pardnuojurun V14 pardnuojurun pardnuojurun paJinbay sainuin
pardnuojuiun 9nuIw-(g e AnuIw-()6 e JnuIw-)g e nuIw-)5 e aqnurw-gg e |euondnJasu|
Suipeay/Adessan
9|1uadiad ;0T Mo|=g 9|QuadJad 4,0C — ;0T V/N V/N V/N Alie3 1Sv4
Aouan|4 Suipeay
mo|ag 3uiyoeouddy S199|N S199|A Sp292x3 deN VAMN
9|13uddJ3d ;,0¢ 9|3UUdd 16F 3|13UdIdd 16/ CINERIENR] J9UD342S |BSIDAIUN
9|1uadiad ;0T Mo|=g — 9|uadJad ;01 — 9|RU3I3d sTC — 9|BuadJ3d ,05 w08 2A0qY dVIN VAMN
(uonenuasayip
durioniuow uon e’y sapndul T Ja1])
€ U311 + ¢ J91L + T 4911 4911 + T 491l yum T 431 T 4911 /iuswiydlaul + T 4311 | uowdnJIsu| palall
paJinbay paJinbay ue|d
ue|d [euol}dNJISuU| DAISUDIU| [euon}onJisu| 2139141
Aduanyaq |enueisqnsg |9A3] dpeln mojag Suiyoeoaddy |9A3] dpean up |9A3] dpedn SpadIX]

apeln ,,g — uanediapun)

Supje\ uoisag uanQg-eleq




ue|d 3ulioyuow
e juswa|dwii

v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

9 SUOLIPUOD
3unsay Japisuod

1UBWISSIASSY 1UBWISSASSY 1UBWISSISSY
papaau ‘d|ge|iene eiep 1UBWISSISSY apsouseiqg apsouselq apsouselq
sdajs jeuonippe oN |euonippe 1e %007 apsoudelq 41sIUIWPY J31sIUIWpY J3151IUIWpY J3sIUIWpY uaylL
Aduani|4
Aouan|4 Suipeay Suipeay dey Aduan|4 Aduan|4
Aduany|4 deN VAIMN Aduan|4 Suipeay VIMN uo mojag Suipeay dey Suipeay den
3uipeay deN VIMN uo 3uiyoeouddy R de|Al VI/MN Uo mojag Jo 3uiydeosddy 1@ | YIMN U0 dA0QY R | YIMN U0 Moj|ag
UO SPa32X3/S199IA 3 | J9U334IS [EeSIBAIUN 3 19UDDUDS |BSIDAIUN JOUDUIS |BSIDAIUN | JOUDDIDS [BSIDAIUN | JDUDDIIS |BSIDAIUN
J2UD3JIS |BSIDAIUN UO uo 3|13UId( Uo 3|13UdI3d ;0T dNOQY uo 31U ( uo 3|13UId( uo 3|13UID(
9]3Ud243d ,0T dAOQY ;0T dA0QY ;0T — ;0T Usamiag ;0T Mojag ;0T Mojag 41

-1 10} sdajs 1xau pue eld4) ANjIqiSi3




v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

"SOIOUSIOIJOP SUIPeal [enue)sqns SUIOUAIRJAI ‘G800 23MIeIS 10} A H MAOND
©Jep 9} UO paseq uoronnsul Jo sion [[e ur aedionted [[1s 3snw SdH[ 10/pue sue[d TTd YHm sjuopms

SUOIJBIOPISUO)/SIION [EUONIPPY

JUIWISSASSY ISOUSRI(] & 0] ANIGISI[O JUTULIIOP 0) ([00) SUTUIIIIS JIYIOUR 10) AdUIN[]
dVIA VAAN JO Uonensiuiupe 10§ paJapisuod 3q pinoys ‘VAAN U0 3[nuadtad ,0¢ 9y) 2A0qe Inq ‘SuIpedy LSV U0 | [9AJ] & 3100 0YM SHUIpm§

Noom/¢
300[q UOTJUSAIOIUI

OAISUQUI JJNUIW-()§ o Noam/g yo0[q
Noam/g UOT)UIAIIUI
300[q UOIIUSAId)UI AnUIW-O¢  ®
AMuUIW-O¢ e uononIIsur UononNIISur uonoNnsSur
uononnsul 14 V14 10} V14 10§ V14 10} uonon.nsul
10J 330[q [euonippe 3[90[q [euonippe 3[90[q [euonippe 3[90[q [euonippe V14 10J 39019
JnuIw-)¢ e AnUIW-O¢  ® nuIw-() ¢ JnuIW-)¢ e | [RUONIPPR ANUIW-()f o
32019 39019 V'Id 39019 V'IH 39019 V'Id 32019
V14 padnudjurun pardniojurun pardniojurun pardniojurun V14 padnudjurun paJinbay
Jnuiw-)g e AnuIw-)G e nuIl-()6 Anuiw-)g e nuUI-()6 e S91NUIAl |leuondNIISU|
CIIUEIER] JauaaJds
9|lu334ad y;,0¢ MO|og nbC —1sTC bt — y0€ bl —3|BuU3dIad ;05 | IBUII™d (,08 2A0QY [ESISAIUN dVIN VIMN
uonenualaylp
3unoyjuow uoLeJa|aJY/Iuswydliul sapn|dul T 431
€49+ 91l + T J9IL ¢9IL+T 4911 YUM T Jal L T 4911 +T 1911 uopodnJisuj paJall

Aduayaq jenueisqns

[9A3] apei mojag

Suiyoeouaddy

[9A3] apeuo uQ

[9A3] dpeJD SpaadX]

apeto €




v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

papa3u S| JUDWISSISSY
apsougde|q e Jl duiwWJIRIdp
01 Aduan|} dejn YIMN J231s1ulwpe

‘suonipuod unsal JaPISUOd JUBWISSASSY JUBWISSASSY
papaau sdajs [euonippe oN ‘3|qe|ieAe elep |euonippe 1e 3007 ansouselq J1SIUIWPY opsouselq Ja1sIUIWPY uayl
JUBWISSasse juawWissasse FEVEETEN
91B1S /13 UO +€ 13 J9Ud3I0S 9115 Y13 UO 7 JO T |9A7 13 J2UD3UDS [ESISAIUN UO 3|13U2JID( J2U3342S |BSIDAIUN
|ESIDAIUN UO 3]1USJ3d (,0E dA0QY |ESJDAIUN UO 3]1USJd 1,0 9AOQY 16T — 1sTT U2aM1ag uo 9|uaIad 1,07 Mo|ag 41

apeJs € 10} sdays xau pue eudp) Ayiqis3




v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

"PAPI3U SI JUBWISSISSY dusoudelq
e JI dulwJp 01 (9Ankeusd}je J0) Aduanyy dey
VAMN J31sIulwpe Jo/pue ‘suonipuod Sulisal JUDWISSASSY
papaau sdajs jeuonippe oN JOpISUOD ‘D|ge|leAe elep |euolippe 1e Y007 apsoudelq J91SIUIWPY uayl
8uipesy 1Sy4 UO +€ 13 J19UIIIS 8uipesy |Sy4 Uo 7 JO T |9Ad] JBU3342S |eSJaAIUN UO
[ESISAIUN UO 3|11U32I3d 1T SA0QY 3 J9U33J2S |BSJSAIUN UO 3|11U32J3d ,sTZ dA0qyY 9|1uUdI™d ;0T MO39 41

sapeis ,,G pue i 10} sdals Ixau pue end) ANjiqisi3

©Jep oy} UO paseq uonodnnsul jo sion [[e ur ojedonted [[ns 3snw SJHJ Jo/pue sue[d TTd PIM SJUOPMS o
SUOIIBIOPISUO)/SIION] [BUOTIPPY

JUIWISSISSY INSOUSRI(] € 10J AJIQISI[d JUTULIdIP 0} (J00) SUIUIIIIS JIYJoue 10) AdudIN[] JVIA
VAAN JO UonenSIUIupe 10J PIIIPISU0d 3q P[NOYS ‘VAAN U0 3[Nuddidd 07 9y} dA0qe Jnq ‘SuIpeay LSV U0 | [9AJ] & 2.103S OYM SJUIPN)S

oM/
NOoM/€ JO0[q UOTJUIAIIUL Y90[q UOTIUSAISIUT
QAISUIUI NUIW-()¢ o NuUIW-O)E uonoNn)sul
A32M/C 3901q uononnsul vy V14 10}
uonuaAUL ANUIW-O¢ e | 10J 3O0[q [eUONIPPE 300[q [euonIppe
uononnsur 14 IoJ Joo[q JNUIW-O)¢ e AnuUIW-O)¢ e
[eUOnIppe NuUIt-O¢ o 2019 9019 V'IH 2019 V'IH 2019
Y9019 V19 V14 pardniuojurun pardnuojurun paydnuojurun V14 paidnuojurun paJinbay sa1nuip
paydnuduiun gynuIw-0g  © nuIw-gg e JnuIw-()G e nuIw-)g e JnuIw-g)G e |euondnJisu|
3|3UdIdd 61 3|13uUdJ3d 16/ J9Ud342S |BSIDAIUN
9|3uadiad ;0T Mo|=g 9|uadJad ,0C — ;0T — 9|RU3I3d sTC — 9|QuadJad ;05 9|3ua3iad ;08 SA0QqY dVIN VAMN
(uonenuasayip
durioniuow uon e’y sapnul T Ja1])
€ U311 + ¢ J91L + T 4311 4811 + T Ja1L yum T 4311 T 4911 Jauswiydliug + T 4911 uonoNJisu| paJall
paJinbay paJinbay ue|d
ue|d [euol}dnJiSu| SAISURIU| | |euonldnJISuU| 213931e41S
Aduspyaq jenuelisgnsg |9A3] Bpelp mojag Suiyoeoaddy |9A3] apedn up |9A3] dpedn SpadIxX]

o9pesd ;1S B yiv




v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

"POPO3U S| JUBWISSISSY
apsoudelq e JI SUIWJIRISP 03} (dAneUI) e
Jo) Aduan|y dejn YIMN 493siulwpe

Jo/pue ‘suonipuod 3unsal JaPISU0d JUSWISSASSY
papaau sdais |euonippe oN ‘3|ge|ieAe elep [euOLIPPE 1B Y007 opsouseiq J21sIUIWPY uayyl
8uipeay |SY4 UO +€ 3 JoUDIIS Suipeay 1Sy4 UO 7 10 T |9A3] 1 J2Ud3U0S J2U9242G [BSIaAIUN
|BSIBAIUN UO 3]13UBIID ;sT T DAOQY [ESIDAIUN UO 313UDIID 1sTT dNOQY Uuo 9|1UdJad (1,07 MO|ag 41

apess ;8 — apeus ;9 10} sdais Ixau pue end3) ANjiqisi3

BJep 9U) UO paseq uononysul jo sion [[e ur aedionted [[1s 3snw S| 10/pue sue[d TTd YHm Sjuopmis e
SUOIJBIOPISUO))/SIION [eUONIPPY

JUSWISSISSY IISOUSeI(] & 10] AI[IQISI[D dUTULIdIP 0} (J00) SUIUIIIIS JIY)oue 10) Adudn|] JVIA
VAAN JO UONE.SIUIWpPE 10§ PAIIPISU0D 3q P[NOYS ‘VIAN U0 3[NU3dId (07 3Y) 9A0qe Inq ‘SUIPeY LSV UO | [9A3] & 3.10IS OYM S)UIPNIS

qoom/¢
JO0[q UOTJUIAIIUL
JAISUIUI JNUIW-() o
A29M/ 39019 A29M/ 39019
UONIUSAINUL INUIW-()¢ e | UONUSAIIIUIL 9nUItU-()¢ ° 2019 320[q 320[q
39019 V14 39019 V14 V14 wnwiurou V14 Wwnwruru V14 Wwnwiurou p=adin _uwm SOINUIN
WU JNUI-0G e wnwrum INUI-0g e ANUIW-O)G e JNUIW-O)G e JnuIuI-OG e [euononJsu|
d|13uddJ3d ;,0¢ 9|3UdI3d 61 9|13uUdJdd ;67 J9UD342S |BSIDAIUN
9|1uadiad ;0T Mo|=g —9|QuadJad ;01 — 9|BU3243d sT¢C — 9|BuadJ43d ;05 9|3ua3iad ;08 SN0QqY dVIN VAMN
(uonenuasayip
Surionuow uon e’y sapndul T Ja1])
€ U311 + ¢ J91L + T 4911 4811 + T 491l YHum T 4911 T 4911 Jauswydliug + T 4311 uondNJIsu| paJall
paJinbay ue|d paJinbay ue|d
|euon}onJaisu| SAISUDU| [euon}onJisu| 2139141
Aduspyaq jenuelisgng |9A3] dpeln mojag Suiyoeoaddy |9A9] dpeln up |9A3] dpedn SpadIx]

apeio ,8 — dpeln .9




v2°0T°S pa1epdn yeuq vsnsd

1UDWISSISSY
apsougde|q J91SIUIWIPY N3IHL
Suipeay dvIN VAIMN

Uuo 3|1udId ,0Z Mo|2g 41
Suipeay
papaau sdais [euonippe oN JUDWISSASSY dusoude|q 491sIUIWPY dVIN VIMN 49231sIUlwipy | uayl
elep 3uipeay dvIN Suipeay
3ulpeay [SY4 UO +€ |aA9 V3IMN 40lid Uo ajquaddad ,0¢ Molagd 1SV4 U0 ¢ JO T [9A97 E |

puoAaq pue apeis ;6 10} sdais 31xau pue edI) AN|iqiS)3

©Jep 9} UO Paseq uondnysuI Jo sion [[e ur ajedronied [[s ysnw SJH] Jo/pue sue[d TTd PIM SJUOpmS e
SUOTIBIOPISUO))/SIION [BUOTIPPY

JUIWISSISSY INSOUSRI(] € 0] AJIQISI[d JUTULIdIP 0} (J00) SUIUIIIIS JIYJ0ouE 10) AdudIN[] JVIA
VAAN JO UonensuIupe 10y paIdpisuod 3q p[noys ‘VIAN U0 3uadidd ;07 9Y) dA0qe Jnq ‘Suipeay LSV U0 | [9AJ] & 3.103S OYM SIUIPN)S

AIM/¢
300[q UOTIUSAIIUIL
QAISUIUI INUIW-()E o
AI9M/C 3019 AI9M/T 3019
UONUIAIUI INUTW-()§ e | UOJUSAINUI JNUIW-) o 3001q yoo[q }o0[q
¥o0[1q V14 ¥o01q V14 VT4 wnuirur V14 wnuwirurur V14 wnuiruru paJinbay sainuip
wnwium Jnui-oG e wnwiuw AJnuil-)G e JnuIw-)S e AnUIW-()G o nuIw-gs e |euonyonJisul
sjuapnis
¢ B T [|9A3] 1SVA
9]13ud13d ,0¢ 911uddIdd 161 d|1uaddidd 6/ 0} paJajsiuiwpe
9|QuadJad ;0T Mojagd —9|Quadied ,0T —9|BU3343d T¢ —9|Quad4ad ;,05 9|luadJad ,08 2AOQY dVIA VAMN
(uonenussayip
Sulionuow uon e’y sapnul T J4311)
€ U3 + 4811 + T 4911 ¢ 91 + T 4811 Yum T 4311 T Ja11 /auswiyouiug + T 431l uonoNJISU| paJalL
paJinbay ue|d paJinbay ue|d
|[euoL}dNJISU| SAISUDU| |[euoldNJISU| 21393e41S
Aduayaq jenueisqns |9A3] apelin mojag Suiyoeoaddy |9A9] apesn up |9A3] dpedn spadIxX]

puoAag pue apein ;6




(School Logo)

Parent Handbook
Insert School I)@n

-~ jé&\ -



N

CHARTER SCHOOLS

From the very first day of school until they don their
caps and gowns, students go through the most
enriching growth period of their lives. The Charter
Schools USA family of schools is proud to offer you and
your family the opportunity to choose a great
educational experience. As an alternative to public
schools without the typical added cost of tuition, our
schools offer a rigorous academic curriculum, a safe
learning environment, a community atmosphere and so
much more.

Educational success for all students cannot be achieved
without parent partnerships. You are the most essential
part of your child’s education and it is important that we
build a strong relationship in order to best serve your
child’s educational needs.

Please use this handbook as a guide. If you cannot find
the information you need, please contact school staff
members as indicated on the following pages. We look
forward to a successful year and are committed to
providing our students with quality learning
opportunities that will help them become productive
citizens in the 21t century.

Charter Schools USA’s Mission
Relentless commitment to student
greatness in school and indifes™

Charter Schools USA’S Promise
Strong Minds, Good Hearts™

CSUSA Values
Purpose
Passion
Integrity

Grit

N

A Member of the CHARTER SCHOOLS. Family of Schools

s

Florida

Aventura City of Excellence

Bonita Springs Charter School

Clay Charter Academy

College Preparatory Academy at Wellen Park
Collier Charter Academy

Coral Springs Charter School

Creekside Charter Academy

Don Soffer Aventura High School
Downtown Miami Charter School

Duval Charter High School at Baymeadows
Duval Charter School at Baymeadows

Duval Charter Scholars Academy

Duval Charter School at Coastal

Duval Charter School at Flagler Center
Duval Charter at Mandarin,

Duval Charter at Southside

Duval Charter Schooltat Westside

Four Corners CharterSchool

Four CornersiCharter Upper School
Gateway Charter Schools — Upper and Lower
G-Star School'of the Arts

Hendersoh Hammock Charter School
Hollywood Academy of Arts and Science
Innovative Preparatory Academy

Keys Gate Charter High School

Keys Gate Charter School

Lakewood Ranch Preparatory Academy
Manatee Charter School

Mid Cape Global Academy

North Broward Academy of Excellence
Renaissance Academy

Renaissance Charter School at Boggy Creek
Renaissance Charter School at Central Florida
Renaissance Charter School at Central Palm
Renaissance Charter School at Chickasaw Trail
Renaissance Charter School at Cooper City
Renaissance Charter School at Coral Springs
Renaissance Charter School at Crown Point
Renaissance Charter School at Cypress
Renaissance Charter School at Goldenrod
Renaissance Charter School at Hunter’s Creek
Renaissance Charter Schools at Pines
Renaissance Charter School at Plantation
Renaissance Charter School at Poinciana
Renaissance Charter School of St. Lucie
Renaissance Charter School at Summit
Renaissance Charter School at Tapestry
Renaissance Charter School at Tradition
Renaissance Charter School at University
Renaissance Charter School at Wellington
Renaissance Charter School at West Palm Beach
Renaissance Elementary Charter School
Renaissance Middle Charter School

Six Mile Charter School

SouthShore Charter Academy

Tradition Preparatory High School

Union Park Charter Academy

Warrington Preparatory Academy
Waterset Charter School

Winthrop Charter School

Winthrop College Preparatory Academy
Woodmont Charter School




Table of Contents

PRINCIPAL LETTER 6
SCHOOL CALENDAR 7
AGENDA PLANNER/DIGITAL PLANNER 8
AFTER-SCHOOL CARE AND BEFORE-SCHOOL CARE 8
ARRIVAL 8
ATTENDANCE POLICY 9
BIRTHDAY CELEBRATIONS 11
BOOK BAGS/FOLDERS/PERSONAL ITEMS 12
BUS TRANSPORTATION 12
CAFETERIA 12
CARE OF SCHOOL PROPERTY 13
CELL PHONE POLICY 13
CHARACTER/CITIZENSHIP 14
CHILD ABUSE 15
COMMUNICATION BETWEEN HOME'AND SCHOOL 15
DELIVERIES TO STUDENTS/STAFF 16
DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES 16
DISMISSAL 19
EARLY DISMISSAL 21
DRESS CODE/SCHOOL ATTIRE POLICY 21
EMERGENCIES 23
ENRICHMENT PROGRAMS 24
FAMILY RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT 24
FIELD TRIPS 25
GRADING POLICY 26
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 3

June 2024



GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

26

HALLWAY BEHAVIOR 27
HOME LEARNING POLICY 27
HONOR ROLL REQUIREMENT/SHOW WHAT YOU KNOW (OR INSERT YOUR AWARD POLICY) 28
INJURY 29
INSTRUCTIONAL BOOKS, EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, AND SUPPLIES 29
LABELS 29
LOST AND FOUND 29
MEDICATION 30
PARENT TEACHER COOPERATIVES (PTCS) 30
PARENT VOLUNTEER HOURS 31
POSITIVE SCHOOL CULTURE 32
PUPIL PROGRESSION PLAN 32
REPORT CARD DISTRIBUTION 32
SCHOOL HOURS 32
SCHOOL SAFETY AND SECURITY 33
SCREENINGS 34
STUDENT INFORMATION\SYSTEM 34
STUDENTS'’ RIGHTS 35
SUSPENSION AND/OR EXPULSION 35
TEACHER CONFERENCES 35
TELEPHONE 35
SEVERE WEATHER INFORMATION 36
VISITORS 36
PARENT OBLIGATION 2023-2024 36
HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 37
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 4

June 2024



ACCEPTABLE INTERNET USE POLICY 38
ACCEPTABLE INTERNET USE POLICY: PARENT AGREEMENT 41
(SCHOOL NAME) POLICY AND PROCEDURES PROHIBITING DISCRIMINATION, INCLUDING SEXUAL

AND OTHER FORMS OF HARASSMENT 42
PARENTAL RIGHTS IN EDUCATION POLICY 48
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 5

June 2024



(School Logo will be added by Marketing prior to uploading to website)

Principal Letter

(Insert letter from the principal specific to the school)

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook
June 2024



School Calendar

(Insert board CSUSA approved school calendar (List View) here)

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook
June 2024



Agenda Planner/Digital Planner

Each student will be required to purchase an agenda planner, which includes specific
items for the school, during open house at the beginning of the school year or from
the school’s office. The agenda planner will be used by teachers for communication to
parents and by students to log home learning assignments. The agenda planner must
be signhed each night by a parent to ensure that all communication has been
reviewed. If a student misplaces an agenda planner, he/she will be required to
purchase another one from the school office. No other planners will be accepted.

After-School Care and Before-School Care

The After-School Care (ASC) program is a service we provide for parents at a
reasonable fee. Students are provided a snack and a drink and participate in recess,
games, and a variety of structured activities. During an hour of ASC time, students
also work on home learning and daily reading assignments. Please see our web site
for payment procedures and policies.

ASC Hours:
e The ASC program begins immediately after school until 6:00 p.m.
e Students may not be picked up from ASC during.dismissal time 2:45 — 3:30 p.m.
e Students will not be dismissed until after 3:30 p.m.

Before-School Care (BSC) is a service the schoeol provides for all parents for an
additional monthly fee. Students who attend BSC are expected to report directly to
the Multipurpose Room upon arrival, ‘@nd parents must sign in their child on a daily
basis. Students in BSC will have time to review the previous day’s home learning
assignments. Please see our web site for payment procedures and policies.

BSC Hours:
e The BSC program‘begins at 7:00 a.m.
e No students will.be permitted to enter the building prior to 6:45 a.m.
e Breakfastss available beginning at 7:30 a.m. — 7:50 a.m. for an additional fee

Arrival

Students need to learn the importance of regular and prompt school attendance. All
students must be dropped off in the school driveway. The school’s drop-off time is
from 7:15 a.m. — 7:55 a.m. to ensure students are sitting in class by 8:00 a.m. There
is no supervision before 7:15 a.m. for students who are not enrolled in the BSC
program. If students are dropped off prior to 7:15 a.m., they will be placed in BSC
and the parent will be assessed a $25.00 registration fee and the daily rate of $5.00.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 8
June 2024



STUDENT DROP-OFF
Traffic will loop around the parking lot and students may only be dropped off in the
designated areas.

Students are not permitted to walk through the parking lot. Please do not leave your
car unattended in the car loop lane during drop-off and refrain from conferences with
your child’s teacher during drop-off. Parents must not use their cell phones while
driving in the parking lot and music must be turned off.

The safety of our children is our first priority. Please follow drop-off procedures very
carefully to keep all of our children safe.

Attendance Policy

ABSENCES

1. Your children must be in school every day as mandated by'state law.

2. Please refer to the required Parent Obligation (see....) medifor attendance
requirements when choosing our charter school.

3. Parents will call the office to notify the school if the student is going to be absent.
Parents have two days to excuse the absence. “kailure to do so will result in an
unexcused absence.

4. When absences become a concern (3 or more unexcused absences in a calendar
month/10 or more unexcused absences' in.a 90-day period), the attendance clerk
will first confirm medical excuse notifications received and recorded for absences.

5. If an excused absence is required(for more than 10 school days, the school will
work with the family to considerhospital-homebound or other district alternatives.

6. The attendance clerk will contact the parent regarding excessive absences (5 or
more unexcused absences.in'a calendar month/15 or more unexcused absences in
a 90-day period) or garly, dismissals via phone conference, email, teacher/parent
conference or letter¢

7. If absences continue, a formal referral letter for attendance will be made to
administrationwith supporting documentation of parent contact and non-medical
absences stapled to the referral and proper district and school procedures will
follow.

8. A student must be present for a minimum of 4 hours of instructional time to be
considered present.

9. Students with excused absences will have 10 days to complete make up work.
Please note, students must be in physical attendance at school to receive mastery
assignments and mastery grades.

10.If a student is picked up early, they will be marked absent for any classes they
miss.

When a student returns to school after an absence, a note MUST be brought from
home.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 9
June 2024



EXCUSED ABSENCES
Students must be in school unless the absence has been permitted or excused for one
of the following reasons. Please note that vacations are considered unexcused
absences.
Iliness of student
Iliness of immediate family member
Death in the family
Religious holidays of the student’s own faith
Required court appearance or subpoena by a law enforcement agency
Special event (public functions, competitions, exceptional cases of family need)
Scheduled medical appointments, dental appointments, and absences for
treatment of medical diagnosis such as Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder and
Autism Spectrum Disorder, etc. We encourage you to schedule appointments after
school hours to limit instructional disruptions.
8. Students who have, or are suspected of having a communicable disease

NouhwN =

If an excused absence is required for more than 10 school days, the school will work
with the family to consider hospital-homebound or other district alternatives. Please
refer to the required Parent Obligation for attendance requirements when choosing
our charter school.

EARLY.PICK-UP
Students in grades K — 5 who are picked aip'from school prior to the end of the day will
be marked as tardy. The tardy will\be excused if the parent provides written
documentation that the need to deaveschool early was for the same reason(s) that an
absence from school would be excused. The parent's notation in the school's early pick-
up log may be sufficient for meeting the written documentation requirement. Every

third unexcused tardy/early-release for students in grades K - 5 will convert

to an unexcused absence and can be used to meet the criteria to file a truancy
petition in circuit court.

For all students in"grades K — 8, once the student has accumulated 3 excused tardies
or absences due, to leaving school early for medical/dental reasons within a semester,
the parent must provide documentation from a physician that the student had a
medical/dental appointment for subsequent class absences or tardies to be excused.

The school principal or designee may approve an early pick-up or release beyond these
limits after taking into consideration the reason, as well as the student's attendance
history, both daily and by period, and the number of early releases.

PLANNED EXTENDED ABSENCES
Parents are urged to plan family trips during school vacations so as not to interfere
with the learning process. Missing school for a family vacation is strongly discouraged.
However, if an extended student absence is unavoidable, the school must be notified

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 10
June 2024



in writing at least one week before the first day a student is out. Make-up work will be
given to students either before or after the absence based on what the teacher deems
as most beneficial for the student. Please note that vacations are considered
unexcused absences. Please refer to the required Parent Obligation for attendance
requirements when choosing our charter school.

TARDIES
A child is tardy when he/she is not in their classroom by 8:00 a.m. All late students
must enter the front office and be issued a tardy pass. A student is considered tardy
if they are absent at the time attendance is taken provided the student is in
attendance before the close of the day. If tardy for half a period or more, a student is
considered absent for that period.

Excused Tardies:
A student will be considered as excused only if a parent/guardian_personally escorts
their child to the front desk and has a viable reason. The reasons for excused tardies
are as follows:

1. Doctor appointments with notes from the doctaer/arthodontist or

2. Extreme emergencies approved by administration
Excused tardies will not count toward the student’s-tardy record.

Unexcused Tardies:

A tardy will be considered as unexcuséd due to alarm clock failures, “parent’s fault”,
car trouble, and inclement weathér eonditions. Unexcused tardies will count toward
the student’s record. Your childrensmust be in school and ON TIME by state law.

3 unexcused tardies will constitute 1 absence

The procedures for abiding\by state law are as follows:

1. At three tardiesy the attendance clerk will double check for medical excuses or
extreme emergencies approved by the administration for tardies turned in and
recorded.

2. At three tardies, the attendance clerk will contact the parent regarding
excessive tardies or early dismissals via phone conference, email,
teacher/parent conference or letter.

3. If tardies continue, a referral letter will be given to administration with
supporting documentation of parent contact and non-medical or emergency
tardies stapled to the referral. Appropriate consequences will follow, such as
detention or Saturday School.

Birthday Celebrations

Students are welcome to celebrate their birthday at school in grades K-5. Individual,
store bought snacks (cupcakes, cookies, etc.) and a drink may be brought to school to
share with your child’s homeroom. Arrangements must be made in advance with the
classroom teacher. No party bags, balloons, decorations, etc. are permitted.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 11
June 2024




Siblings may not attend this celebration as it would be disruptive to other
classes.

Book Bags/Folders/Personal Items

Book bags, backpacks, folders, or any other personal items must not display patches,
entertainment insignias, drawings, obscene words, gang related paraphernalia, or any
other item that would be deemed inappropriate, offensive, or reflect negatively on
CSUSA. Failure to comply will constitute a uniform violation and be subject to
detention and parental notification.

Bus Transportation

(School Name) does not provide/provides bus transportation. (Inglude information on
bus transportation if applicable.)

Parents are encouraged to car pool and make sure that students are dropped-off and
picked-up according to posted school hours.

Cafeteria

(Meal Supplier) provides all breakfast and lunches for (School Name). A standard
menu will be used, and the monthly menu €an be picked up or viewed online.
Breakfast and lunch will be served in the'cafeteria/multi-purpose room. Students who
bring lunch from home are able to purechase milk. Students can charge meals up to
$10, once that threshold is reached,/students will no longer be able to charge to their
accounts until the balance is paid and/or a deposit us made to the students’ meal
account. Students are not allowed to bring sodas to school. Since we are trying to
promote healthy eating habits, we request that fast food not be brought to school
when a child forgets hisfher lunch. In addition, we discourage sugary foods, candy,
cookies, gum, and-feods heavy in red dye.

Payment:

The fees for school breakfast and lunch are as follows:

Elementary and Middle School Breakfast $1.75 Full Price
$0.30 Reduced Price
Elementary and Middle School Lunch $3.00 Full Price
$0.40 Reduced Price
Milk can be purchased ala carte for $ .____ cents.

We require parents to use our online payment system, My School Bucks, to make
deposits into the students’ meal accounts. Positive balances remaining on the meal
account at the end of the year will carry over to the next school year unless a refund
is requested in writing/email. If your child will be graduating or not returning to our

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 12
June 2024



school, then the refund should be requested prior to July 1.

Free/Reduced Price Lunches: Free and reduced lunch applications are available in
the office/online through INSERT LINK. Students qualifying for free or reduced meals
will receive free milk at breakfast and lunch and at milk break. Parents must apply for
this benefit yearly. Applications should be completed and returned by (date) for
students starting school at the beginning of the school year. Students who enroll after
the school year has begun must return their free/reduced lunch applications with their
registration packets. A random selection of applicants will be asked for additional
information regarding verification of income. Notification pertaining to qualification for
free/reduced lunch will be sent promptly. Parents are responsible for providing lunch
for their children until the application is approved; however, prior year lunch status is
valid for the first two weeks of school.

CAFETERIA BEHAVIOR

Each student is required to show good manners, courtesy and-consideration of other
students and adults in the cafeteria. Students will enter and.exit the cafeteria in an
orderly fashion. Students will stand in a single file line/while waiting for food, keep
communication noise levels low, and stay seated unless'they have been given
permission to leave their seat. Students are requited to dispose of trash on and
around their table before the lunch period is‘everi(or immediately upon the request of
the monitors) in the trash receptacles. No student is allowed to leave the cafeteria to
another area of the school during the luneh'period without a written pass. A student is
not allowed to leave the school grounds, during the lunch period. NO FOOD OR
BEVERAGE IS TO BE TAKEN OUT. OF,THE DESIGNATED DINING AREA AT ANYTIME.
The cafeteria rules are posted and“all students are expected to follow them at all
times. Food or other objects arenot allowed to be thrown at any time while in the
cafeteria as this poses a safety eoncern; such acts may result in disciplinary action.

Care of School Property

Students are expected to respect the school buildings and property. Receptacles are
provided throughout the buildings and grounds for proper disposal of waste. Marking
or defacing school property is a serious offense and will result in disciplinary action.
Any student who damages/vandalizes school property will be required to make full
restitution for damages. Chewing gum in the school building is forbidden. All food
must be consumed in the cafeteria or area designated by Administration. Students are
not permitted to play in bathrooms. Any student who disregards rules pertaining to
care of school property may be subject to disciplinary action.

Cell Phone Policy

As Per Florida Statute 1006.07(2)(f) “Notice that use of a wireless communications
device includes the possibility of the imposition of disciplinary action by the school or
criminal penalties if the device is used in a criminal act. A student may possess a
wireless communications device while the student is on school property or in

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 13
June 2024



attendance at a school function; however, a student may not use a wireless
communications device during instructional time, except when expressly directed by a
teacher solely for educational purposes. A teacher shall designate an area for wireless
communications devices during instructional time. Each district school board shall
adopt rules governing the use of a wireless communications device by a student while
the student is on school property or in attendance at a school function.”

(Insert the school’s cell phone policy or use the paragraph below.)

The use of a cell phone by a student while school is in session is not allowed.
Students who use cell phones at school will have the cell phone confiscated and the
phone will only be returned to the parent/guardian. If a cell phone is brought to
school and is lost or stolen, the school is not responsible for the loss.

Unauthorized electronic devices, such as handheld games, earbuds.and headphones,
should not be brought to school. Students who bring unauthorizéd electronic devices
to school will have them confiscated. If these items are brought to school and are lost
or stolen, the school is not responsible for the loss. Authgrization for having these
devices on campus can only be given by Administration.

Consequences are as follows:
First Offense: The electronic device will beireturned to the parent/guardian of
the student.
Second Offense: The electronic device will be returned to the parent/guardian
of the student and the studentwill-receive (list consequence).
Third Offense: Parent must sign-paperwork acknowledging the electronic
device will be returned at the‘end of the academic year.

Failure to surrender items will\result in a disciplinary consequence.

Character/Citizenship

(Insert the school’s Character/Citizenship policy or use the paragraph below.)
Students are expected to demonstrate superior character and citizenship. Character
education provides a focus on developing the whole child. We encourage students to
always do the right thing and seek the assistance of staff members when a
troublesome situation arises. Follow the golden rule: Do unto others, as you would
have them do unto you. Lend a helping hand whenever possible, always make good
choices and act responsibly.

STUDENT OF THE MONTH

Each month students have the opportunity to become a Student of the Month.
Students must demonstrate the following qualities:

e Make good choices when reacting to or handling a problem

e Exhibit self-control at all times, including special area classes, lunch, recess,

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 14
June 2024



school events, and before/after school care

e Demonstrate concern for other people, for their own personal property, and
for school property

e Accept negative and positive consequences, and act responsibly

e Arrive to school on time (no more than 2 unexcused tardies per quarter
and/or early dismissals per quarter)

e Turn in home learning assignments in a timely manner

e Receive no detentions or suspensions

Student of the Month is a component of the school’s overall school-wide behavior
plan. Students may be nominated by their classroom teachers, who will take into
account regular behavior in special classes, lunch, recess, and Before/After Care
Programs.

(Include information on school-wide behavior program and revise paragraph above if
applicable.)

Child Abuse

State law requires that teachers, administrators_and, other school personnel report
suspected cases of abuse, abandonment, or neglect-te the DCF Hotline at

1 800 96-ABUSE.

Communication Between Home and'School

Communication is absolutely essential for success in any human endeavor. The
administration and staff recognize’this and will strive to facilitate open and frequent
communication with parents at,all times. Teachers will communicate with parents on
behavior and academics ~daily through the agenda and/or (Schoology and
SchoolMessenger, PowerSchool) the school’s closed, private learning network that
allows students and parents to interact with the classroom teacher and school in a
manner that blends!social networking tools with traditional school communications
tools. Make sure, that you check your child’s backpack/folder daily for informal notes
from the teacher or from our staff.

Report cards, progress reports (sent home once during the middle of each grading
period/available online in PowerSchool) allow parents opportunities to review student
work and progress. Additionally, student work will be sent home weekly (revise as
needed). Parents/guardians are asked to review all student work and communications
sent home. Parents may also view their child’s current academic status through the
PowerSchool. Usernames and passwords will be sent home at the beginning of the
school year or you can call the front office to receive login instructions.

Please feel free to consult with the office regarding any problems or questions that
concern your child. It is the desire of the administrators and the faculty to be of
service to both parents and student, and every teacher welcomes a conference with

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 15
June 2024



any parent. However, we do request that such visits be arranged beforehand with the
teacher at a convenient time either before or after-school. Parents are asked not to
meet with a teacher unless a conference has been scheduled. Impromptu conferences
with teachers at the classroom door and during arrival and dismissal before or after
school are not permitted as this may distract the teacher from supervision of students
during a crucial time of movement.

Parent satisfaction surveys are conducted twice annually, shortly after the start of the
school year and toward the end of the school year. Your participation is crucial so that
the school can determine areas that are working well and areas that need
improvement.

Deliveries to Students/Staff

In order to maintain an optimal learning environment, school staff ‘must ensure each
classroom is minimally interrupted during the day. Therefore, office staff will not make
any deliveries to students or staff. We request parent cooperation in preparing
students for school and in making certain that students have’all the materials and
assignments necessary for the day. Office Staff will not accept delivery of supplies,
lunches, home learning assignments, projects, etc.;.for students or staff. Also, please
be advised that the Main Office will not accept anyfield trip forms or monies on behalf
of teachers, the Before/After-School Care Programs, or the cafeteria. We appreciate
your cooperation and understanding regarding this matter.

Discipline Procedures

Discipline is the process of changing a student's behavior from inappropriate to
exemplary. We are never satisfied with merely stopping poor behaviors; we desire to
teach the student to do what is.right. We do not discipline a student out of anger or
for the sake of convenienee:, Though few students desire discipline, they often need
structure and clear expeéctations to reach their full potential.

Each teacher will establish appropriate procedures for discipline in his/her classroom
based on these guidelines. The following list is not all-inclusive:

1. Students are expected to respect the authority of school personnel which
includes but is not limited to: administration, teachers, staff and substitutes.

2. Malicious destruction of school property will result in the replacement,
repair or payment for damages by either the student or his/her parents.
The placement of stickers on school property is forbidden.

3. Students shall help keep the school clean at all times. There is to be no
gum chewing in the school building or on school grounds.

4. Items such as water pistols, matches, iPods, skateboards, hand held game
devices, toys, weapons of any sort, etc. are not permitted on school
grounds.

5. No items will be permitted that carry pictures or slogans referring to drug
culture or alcohol. No profane, abusive or slang language is to be used.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 16
June 2024



6. All students will follow the established school cell phone policy. Cell phones
or other personal electronic devices should not be brought to school and
use is prohibited during school hours. School phones are available in case of
emergency. Possession of a cell phone or other personal electronic devices
during the school day will result in the equipment being collected and
returned directly to the parent.

7. There is zero tolerance for aggression, drugs and alcohol on campus.
Students that push, hit, bite, kick, harass, bully, threaten School Safety or
use the internet in a negative way will be assigned an appropriate
consequence, up to and including suspension or dismissal from the school.

The (School District) passed a Code of Student Conduct that lists violations and
disciplinary actions that must be taken in order to deal with misconduct. All students
and their parents must read The District School Board Code of Student Conduct,
which can be viewed online at (link to District Code of Conduct- insert hyperlink)

Detention Policy:

Kindergarten — 2nd Grade: 30 minutes (2:45- 3:15)
3" Grade — Grade 8: 1 hour (3:30%%4:30)
3" Grade — 8t Grade: Saturday School (9:00-11:00 a.m.)

LEVELS OFDISEIPLINARY ACTION

There are three (3) levels of disciplinary action and the levels are determined by the
seriousness of the act and the district Code of Conduct (review district code of
conduct).
Level I Actions- In orderto resolve Level I discipline problems, the following options
are available:

¢ Conference with-teacher

¢ Parent Contact

e Conference“with teacher and parent(s)

e Conference with Principal or designee

e Conference with counselor

e Behavioral Contract

e Detention (lunch)

Level II Actions- In order to resolve a Level II offense, more formal disciplinary
actions shall be used. Formal actions include, but are not limited to:

e Detention (after school administrative)

» Detention (after school teacher)

e Time Out

¢ Conference with Principal or designee

e Saturday School

¢ Out of school suspension if repeated offense

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 17
June 2024



e Alternative to External Suspension

Level III Actions- In order to resolve Level III offenses, the options available are:
¢ Out of school suspension
e Dismissal from school
¢ Administrative review and reassignment

AFTER-SCHOOL DETENTION
An administrator or teacher will complete the After-School Detention form which
includes the date/time/location of the detention, description of why the detention was
given, and the attempts made to contact parent/guardian. If a student misbehaves
during After-School Detention or is late, they may be issued another behavioral
consequence such as Saturday Detention.

SATURDAY DETENTION
Saturday Detention may be assigned to those students whesg*behavior is consistently
inappropriate. Saturday Detention is scheduled from 9:00 am-11:00 am; students are
required to wear their school uniform and must compléete homework/seatwork while
serving the detention. There is zero tolerance for misbehavior. A student may be
suspended for one day if they miss Saturday Detention, unless due to a family
emergency or illness verified by a doctor’s note.

SUSPENSION
Suspension is a disciplinary action”that-temporarily removes a student from a class or
all classes for a prescribed period of time not to exceed ten (10) school days. The
Principal or the Principal’s desighee shall make every effort to employ parental
assistance with alternative.consequences for misconduct prior to suspending a student
except in emergencies, disruptive conditions or incidents involving serious misconduct.

Middle school students who are suspended for alcohol, tobacco, or other drug (ATOD)
offenses havesan opportunity to save days out of school by participating in a specified,
district approved ATS program identified by the school.

PERMANENT DISMISSAL
The Principal may recommend dismissal of a student to the Board of Directors for any
of the following:
1. Possession, use of or transmission of a weapon including, but not limited to,
a gun, knife, razor, explosive, ice pick or club.
2. Possession, use of or transmission of a substance capable of modifying
mood or behavior.
3. Using any article as a weapon or in a manner calculated to threaten any
person.
4. Committing a serious breach of conduct including, but not limited to, an
assault on school personnel or on another pupil, making a threat or false

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 18
June 2024




report, lewd or lascivious act, arson, vandalism or any other such act, which
disrupts or tends to disrupt the orderly conduct of any school activity.

5. Engaging in less serious but continuing misconduct including, but not limited
to, the use of profane, obscene or abusive language, or other acts that are
detrimental to the educational function of the school and that have clearly
transpired.

Suspendible offenses include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Fighting or other dangerous and/or disruptive behavior.

2. Smoking/Vaping on school grounds.

3. Being under the influence or having alcoholic beverages and/or drugs on
school grounds.

4. Possession and/or use of a weapon or any object that can be used as a
weapon including but not limited to: knives, brass knuckles, Chinese stars,
chains, mace, etc.

5. Defacing or vandalizing school property.

6. Igniting any flammable substance.

Dismissal

Please avoid calling the front office during dismissal«(2:45 p.m. — 3:30 p.m.) Students
must leave school grounds immediately after:dismissal, unless enrolled in ASC or
Enrichment Programs. Parents must wait foritheir children outside the school. ASC
Students will not be dismissed during regular dismissal and may be picked up after
3:30 p.m.

Only individuals listed on the EMERGENCY CONTACT CARD will be allowed to pick-up
students from school. Please update information whenever changes occur. Valid photo
identification will be required of all individuals’ picking-up students. If someone arrives
at the school to seek therelease of a student and the person's hame is not on the
emergency contact card or the person does not have valid photo identification, the
student will not bé released.

To avoid havingithe school become involved in personal family conflicts, parents or
guardians should submit to school authorities a copy of any legal documents that
indicate who has legal access to the child and his/her records during school hours. In
the absence of legal documentation, school officials will provide access only to those
individuals whose names appear on the student's data card. Failure to provide the
school legal documentation outlining visitation rights will result in any parent listed on
the birth certificate being permitted to pick up a child. Friends and strangers will be
denied access to a student in the absence of verified parental consent.

Students not picked up on time will be placed in ASC and be charged according to the
Late Fee Schedule below:

Late Fee Schedule

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 19
June 2024



K-6

3:31 p.m. - 3:45 p.m. $15.00
3:46 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. $20.00
4:01 p.m. - 4:15 p.m. $25.00
4:16 p.m. - 6:00 p.m. $30.00

*Any child picked up after 6:00 p.m. will be charged the late fee and an additional
$2.00 per minute.

If making changes in your child's dismissal plan, please fax/email the information with
a copy of your Florida Driver’s License and signature to the school before 2:00 p.m.
No phone calls will be accepted.

Examples of changes to child’s dismissal plan:
e An ASC student going home in “parent-pick-up” instead /of going to the ASC
Program.
e Requesting that a student be placed in ASC for the day instead of going to
“parent-pick-up”.

No early dismissals will be permitted after 2:00 p.m. If you must sign your child out
early for an appointment, please do so by the 2:00 p.m. cut-off.

STUDENT PICK'UP PROCEDURES
Pick up: All vehicles are expected to-comply with the pattern set up by school
personnel.

PICK UP CAR TAGS
(Include the following text or replace with school specific procedure.)
The pick-up car tag must-be displayed in your front window at dismissal. A staff
member will collect’the pick-up car tag upon your arrival in the traffic loop. Staff
members willduse the cards to ensure your child is escorted to the pick-up area.

After entering the traffic loop and giving your pick-up car tag to the staff member,
proceed around the parking lot traffic pattern. Your child will be picked up by you at
the designated door and your car tag will be returned to you.

Students are not permitted to walk through the parking lot. Do not leave your car
unattended in the car loop lane during pick up. Please refrain from conferences with
your child’s teacher during these times. Parents must not use their cell phones while
driving in the parking lot and music must be turned off.

Please follow our procedures for dismissal to ensure the safety of students and to
demonstrate positive citizenship in our school’s neighborhood.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 20
June 2024



Car Tags are only permitted to be used to pick up students during the regular
dismissal time.

Early Dismissal
Any student leaving school prior to dismissal will have an early dismissal logged to
his/her record.

Excused early dismissals are given for doctor’s appointments with notes from the
doctor. To receive an excused early dismissal, a doctor’s note must be brought to
school the next day. No doctor’s notes will be accepted late.

If you need to take your child out of school before the end of the school day, come to
the school office and sign him/her out and a school employee will 'send for your child.

Students will not be dismissed from the classroom to a parent:~Parents need to sign
their child out on the sign-out log and wait for their childte.come to the main office.

No early dismissals will be permitted after 2:00 p.m.

A parent conference will be required if a student exceeds a combination of 10
unexcused absences, tardies or early dismissals to ensure improvement in student
attendance. 3 unexcused tardies or early dismissals will constitute 1 absence

Dress Code/School Attire Policy

A higher standard of dress encourages greater respect for individuals, students and
others, and results in a higher.standard of behavior. Our dress code guidelines
indicate appropriate schoel'dress during normal school days for every student.
(School Name) reserves the right to interpret these guidelines and/or make changes
during the school yearxStudents are expected to follow these guidelines. If a student
comes to school without the proper uniform, they will be kept/sent to the front office
and remain there until a parent/guardian brings a proper uniform for the student.

UNIFORM VIOLATIONS!

Level I — Verbal warning.

Level IT — School sends home a uniform violation note/stamp or student will call
parent from office to obtain correct uniform.

Level III — School sends home a uniform violation note/stamp or student will call
parent from office to obtain correct uniform. Student will call parent from office to
obtain correct uniform. Student will wait in the office for parent to bring correct
uniform.

1 Sample violations listed. The school will provide specific consequences.
Reasonable accommodations will be provided based on a student’s religion, disability,

or medical condition.
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 21
June 2024



SHIRTS
All shirts must be tucked in and purchased from the (designated uniform company)
with the school’s logo. Elementary students’ color is red. Elementary students are
required to wear polo shirts with short or long sleeves bearing the school logo.

Middle school students’ colors are navy blue or white with short or long sleeves. T-
shirts are not allowed as normal school day wear. Only one solid white, gray, or black
t-shirt may be worn underneath the polo shirts. T-shirts may not be visible below the
shirt hem or cuff. The polo shirt must be worn every day to school.

Students participating in PE or an after-school sporting function may wear the
approved Heather Gray PE shirt provided by (Uniform Company).

HAIR and MAKE UP
Hair must be neat and clean with no "unnatural" colors iie: fluorescent, bright green,
mohawks, spikes, head symbol shavings, etc. Hair that is distracting to the
educational setting will not be allowed. The decision.about whether hair or make up is
appropriate will be at the administration’s discretion. No hats, hoodies, headbands,
scarves, or bandanas may be worn. No make-up will be worn in school. The parent
may be contacted for inappropriate hair/or make up, as necessary.

SHOES
Students must wear shoes with closed toe and back, at all times. No heavy military
type boots or shoes with metal tips may be worn. No stacked or pumped shoes may
be worn. We recommend sheakers or flat dress shoes. No wheeled sneakers,
bedroom/other slippers; or ‘pointed/cowboy boots. Students should not wear black
sole shoes as they scuff the floor.

SOCKS
Socks must be worn daily and must be white or dark colored. Fishnet stockings or
other inappropriate leg wear is not acceptable. Socks should be worn no higher than
lower calf height.

BOTTOMS
Students in grades K-6 must wear Khaki or Navy bottoms (shorts, slacks, skorts).
CSUSA logoed bottoms are encouraged but not required.

Absolutely no jeans will be allowed on any day (no matter the temperature), except
on designated Jeans Days when the student may wear appropriate jeans if the
student chooses to participate as a fundraiser.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 22
June 2024



OUTERWEAR
Navy blue school authorized jackets and school authorized zippered sweatshirts
without hoodies are the only outerwear permitted (School Name). Parents may
purchase the school’s navy blue jacket or sweatshirt from (Uniform Company) that
provides the rest of the school uniform.

BELTS
A belt must be worn at all times with any article of clothing as belt loops are part of
the school uniform pant. It should be fitted around the waist so that excess length
can be tucked in loops and NOT hanging. Belts must be plain khaki, brown, black or
navy (not white or bright-colored). Belts cannot have dangling items, large buckles, or
logo/written items.

JEWELRY
Boys and girls may not wear body piercing other than earrings-in the ear lobe. One
earring per ear may be worn. For safety reasons, only a.stud’or a tiny hoop earring
can be worn. (Tiny hoops can be no larger than an addlt,pinky finger.) Limited jewelry
can be worn such as a watch, small bracelet, and thin,necklace/chain. For safety
reasons, necklaces/chains should be worn inside of.school uniform, NOT on top of the
uniform shirt. Bracelets need to be limited to.one\per wrist to eliminate unnecessary
noise and distractions.

GENERAL
At no time are students to wear anything offensive, immodest or deemed
inappropriate by the faculty. ALL CLOTHING SHOULD BE LABELED WITH THE
STUDENTS NAME. Parents of Students in Kindergarten are encouraged to leave a
Ziploc bag labeled with the!child’s name with a spare change of clothes in the
classroom throughout the year for emergencies.

Emergencies

Emergency situations and communications

As we go through the school day, there could be a number of reasons to limit hallway
movement within our school building or even restrict all access into or out of the
building. A lock down does not automatically mean your child is in danger. Lock
downs are used in an abundance of caution to assure our staff and students are
secure. Our first priority during a lock down of any type is to secure the building and
make sure all everyone is safe. As we are assessing the situation, we are not able to
immediately call parents during this time. Law enforcement is immediately involved
when placing the school on a Code Red lockdown. We must follow all directions from
the local police at that time and they may ask us not to share any information to be
sure we do not hinder the investigation. During a lockdown, no one is permitted in or
out of the building, so parents should not come to the school to pick up their children
unless they are advised to do so.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 23
June 2024




Possible reasons for lock downs:

e Power outage

e Plumbing/water issues

e Weather issues (such as severe lightning and thunderstorms, tornado
watches and warnings)

e Facility/maintenance issues

e Suspicious activity in the community

e Medical issue of a student or staff member that requires emergency
transportation

e Rumors of threats/or a threat on campus

e Any actual emergency

This list is not inclusive, but gives you an idea of the types ofssituations that could
trigger a lock-down. We understand lock downs can be troubling, especially to
students. Although we know students may text you during ‘a fock down with
inaccurate information. Please trust that we will give you'accurate and up-to-date
information as quickly as possible.

Iliness

The importance of regular attendance cannot be\over-emphasized, but students
should not be sent to school when they are jllsStudents will be sent home if they have
a temperature of 99 degrees or above. In<order for a child to return to school, he/she
must be fever-free, diarrhea, vomit-free for a minimum of 24 hours. If a student
becomes ill during the school day_.and it\appears that they would be best cared for at
home, the parent will be contacted. There are very limited facilities in the school,
making it impossible to keep sick students for long periods of time. School personnel
must be notified of any student'schronic iliness (i.e. asthma, diabetes, heart
conditions or seizures).<This\sheightens awareness in case of an emergency. Please
update Emergency Contact Information whenever changes occur. Students will not
be permitted to take'calls from parents to see how they are feeling. The school will
contact you if yeur/Child is not feeling well.

Enrichment Programs

The enrichment program functions independently from the ASC program; therefore, it
is not a requisite to be enrolled in the ASC program to participate in enrichment
activities. Students have several opportunities to participate in extracurricular activities
for an additional fee.

An enrichment guide will be posted on our website which will include the activities
offered, the days, time and cost. Fees are due monthly through My School Bucks.

Family Rights and Privacy Act
The revised Family Rights and Privacy Act became a Federal law in November, 1974.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 24
June 2024



The intent of this law is to protect the accuracy and privacy of student educational
records. Without your prior consent, only you and authorized individuals having
legitimate educational interests will have access to your child's educational records. In
special instances, you may waive this right of access to allow other agencies working
with your child to have access to those records.

Field Trips
As a learning experience, teachers may plan field trips. Parents may be asked to assist

the teacher as chaperones. Parents serving in this capacity may not have other
children accompany them. Parents who are officially selected to be chaperones may
count their hours on the field trip as volunteer hours.

**Parents identified to attend a field trip are required to have level 1 clearance.
Parents accompanying students on overnight field trips must be“fingerprinted and
background checked per the Jessica Lunsford Act, in effect since-September 2005.**

Participation in field trips is a privilege. Students serve as\répresentatives of the
school; therefore, they may be excluded from participation in any trip for reasons
relating to behavior or conduct. Students must follow all*instructions given by staff or
any other adult in charge while on the trip, including while on the bus and while at the
field trip site. Students who fail to follow instructions will be given an appropriate
consequence upon return to school. If a student is suspended during the first
semester, they may be excluded from participating in any field trips or dances during
the first semester. If a student is suspended during the second semester, they may be
excluded from participating in any.field trips or dances during the second semester.
Also, those students with poor.behavior that may endanger/disrupt other on a field
trip their participation will be left up to the discretion of the school administration.

Parent permission must be given for students to participate in field trips. The teacher
will send permissionsslips and information about each field trip 2-4 weeks prior to
each field trip. Money and permission slips must be turned in according to the
teacher's instructions, prior to the field trip or the student will not be permitted to
take part in the field trip. Students are to wear their uniform on field trips for security
reasons (unless otherwise authorized by administration). All open balances owed to
the school must be remitted prior to the student attending the field trip i.e.,
before/after care, lost books, volunteer hours. All payments must be submitted
through My School Bucks.

It is very important that parents adhere to the field trip collection deadlines. Teachers
will not be able to collect any money or field trip forms past the specified deadline
date. Please do not ask the office staff to place money, forms or any other items in a
teacher’s mailbox as we don't accept any type of deliveries for students or staff. All
payments must be submitted through My School Bucks. Students must hand deliver

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 25
June 2024



required documents to his/her teacher by the due date. All students must be in
attendance on the day of the field trip in order to be allowed to attend.

e Early dismissal from a field trip site is not permitted.

e All field trips must be paid online using My School Bucks

e Money will not be accepted at the front office.

e If you are a chaperone, no babies/siblings are allowed on the Field Trip.

Grading Policy

Academic grades are a reflection of student mastery of the standards being taught.
Students’ academic work is not graded based on behavior. For example, students will
not be academically penalized for turning in a late assignment. However, they will
receive a behavioral consequence for not following the teacher’s directions. The same
principle will apply for cheating. Students will receive a behavioral consequence if
caught cheating, and will be required to take a new, different assessment to measure
mastery.

Grading a student’s work solely on the standards taughtallews teachers to have a
true indicator of the proficiency level of the student since grades are not skewed by
non-academically related aspects. Students are given ample opportunity to practice
what is taught in order to demonstrate what they/have learned both in class and
through home learning assignments, which are reflective of student practice grades.
Students are afforded re-teaching and reassessment opportunities. (Insert school
reassessment policy.) Parents will have feal-time access to grades in the electronic
grade book, and teachers will frequently communicate with families before a report
card with final grades is issued t6 address any concerns about students who are
failing their assignments.

Grading Scale

The grading scale is as follows:

|Grades K-1 Grades 2-12

E* — Excellent Progr;s_ 90-100% A — Exceeds Mastery of the Standards
S* — Satisfacto_ry I;rogress 80-89% B — Mastery of Standards

N — Needs Improv'ement 70-79% C— Approaching Grade Level Standards

U — Unsatisfactory Progress 60-69% D — Below Grade Level Standards
0-59% F—Failure
S** — Satisfactory Progress
N** — Needs Improvement

*E, S, N, and U are used on the Kindergarten and Grade 1 report cards for Reading and Math.
S and N are used for all other subject areas.
**For Grades 2-5 Art, Music, PE, and Grade 2 Social Studies, Science, and Health.

Grievance Procedure

If a student or his/her parents feel they have a grievance or complaint, they should do

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 26
June 2024




the following:

1. Carefully analyze the problem and obtain all of the facts.

2. Seek to resolve the problem with the teacher, if applicable, through
appointment.

3. If you believe the problem is not resolved, meet with school
administration.

4. If left unresolved, you should contact School Support, CSUSA at 954-
202-3500.

5. If still unresolved, you should contact the Board of Directors. Please call
the school for contact information.

For grievances related to Exceptional Student Education/Section 504 Disability, in
addition to school based and CSUSA grievance procedures available to all students,
you may also utilize the grievance procedure outlined in federaldaws such as IDEA or
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1974 as amended by the.Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act.

Hallway Behavior

Students should travel through hallways quietlydo_avoid interrupting ongoing classes.
Students should always arrive to class on time. Students are NOT allowed to show
“Public Displays of Affection.” For safety reasons, students should walk on the right
side of the hallway and keep their hands, feet’and other objects off the corridor walls.

Home Learning Policy

The purpose of home learning is t@ develop study habits in children early on in their
academic lives. It is also usedo, reinforce concepts that have been taught or to work
on projects that have beenassigned. Home learning assignments will reflect a
practice grade in the eléctronic grade book. If a child does not understand his/her
assignment after trying'to'do it at home, please communicate the problem to the
teacher.

Teachers use the following time schedule as a guide when assigning home learning:
Home learning Reading Log & Instructional Software

Grade K 10 minutes 10 minutes
Grade 1 20 minutes 10 minutes
Grade 2 20 minutes 20 minutes
Grade 3 30 minutes 30 minutes
Grade 4 45 minutes 30 minutes
Grade 5 45 minutes 30 minutes
Grade 6-8 60 minutes 30 minutes

These times are a guide and are based on the average child's ability and on
concentrated, undistracted time for doing home learning. Some home learning
assignments may take less time or may take slightly more time on any given day. A
child who does not complete class work during school hours may have to complete

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 27
June 2024



this work in addition to the home learning assignment. Reading Log requirements will
be sent home by the teacher.

Assignments must be completed on time and properly written. The only acceptable
excuse for not completing home learning is the student's iliness or a written note
stating an emergency, which prevented home learning from being completed. If a
student fails to bring in home learning, he/she should complete it for the following
day. If a child consistently fails to complete home learning, there may be behavioral
consequences in the classroom. It is important to note that home learning is the
student’s responsibility.

All students will be required to write their home learning assignments in their school
agenda or review their teacher's posted home learning assignments on Edmodo.
Parents are required to sign the agenda each night to ensure effective
communication. Parents not signing the agenda may result inythie student receiving a
disciplinary warning or corrective action.

The parent’s responsibility is to provide a quiet environment and assistance when
needed. In addition, parents may help in the following ways:

e Show an interest in your child’s work.

e Provide a place and time for quiet study.

e Assist in skill building

e Encourage home reading and listen toyour child read.

e Review the assignments for neathiess and completeness.

e Refrain from doing the work for,your child.

e Discuss problems related to heme learning with your child’s teacher.

Students will not be permittedito’return to a classroom after dismissal to get home
learning assignments and\projects. This also includes the students participating in
ASC. Assignments will"not be accepted at the office from parents.

Honor Roll Reguirement/Show what you know (or insert your award

policy)

QUARTERLY AWARDS
High Honor Roll - All As or equivalent in academic subjects
Honor Roll - All As and Bs or equivalent in academic subjects

END OF YEAR AWARDS
A variety of awards will be given covering numerous academic and nonacademic
areas at the end of the school year.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 28
June 2024



Injury
An accident report will be completed and filed for everyday accidents.

The procedures listed below will be followed for an injured student:
e Teachers will send the student to the office if the injury is minor.
e Teachers will notify the office if the student is unable to be moved.
¢ School personnel will administer basic first aid.
e The parent(s) will be called and the injury described. For minor injury, the parent
will make the decision about retrieving the student from the school. Emergency
contact persons will be called if parent cannot be reached.
e The Emergency Services will be called for critical injuries that require the type of
care that school personnel cannot offer, and the parent or emergency contact will
be notified.

Instructional Books, Equipment, Materials, and Supplies
All textbooks needed by students for school and home leatning assignments are
furnished by the school.

Student care of books and materials is mandatory.as.these items are costly and
replacement is limited. Students are required to cover all books that are issued
to them. A brown grocery bag makes an excellent book cover, in addition to books
covers that may be offered for free by some businesses. Students should print their
names and room number on the front of/each book cover. Books must not be written
in or on. Charges will be made for-damaged or lost books and/or materials. Students
must learn to be responsible for the care of personal and school materials.

Students must turn in the textbeoks on the day of each individual Final Exam.
(Remove if non-applicablé)

(If you have 1:1 palicy, ‘please include expectation and policy for tech care.)

Students will be’expected to provide all basic supplies such as paper, pencils, crayons,
rulers, scissors, markers, glue, etc. Any additional supply needs will be requested in
writing by the classroom teacher. Please help your child come prepared for school by
packing his/her homework and supplies in the evening to avoid the last-minute
morning rush. Ultimately, it is the student's responsibility to check and be sure that
everything needed for the next day has been packed.

Labels
Please have your child's name on all personal property such as: lunch boxes,
sweaters, raincoats, etc.

Lost and Found
Throughout the school year, items which have been lost are turned in. Many of our

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 29
June 2024



problems would be solved if clothing and personal belongings were labeled with the
student's name. Anytime a student loses an item, he/she may go to the "Lost and
Found" to claim it. There are many items lost and never claimed each year. These
items are donated monthly to various charitable institutions. Therefore, please label
your child's personal belongings.

Sweaters, jackets, and uniforms not labeled and in good condition will be washed and
resold for $5.00 each after 30 days.

Medication

The administering or dispensing of any medicines (including non-prescription
medication) to students by employees of the school without specific written
authorization by the physician & parents of the student is forbidden. If it is absolutely
necessary that the child take any medication while he/she is in seheol, and a
physician’s form is not signed, the parent may come to the school'to administer
medication personally. A Physician’s Form may be obtainedfrom the school office.
The medication will be kept in the office and will be administered by office personnel.
Students are not allowed to have any medication (not'even over-the-counter
medication) in their possession. Parents must pick-up ‘and drop-off medicine in the
office. Students are responsible to come to the office at the appropriate time to ask
for their medication. It is not the responsibility. of ‘the office staff to remind the
student. Please inform your child’s teacher’of.any medication procedures.

In alignment with statute, a student may, possess and use a medication to relieve
headaches while on school property or at'a school-sponsored event or activity without
a physician’s note or prescriptiontif:the medication is regulated by the United States
Food and Drug Administration for over-the-counter use to treat headaches. Please
consult with Principal regarding the policy regarding procedures for use.

Parent Teacher Cooperatives (PTCs)

(School Name) truly ‘believes that the involvement of parents in the education of a
child is essentiak, ‘Not only is academic communication important, the volunteer
involvement of\parents is important to benefit the programs of the school. The PTC is
structured in a manner that respects the importance of time with family, engagement
in the school community, and the opportunity to enrich the programs of the school for
students.

(School Name) PTC will create monthly opportunities for parent involvement on a
large scale that will allow parents to assist and volunteer.

A major component of the (School Name) PTC will be the team structure for events,
fundraisers and identified needs of the school. A parent can focus their talents and
areas of personal enjoyment with the events and opportunities of the school.
Volunteer organizations have always known that putting the right volunteers in the
right places always increases retention of volunteers and the success of the

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 30
June 2024



organizational efforts. (School Name) intends to put these lessons into practice and
harness the immense abilities within our school.

The primary mode of volunteering will always be with your child’s classroom and
grade level. Each grade level will facilitate major events for their students. This will
require close cooperation between the parents and teachers. Teachers will share the
major events they are planning and coordinate with parents to form teams to make
the event a success. Most grade levels will host one major and one minor event each
year. Teachers will coordinate with parents to organize small groups and teams to
host a successful event. These events will also facilitate a parent’s ability to
completely fulfill their volunteer hour obligation. Parents with multiple children in the
school will always be able to find opportunities to work with multiple grade level
events and fulfill their hours.

Your teacher will be in touch consistently to recruit for parent<teacher teams for
events, causes, fundraisers, and school tasks. They can inelude, but are not limited to
lunch monitor duties, fundraising, field trips, class presentations, etc. (School Name)
intends to reach out and tap in to your talents and gifts to'bring learning to life in our
school.

Parent Volunteer Hours

To further the School’s mission and purpaose;,.which includes developing well-rounded,
engaged students, active parental participation will be required at the School. Parents
are required to participate in their child’s”education. We have determined that active
parental participation is essentialttothe delivery of our educational goals and is the key
to the success of the overall program.

Parents are encouraged.to volunteer a minimum of 20 hours per school year. When
two or more children front the same family are enrolled, parents will be asked to
volunteer a total of(30, hours per school year. The School Principal or other school
designee verifies (the *completion of the hours and credit is applied to the family’s
account. At the time of recommitment (usually January) for the following school year,
parents are sent a letter notifying them of their progress toward completion of their
volunteer hours. Parents are provided with numerous volunteer opportunities which can
be completed at the school or at their home, thereby alleviating any possible hardship
that may be created for parents that may not be able to complete volunteer hours at
the School. Many opportunities are provided to families that have a limited schedule
and school personnel work closely with each family, individually, to design their
volunteer opportunities to meet the needs of their family. Please plan in advance
therefore, school personnel is aware and they have volunteer opportunities available.
Parents are not allowed to volunteer in classrooms (only for special events with consent
from administration) Please note no babies/siblings are allowed while volunteering at
school during school hours.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 31
June 2024



Pediculosis (HEAD LICE) and Eye Infections
Students will be checked periodically for head lice. Students will be sent home
immediately if school personnel suspect lice in his/her hair.

The students MAY NOT return to school until treatment has been administered and all
nits have been removed from the hair. Upon returning to school, the student will be
checked to determine if any nits are still present before admission to class. To prevent
an outbreak of head lice, parents are asked to examine the hair of their children
weekly, and shampoo frequently.

Any eye conditions that do appear to be infectious must be cleared by a doctor in
order for the student to return to school. This is for the protection of the student and
their classmates.

*Please add communicable and other contagious diseases section, from your school
district/hyperlink.

Positive School Culture

It is the policy of the School Name that all of its students and school employees have
an educational setting that is safe, secure and free from harassment and bullying of
any kind. Our school will not tolerate bullying and’harassment. Bullying and
harassment, as defined below are prohibited:

Definitions: Bullying includes cyberbullyingy and means systematically and chronically
inflicting physical hurt or psychological distress on one or more students or school
employees. It is further defined as-a pattern of unwanted and repeated written,
verbal, or physical behavior, ineluding any threatening, insulting, dehumanizing
gesture by an adult or student,.that is severe or pervasive enough to create an
intimidating, hostile, oroffensive educational environment; cause discomfort or public
or private humiliation; @r unreasonably interfere with the individual’s school
performance or participation that includes a noted power differential.

Pupil Progression Plan

(School Name) will follow the (Progression Plan Name: CSUSA or District based on the
school contract.) requirements and procedures for K — 8 students. For further
information, please reference to the school website.

Report Card Distribution

Report cards will be sent home with the student for Quarters 1, 2, and 3 (see the
school calendar for report card issue dates). Report cards for Quarter 4 will be mailed
home in mid-June. (insert school report card procedure- customize pick up, email or
refer to your school website)

School Hours

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 32
June 2024



School Hours 8:00 a.m. until 2:45 p.m. (K-1) or 3:00 p.m. (grades 2-8).

Before School Care 6:45 — 8:00 a.m.
Student Arrival 7:15-7:55a.m.
Student Dismissal K-1  2:45p.m.
2-6 3:00 p.m.
After School Care All grades 3:00 - 6:00 p.m.

School Safety and Security

Safety and security is of paramount importance to Charter Schools USA and School
Name. As part of School Name commitment to being a premier educational
community, it is our priority to provide a safe and secure learning environment. We
all play an important role in helping to maintain this positive atmesphere. As a
student you can make a difference. Make a personal commitment not to participate in
violence in any way. Do not bully, tease, or spread negative.gassip about others.
Respect others and value differences. Try to broaden yoursocial circle to include
others who are different from you.

School Name is committed to providing a safe envirenment for its students, parents,
employees, and visitors. Early reporting and intervention have proven to be the most
effective method of resolving any actual or perceived incident. Therefore, School
Name is desiring and requesting that all individuals who believe they have witnessed
an incident or experienced conduct that they believe is contrary to the policies,
protocols, procedures, and mission.of the School immediately report such incident or
conduct to the School Principal, Assistant Principal, or the Dean. The school
appreciates all individuals partnering with the school in this manner, so we can
collectively make School Name.the absolute best it can be.

FortifyFL is a suspicious activity reporting tool that allows students and members of
the community.to(report information anonymously concerning unsafe, potentially
harmful, dangerous, violent, or criminal activities, or threats of such activities to law
enforcement or school officials as described by law. https://getfortifyfl.com/

SAFETY DRILLS
We will continue to ensure students and staff are prepared to quickly make their way
to safety in the event of an emergency situation by conducting required numerous
“safety drills” during the school year. Fire Drills, Lock-down drills, Active Shooter Dirill,
Evacuation Dirills, etc.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION
Your child’s safety is a top priority. We need to be prepared for the unexpected. We

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 33
June 2024



conduct required monthly safety drills and practice extreme weather procedures to
prepare us for the possibility of an emergency. Under extreme circumstances should
we need to evacuate the building, the local police will assist in determining the
location the students would be held. Under no circumstances will parents be allowed
to pick up their child at school during an evacuation period. For information during
such an emergency you may contact CSUSA at 954-202-3500. Please wait patiently
for a phone call from our office staff telling you the location and procedure for picking
up your child. The local news stations may also be helpful is always helpful with
disseminating information regarding evacuations and procedures as well. *Please
contact school for reunification plan or school can add location of reunification.

Students will only be released to the people identified on the emergency contact form.
Please bring proper identification (a picture ID) when picking up your child. Keeping
this in mind, please notify the office immediately when there is a.change in home/cell
phone numbers.

Screenings
In accordance with Florida Statute 381.0056 (4), students participate in the following

required health screenings:

(1) Vision screening shall be provided, at ‘a/minimum, to students in grades
kindergarten, 1, 3 and 6 and students entering.Florida schools for the first time in grades
kindergarten through 5.

(2) Hearing screening shall be provided,” at a minimum, to students in grades
kindergarten, 1 and 6; to students entering Florida schools for the first time in grades
kindergarten through 5; and optionally to students in grade 3.

(3) Growth and development screening shall be provided, at a minimum, to students in
grades 1, 3 and 6 and optionally/to students in grade 9.

(4) Scoliosis screening shallbe provided, at a minimum, to students in grade 6.

In addition, annual screening for at-risk indicators of wellness concerns is conducted
for newly enrolled(students and students in grades 1, 4, 7, and 10.

Any parents who desire to opt out of the screenings, indicated above, for their child
shall notify the school in writing.

Student Information System

All parents will have access to the web based PowerSchool, a tool to assist in your
daily interaction with your child’s school life. This tool can be accessed from any
computer with Internet access. All that is required is that you have the correct web
site address and a valid username and password. User names and passwords are
available through the front office.

Parents can get up to date grades, attendance, and tardy records while also having
access to email teachers, view school calendar, and see how your student is faring

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 34
June 2024



with the State Standards in each class and benchmark test. It is very important that
you keep phone numbers, addresses, and contact information updated.

Students’ Rights

Students have the right to feel safe from threats and bodily harm. Disruptive
behaviors are never acceptable, and when they occur, they will result in exclusion
from participation in class activities, detention, suspension or expulsion or other
disciplinary action.

Parents who have a conflict with a student other than their own child and/or parent
are requested to speak to the Administration. At no time may parents approach the
student or their parent directly.

All students and employees will be treated with respect. Slurs, inhuendoes, hostile
treatment, violence or other verbal or physical conduct against,a-student or employee
will NOT be tolerated. Police will be called when necessary:

Suspension and/or Expulsion

The Principal may recommend to the GoverningiBoard and the Superintendent of
Schools to expel a student for any of the following in accordance with the (School
District) Code of Conduct:

Prior to suspension or expulsion, the student has the right to a fair hearing as outlined
by the Code of Conduct. Offensessinclude but are not limited to the following:
1. Fighting or other dangerous and/or disruptive behavior (hitting, kicking,
harassing, safety threats;pushing or biting).
Possession or use,of/drugs’'and tobacco.
Being under the influence or having alcoholic beverages on school grounds.
Defacing or vandalism of school property.
Igniting any-flammable substance.
Continuahdisruption of class.
Emotional outburst.
Profanity.
. Insubordination.
10. Disrespect.
11.Peer Conflict.

CONOUTEWN

Teacher Conferences

All parents and students will meet with their child’s teacher at least once during the
school year. Parents can request a conference by contacting their student’s
homeroom teacher(s). We encourage you to have conferences more often, as
effective communication is one of the cornerstones of education.

Telephone
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 35
June 2024



The school has a business telephone to help transact the business of the school and
the lines must be kept open. Students may not use the telephone without permission
and only for emergencies. It is difficult to deliver a personal message to an individual
student without interrupting the instructional program. Only emergency messages will
be delivered to the student in the classroom.

Severe Weather Information

In the event of school closing due to severe weather conditions, parents will be notified
through the automated communication system and email. This system informs parents
of weather or other emergency events and school functions.

Visitors

Visitors, INCLUDING PARENTS, are NOT permitted to go to their«child's classroom
unannounced during school hours because this disrupts hormalfeutine and
instruction. For the safety and protection of all students, visitors'(including parents)
must present a valid Florida Driver’s License which will be pracessed through the
Raptor Screening System. Parents must also sign in and‘out, state whom they are
visiting, state the purpose of the visit, and obtain a pass before proceeding to a
classroom. Cooperation will enable the school to.provide*a safe and orderly learning
environment for all students.

(School Logo needs to be addedprior to uploading to website)

PARENT OBLIGATION 2024-2025

I (We) the parent(s)/guardian(s) of have read and agree to abide by
the Code of Conduct-and.thé Dress Code of (School Name) I (We) understand that my (our) child is a (School
District) student.

WHEREAS, in order to provide my (our) child with a unique educational opportunity;

WHEREAS, by choosing to enroll my (our) child at (School Name) is a decision of my (our) personal choice and not a
privilege;

WHEREAS, my (our) desire to enroll my (our) child at (School Name) is premised upon my (our) desire to become an active
partner in the education of my (our) child;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing:
1. As a parent of a student at (School Name), my (our) commitment is to abide by the following resolutions:

A. To recognize and embrace my role as the primary educator of my child.
B. To participate in the parenting workshops as provided by the school.
C. Toattend all conferences scheduled with any member of the (School Name) staff.
D. To participate in the Parent Volunteer Program for 20 hours for the first child and 10 hours for all other
additional children. Recording of volunteer hours will be done on PowerSchool by the parent for credit. 2
of the hours must be completed before Winter Break and the second 2 by May 1%,
E. To provide transportation to and from school for my child. I understand that if I am late picking up
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 36
June 2024



my child, (School Name) is not responsible for my child’s safety. If my child is continually tardy or absent, I
understand that for the benefit of my child’s education, he/she may be required to transfer to a school that
is more accessible for my child.

F. To purchase uniforms for my child from the (School Name) approved supplier and ensure that
my child is wearing the approved uniform daily.

G. To supply a lunch, either brown bagged or purchased from the (School Name) approved vendor,
each school day for my child.

H. To be responsible for timely payment of any fees accrued to my account at the school.

I. To participate in at least one of the many parent groups i.e. PTC, School’s Improvement Committee,
Fundraising Committee, etc.

J. To purchase an Agenda Book and Weekly Folder from the approved supplier and sign book nightly.

2. To do the following things to enhance my (our) child’s academic growth, I (we) agree to do the following:
A. To read and use the information sent home by the school to keep parents informed of the academic topics to be
introduced and studied in the classroom.
B. To provide a suitable time and place within the home for homework.
C. To assist my child in obtaining and regularly using a library card at the Public Library and allow for at least 60
minutes of homework daily.
D. To limit television and video games and phone usage during the week and allow. more time for reading, studying and

family time.
E. To check my child’s homework nightly.

As a proud member of the Charter Schools USA family, we believe all paréntsishould have a choice in their child’s
education, and that all children deserve access to a quality education.-We,look forward to sharing information with
you regarding changes in legislation, or other factors that could.impact the‘educational environment or a parent’s
right to choose. We may also call upon you to help us communicatesthe,importance of putting students first. To
assist with the advocacy of school choice, you agree, by indicating below, to allow for the licensing of your school
related demographic data. You may opt out by checking: NO I do not want to participate. Thank you in

advance for your support.

I (we) understand that participation in the schoolsas,defined above, fulfills the mission of the school by enhancing
my child's education and the school community,assawhole. I (we) understand that such participation is a
contractual obligation to the school and to my/(our) child, and that failure or refusal to fulfill this obligation is
incompatible with the school's mission. Therefore, a breach of this obligation by you may impact your child’s status
with the school.

Signature of Parent/Guardian Date

Acknowledged by: Date
School Official

(School Logo needs to be added)

Handbook Acknowledgement

Dear Parent,

Please complete the bottom portion of this page and return it to your child’s
homeroom teacher by (date).

Thank you,
Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 37
June 2024



(Principal Name)
Principal

Student Name

Teacher

I acknowledge that I have read the parent handbook. I agree to/comply with the
policies set forth in this handbook.

Parent/Guardian Signature Date

Acceptable Internet Use Rolicy

Student's Last Name Student’s First Name
Grade Home Phone Number
Introduction

The Internet links thousands of computer networks around the world, giving (School
Name) students access to a wide variety of computer and information resources.

(School Name) does not have control of the information on the internet. Some sites
accessible via the Internet may contain material that is inappropriate for educational
use in a K-8 setting. (School Name) and the system administrators do not condone

the use of such materials and do not permit usage of such materials in the school

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 38
June 2024



environment. There are security systems and filters in place to prevent students from
getting to unauthorized sites. If a student does access an unauthorized site, it is a
conscious selection and act and may result in the loss of Internet privileges.

(School Name) specifically denies any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of
information obtained through its Internet accounts.

Your child will learn Internet communication skills including the following; email
safety, downloading, files, www, keyword searches, etc.

Student Guidelines

Students are expected to follow all guidelines stated below as well as those given
orally by the staff and to demonstrate ethical behavior in using the network. Care of
(School Name) facilities go hand in hand with using computer hardware, software and
the Internet in a responsible manner. Any actions that might harm*the computer
equipment or software, or impair its effective use, or showing-disregard for the proper
procedures set up for network access will not be tolerated:

1. Before use, all students will receive an overview of the aspects of security and
ethics involved in using the (School Name) network.

2. Students may not allow others to use‘their,account name and or their
password. To do so is a violation of the Acceptable Use Policy.

3. Any action by a student that is determined by his classroom teacher or a
system administrator to constitute-an inappropriate use Internet at (School
Name) or to improperly restrict-or inhibit others from using and enjoying the
Internet is a violation of thesAcceptable Use Policy.

4. Transmission of material,jinformation or software in violation of any school
district policy, or local, state or federal law is prohibited and is a breach of the
Acceptable Use Policy.

5. Any use of the“Internet proxy services to circumvent the network filters will
result in suspension and loss of Internet privileges.

Violating the Aceeptance Use Policy may result in:
e Restricted network access
e Loss of Network access

e Disciplinary or legal action including, but not limited to, criminal prosecution
under appropriate state and federal laws.

In order to ensure smooth system operations, the Systems Administrator has the
authority to monitor all accounts. Every effort will be made to maintain privacy and
security in this process.

Student Access Contract
I understand that when I am using the Internet or any other telecommunications

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 39
June 2024



environment, I must adhere to all rules of courtesy, etiquette and laws regarding
access and copying of information as prescribed by either Federal, State or Local law,
(School Name), the (School District) and Charter Schools USA.

My signature below, and that of my parents, means that I agree to follow the
guidelines of the Acceptable Use Policy for the Internet at (School Name).

Student Name

Student Signature

Date

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 40
June 2024



Acceptable Internet Use Policy: Parent Agreement

A parent must also read and sign this agreement.

We ask you to review this policy with your child and to sign the consent form. Your
child’s teacher has already discussed this policy with your son/daughter.

If you would like more information about (School Name) Internet accounts, please
phone

As the parent of this student I have read the Acceptable Use Policy for the Internet
for (School Name), I hereby give my permission for my child to use the Internet
through classroom curriculum projects.

Parent Name

Parent Signature

Date Parent Work-Phone Number

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook
June 2024

41



(SCHOOL NAME) POLICY AND PROCEDURES PROHIBITING

DISCRIMINATION, INCLUDING SEXUAL AND OTHER FORMS OF

HARASSMENT
L. Policy Against Discrimination
A. No person shall, on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, marital status, disability,

political or religious beliefs, national or ethnic origin, or sexual orientation be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any
education program or activity, or in any employment conditions or practices conducted by
this School, except as provided by law.

The School shall comply with all state and federal laws, which prohibit discrimination and
are designed to protect the civil rights of applicants, employees, and/or students, or other
persons protected by applicable law.

The School shall admit students to programs and classes without fegard to race, color,
religion, gender, age, national or ethnic origin, marital status), disability or handicap or
sexual orientation.

II. Policy Against Sexual Harassment or Other Forms of Harassment Prohibited by Law

A.

The School desires to maintain an academic and work environment in which all employees,
volunteers, and students are treated with-respect and dignity. A vital element of this
atmosphere is the School’s commitment te.equal opportunities and the prohibition of
discriminatory practices. The School’s\prohibition against discriminatory practices includes
prohibitions against sexual harassment, or any other form of harassment based upon a
person’s membership in a protected class and specifically prohibited by applicable state or
federal law. The School forbids sexual harassment, or any other form of illegal harassment,
of any employee, student,, volunteer or visitor. The School will not tolerate sexual
harassment, or any other form of illegal harassment by any of its employees, students,
volunteers or agents.

The prohibition against discrimination including sexual and other forms of illegal
harassment shall also apply to non-employee volunteers who work subject to the control of
school-authorities, and to all vendors or service providers who have access to School
facilities.

III. Definition of Sexual Harassment

A.

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, requests for sexual favors, and
other verbal, visual or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of an
individual’s employment, academic status, or progress.

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
employment or academic decisions affecting the individual.

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the
individual’s academic performance or employment, unreasonably interfering with

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 42

June 2024



the individual’s education or employment, or creating an intimidating, hostile, or
offensive educational or employment environment.

Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for
any decision affecting the individual regarding any term or condition of
employment, employment or academic benefits, or services, honors, programs, or
activities available at or through the school.

B. Types of conduct which are prohibited in the School and which may constitute sexual
harassment include, but are not limited to:

1.

Graphic verbal comments about an individual’s body or appearance.

2. Sexual jokes, notes, stories, drawings, pictures or gestures.

3. Sexual slurs, leering, threats, abusive words, derogatory comments or sexually
degrading descriptions.

4. Unwelcome sexual flirtations or propositions for sexualactivity or unwelcome
demands for sexual favors, including but not limited to repeated unwelcome
requests for dates.

5. Spreading sexual rumors.

6. Touching an individual’s body or‘clothes (including one’s own) in a sexual way,
including, but not limited to, grabbing, brushing against, patting, pinching,
bumping, rubbing, kissing, and\fondling.

7. Cornering or blocking narmal 'movements.

8. Displaying sexually suggestive drawings, pictures, written materials, and objects in
the educationalfenvironment.

1v. Definition of Other Forms\of Prohibited Harassment

A.

Illegal harassment’on the basis of any other characteristic protected by state or federal law
is strictly jprohibited. This includes verbal or physical conduct that denigrates or shows
hostilityyof.aversion toward an individual because of his/her race, color, religion, gender,
national origin, age, disability, marital status, citizenship or sexual orientation or any other
characteristic protected by law and that:

1.

3.

Has the purpose or affect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work or
academic environment;

Has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual’s work or academic
performance; or

Otherwise, adversely affects an individual’s employment or academic performance.

B. Examples of prohibited actions, which may constitute harassment include, but are not
limited to, the following:

1.

Epithets, slurs or negative stereotyping;

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 43

June 2024



2. Threatening, intimidating or hostile acts, such as stalking; or

3. Written or graphic material that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion toward an
individual or group and that is placed on walls or elsewhere on the school premises
or circulated in the workplace or academic environment.

V. Retaliation Prohibited

A. Any act of retaliation against an individual who files a complaint alleging a violation of the
School’s anti-discrimination policy and/or sexual or illegal harassment policy or who
participates in the investigation of a discrimination complaint is prohibited.

B. Retaliation may include, but is not limited to, any form of intimidation, reprisal or
harassment based upon participation in the investigation if, or filing a complaint of,
discrimination.

VL. Procedures for Filing Complaint of Discrimination, Sexual HarassmentjornOther Form of Illegal
Harassment

A. Procedures for Filing Complaints

1.

Any person who believes that he or she has been.discriminated against, or placed in a
hostile environment based on gender, marital\status, sexual orientation, race, national
origin, religion, age or disability by an employee; volunteer, agent or student of the
school should within sixty (60) days of alleged occurrence file a written or oral
complaint. The complaint should set(forth a description of the alleged discriminatory
actions/harassment, the time frame,in"which the alleged discrimination occurred, the
person or persons involved in the'alleged discriminatory actions, and any witnesses or
other evidence relevant to the allegations in the complaint.

The complaint should befiled with the school Principal. Complaints filed with the
Principal must be fofwarded to CSUSA Employee Services within five (5) days of the
filing of the complaint! If the complaint is against the principal, the complaint may be
filed directlyawithhn\CSUSA Employee Services.

If the complaint is against CSUSA Employee Services, the Chief of Schools, or other
member of the School’s Board, the complaint may be filed with the School Attorney.

Procedures for Processing Complaints

Complaints filed against persons other than the Chief of Schools or member of the
School’s Board:

a. Upon receipt of the written complaint by CSUSA Employee Services, CSUSA
Employee Services shall investigate or appoint an investigator to conduct an
investigation of the allegations in the complaint. The investigator shall interview
the complainant and the accused; interview any witnesses identified by the
complainant, accused, or by other sources; take statements from all witnesses;
and review any relevant documents or other evidence. Upon completing a review
of all evidence relevant to the complaint, the investigator shall prepare a written
summary of the investigation, and make a recommendation to CSUSA Employee
Services as to whether there is reasonable cause to believe a violation of the
School’s anti-discrimination policy has occurred. Copies of documents, evidence

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 44

June 2024



and witness statements which were considered in the investigation must be sent to
CSUSA Employee Services along with the summary and recommendation.

If the complaint is against CSUSA Employee Services, the School Attorney shall
appoint an investigator, who shall conduct an investigation in the manner set forth
in section VI.B.1.a. (above).

The investigation, summary, relevant documents, witnesses’ statements and
recommendation should be completed and forwarded to CSUSA Employee Services
within thirty (30) days, or to the School Attorney within thirty (30) days, if the
complaint is against CSUSA Employee Services. CSUSA Employee Services, or
School Attorney, respectively, shall review the investigation summary, evidence
and recommendation, and determine within ten (10) days whether there is
reasonable cause to believe a discriminatory practice occurred.

If CSUSA Employee Services or School Attorney determines there is reasonable
cause to believe a violation of the nondiscriminatory policy, occurred, he or she
shall within ten (10) days provide notice of the reasonable/cause finding to the
complainant and the accused. CSUSA Employee Services or School Attorney shall
then review the investigatory file, reasonable cause determination, and all related
documents and evidence, to the Chief of Scheals:

If CSUSA Employee Services or School Attorney>determines, after a review of the
investigation, summary, recommendation-and other evidence, that there is no
reasonable cause to believe a diseriminatory practice occurred, he or she shall
provide within ten (10) days notice‘of the finding of no reasonable cause to the
complainant and accused.

The complainant may request a no reasonable cause finding by CSUSA Employee
Services or SchoolAttorney be reviewed by the Chief of Schools within ten (10)
days of receipt of this,notice. The complainant shall provide a written statement
detailing facts in support of his or her disagreement with the determination. The
complainantwill*also be given an opportunity to meet with the Chief of Schools
and CSUSA Employee Services/School Attorney to present his or her position. The
Chief of Schools and CSUSA Employee Services/School Attorney shall prepare a
writtéenvmemorandum summarizing the content of the conference to be included in
theycomplaint file. The Chief of Schools shall within ten (10) days of receipt of the
notice make a final determination as to whether there is reasonable cause to
believe a discriminatory practice occurred.

If review by the Chief of Schools is not timely requested, CSUSA Employee Services
or School Attorney’s determination of no reasonable cause shall be final.

The accused may request, within ten (10) days of receipt of a notice of a finding of
reasonable cause, that the determination be reviewed by the Chief of Schools. The
request must include a written statement expressing the accused’s position on the
complaint and findings, and address any facts, statements or evidence which he or
she submits are inaccurate. The accused will be given an opportunity to meet with
the Chief of Schools and CSUSA Employee Services/School Attorney to present his
or her position. The Chief of Schools and CSUSA Employee Services/School
Attorney must within ten (10) days of receipt of the notice prepare a memorandum
summarizing the content of the meeting to be included in the complaint file.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 45

June 2024



After providing the opportunity for an informal hearing as referenced in section
VL.B.1.h. (above), the Chief of Schools shall evaluate all the evidence, the
investigation summary, recommendations and findings, along with any input by the
accused and complainant, and make a final determination as to whether there is
reasonable cause to support the complainant’s allegations. He or she shall then
determine any necessary disciplinary, remedial, or other action. Notice of the final
disposition of the complaint and any disciplinary and/or remedial action shall within
twenty (20) days of the informal hearing be forwarded to the accused and the
complainant and the Chairman of the School’s Board, and a copy of will be filed
with and maintained in the office of Charter Schools USA Senior Director of Human
Resources.

2. Complaints against School Board Members.

a.

Complaints against the School’s Board Members shall be filed with the School
Attorney. The School Attorney will within twenty (20) days appoint an outside,
independent investigator to conduct an investigation and*make a recommendation
as to whether a discriminatory practice has occurred. It is recommended, but not
mandatory, that the investigator be an attorney familiar with federal and state law
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of a protected status.

The complainant and accused shall be interviewed by the outside investigator. Both
shall provide written lists of withesses to‘be interviewed, and documents or other
evidence to be reviewed as relevant to_the complaint. The investigator shall
interview all witnesses identified by the complainant or accused, in addition to
witnesses with relevant knowledge which the investigator may discover from other
sources. The investigator shall'also review relevant documents and other evidence.
The investigator shall within twenty (20) days of receiving the complaint prepare a
written summary of his or her investigation, and a recommendation to the School
Attorney as to whether<there is reasonable cause to believe that a discriminatory
practice may have oceurred.

If reasonable“cause’is recommended by the investigator against a School’s Board
Member;, the'recommendation shall within twenty (20) days be forwarded to the
Chairman of the (School Board) to determine if there is evidence that a
misfeasance or malfeasance of office occurred. The (School Board) will be
responsible for taking any necessary action in accordance with applicable law with
reference to an elected official.

A finding of no reasonable cause by the outside investigator, which is reviewed and
confirmed by the School Attorney, shall be final and a copy will be forwarded to
the Chairman of the (School Board). In compliance with Florida Statute, the
investigation file shall become public record and the School’s Board Member shall
answer to their constituency.

3. Penalties for confirmed Discrimination or Harassment

a.

Student - A substantiated allegation of discrimination or harassment against a
student shall subject that student to disciplinary action consistent with the Code of
Student Conduct.

Employee or Volunteer - A substantiated allegation of discrimination or harassment
against an employee may result in disciplinary actions including termination and
referral to appropriate law enforcement authorities. A volunteer shall be removed

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 46

June 2024



from service and a referral may be made to appropriate law enforcement
authorities.

4. Limited Exemption from Public Records Act and Notification of Parents of Minors

a. To the extent possible, complaints will be treated as confidential and in accordance
with Florida Statutes and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).
Limited disclosure may be necessary to complete a thorough investigation as
described above. The School’s obligation to investigation and take corrective action
may supersede an individual’s right to privacy.

b. The parents of a person under the age of 18 who has filed a complaint of
discrimination and/or harassment shall be notified within three (3) days of receipt
of a complaint.

(School Name) shall conspicuously post its Notice of Non-Discrimination and Non-Harassment and the
name and telephone number of the employee responsible for compliance withystich policies at its
facilities subject to its discretion regarding placement.

CSUSA Employee Services
Charter Schools USA

800 Corporate Drive, Suite 700
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33334
(954) 202-3500

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 47
June 2024



Parental Rights in Education Policy

WHEREAS, The 2022 Florida Legislature passed House Bill 1557, Parental Rights in
Education which Governor Ron DeSantis signed into law on March 28, 2022 with an effective
date of July 1, 2022.

WHEREAS, This Policy is to ensure the charter school governing board (the “Governing
Board”) will comply with the newly amended Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, relating to
student welfare and procedures for notifying a student’s parent if there is a change in the
student’s services or monitoring related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health
or well-being and the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for
the student.

WHEREAS, This Policy also provides the procedural requirements for ‘the Governing Board
and the relationship/duties of the School Board which serves as the Goyerning Board’s sponsor
in relation to the parents fundamental right of parents to make decisions regarding the
upbringing and control of their children. Nothing in this Policy,i§ intended to prohibit parents
from accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or used
by the Governing Board, as required by Section 1002.22(2),\Florida Statutes.

NOW THEREFORE, The Governing Board, respectinig and reinforcing the fundamental
rights of parents to make decisions and control of‘their children and as required by Section
1001.42, Florida Statutes and further enumerat€dsin Sections 1002.20 and 1014.04, Florida
Statutes provides the following:

1. Notification Requirements

The Governing Board shall notify and provide parents/guardians of the following
information and services offeredatthe School at the beginning of each academic school year:

a. That classroomymstruction by school personnel or third parties on sexual orientation or
gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 or in a manner that is not
age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students in accordance with state
standards:

b. Each health care service offered at their student’s school and the option to withhold
consent or decline any specific service.

c. Provide an option that parental consent to a health care service does not waive a parent’s
right to access his or her student’s educational or health records or to be notified about a
change in his or her student’s services or monitoring.

d. Require consent from the parent/guardian before administering a student well-being
questionnaire or health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3.

II. Parent Grievance Procedures

In the event a parent/guardian feels that any of the above actions in Section I(a-d) of this Policy
has or has not occurred, the parent shall first email the principal or his or her designee
regarding concerns which is believed to occur within his or her student’s school.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 48
June 2024



Upon receipt of the email and/or written correspondence from the student’s parent/guardian,
the principal or his or her designee shall immediately cause to be investigated whether a
violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes has occurred. The principal or his or her designee
shall, within seven (7) calendar days after notification by the parent, provide a written
summary of the investigative findings and any steps to be taken and available to both the
School and the parent.

If the parent/guardian, within thirty (30) days after notification to the principal or his or her
designee of the alleged violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, by the parent that the
concern remains unresolved, the Governing Board shall appoint a third party (other than the
principal or his or her designee) to investigate whether a violation of Section 1001.42, Florida
Statutes has occurred or if there is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to
the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and/orthe school’s ability to
provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student and“such change has not
been properly communicated to the Parent.

The Governing Board shall receive the summary of findings from=the third party and report the
findings to the School Board for the School Board to make«a final determination of whether a
violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes has occurred or'if there is a change in the
student’s services or monitoring related to the student’ s'mental, cmotional, or physical health
or well-being and/or the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment
for the student and such change has not been properly communicated to the Parent.

If a concern is not resolved by the-Scheol Board, a parent may:

a. Request the Commissioner of Edulcation to appoint a special magistrate who is a member
of The Florida Bar in goed standing and who has at least 5 years’ experience in
administrative law; or,

1. The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the dispute over the
School’s, and School Board’s procedure or practice, consider information
provided by the school, and render a recommended decision for resolution to the
State Board of Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the parent.

ii.  The State Board of Education must approve or reject the recommended decision
at its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 calendar days and no
more than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is transmitted.

iii.  The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the school district.

b. Bring an action against the school district to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school
district procedure or practice violates this paragraph and seek injunctive relief. A court
may award damages and shall award reasonable attorney fees and court costs to a parent
who receives declaratory or injunctive relief.

I11. Required Communication from Charter School

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 49
June 2024



In the event a charter school principal or the principal's designee is directed to notify a
parent by the Governing Board pursuant to this Policy, the charter school principal or the
principal's designee shall make a reasonable attempt to meet and with the student have the
student discuss the issues relating to their upbringing with their parents prior to the formal
written notification to the student's parent/guardian.

For purposes of this policy, “a reasonable attempt to notify” means the exercise of
reasonable diligence and care by the principal or the principal’s designee to make contact with
the student’s parent, guardian, or other known contact whom the student’s parent or guardian
has authorized to receive notifications.

At a minimum, the principal or the principal’s designee must take the following actions:

a.

Use available methods of communication to contact, the student’s parent,
guardian, or other known emergency contact, including. but not limited to,
telephone calls, text messages, e-mails, and voice mailumessages following the
notification of a when there is a change in the stadent’s services or monitoring
related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physieal health or well-being and/or
the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the
student.

Document the method and number of ‘attempts made to contact the student’s
parent, guardian, or other known“emergency contact, and the outcome of each
attempt.

A principal or his or her designee who.successfully notifies any other known emergency
contact may share only the informatioh neeessary to alert such contact that the parent or caregiver
must be contacted. All such informatien/must be in compliance with federal and state law.

IVv.

Delayed Communication from Charter School

The principal or.the principal’s designee may delay notification pursuant to this Policy

if:

V.

a. The principal or the principal’s designee deems the delay to be in the student’s
best interest and if there is knowledge, suspicion, or reason to suspect that such
notification may result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect; or

b. The principal or the principal’s designee reasonably believes that such delay is
necessary to avoid jeopardizing the health and safety of the student.

Conflict of Law

This policy is intended to supplement Sections 1001.41, 1002.20 and 1014.04, Florida
Statutes. If there is any provision of this policy which conflicts with and Florida Statute, the
Florida Statute shall control. In the event the Department of Education updates, as necessary,
school counseling frameworks and standards; educator practices and professional conduct
principles; and any other student services personnel guidelines, standards, or frameworks in
accordance with the requirements of this act, the Governing Board shall adopt and incorporate

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 50

June 2024



such updated frameworks and standards in compliance with this Policy, Florida Administrative
Code, and Florida Statutes.

VI Effective Date.

This policy became effective July 1, 2022. The Governing Board reserves the right to
change provisions of this Policy at any time in the future.

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook 51
June 2024



(School Logo)

(School Name)
Serving Grades K-8
(School Address)
Phone: ( XXX)- XXX-XXXX
Fax Number: ( XXX)- XXX-XXXX

(School Website)

Charter Schools USA — Parent Handbook

June 2024

52



